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The next paragraph, the applicants were unable to implement the reclaimed water
plant, etc. That’s addressed again in the third amendment and the first page here it also says
that there's a concern that the applicants may continue to violate the covenants in terms of
minimum square footage of floor space. We have an affidavit signed by the late Jane
Petchesky that quantifies that the 1500 square feet includes heated and usiheated square
footage and that this is a private covenant that is heing conformed to and again, this is an
inference that we don’t carry out our plans.

There’s lso a lot of out of context documents in this 25-page letter that has to do with
water availability assessment and statements from the State Engineer, the Office of the State
Engineer, issuing a negative opinion. Well, the State Engineer issues a negative opinion on
every subdivision in the city or the county because his position is the City and the County do
not have a demonstrable 100-year water plan. So this is taken out of context and out of
meaning to say or imply that La Pradera has not followed the correct County procedures in
terms of this water budget. As a matter of fact La Pradera has more than adequate water
service agreements, The original water service agreement came out of the Duran Consent
Decree to do this subdivision twice over. But again, the inference is that we do not.

There’s another page here, it’s an extract out of a recorded docoment, 2004, that has
to do with water user restrictions and Mr. Cooke states that in effect we're not in compliance
when in fact we're doing much better. We have a .13 recorded and we're actually doing
somewhere around .11 acre-feet per year based on existing three-year historical data, So we
also had a letter from Marcella Wiard, one of our homeowners. She was concerned about
changes to lot sizes or changes from commercial to residential. So what wasn’t stressed in
our Phase | approval discussion is that we were obligated to build 32,667 square fect of
commercial of which — and this is our recorded Phase I plat — of which half, 50 percent, could
be residential. We were also approved at the same time for 11 condo units and there’s an
inference or a misiaken take that live/work equals affordable housing, and one of our
homeowners is concerned about that. I believe that is Marcella.

That’s not the case. The condos were not live/work. We already met our affordahle
requirement in Phase I or have identified other lots that have to he built still, but not the
condos. So all through this also many of our homeowners are fearful that we’re doing this —
making this master plan amendment request irresponsibly and hecause we are blatantly
greedy developers. Now, I jokingly refer to myself as a greedy developer hecause those words
are hyphenated anyway; you can’t be a developer without being greedy. But I'm certainly not
blatant and the fact that we’re providing lots that are essentially the same size as our standard
lots should be applauded. We are actually building homes right now. We’re going vertical,
We’re adding jobs, and we’re taking care, as Alexis stated, being the stewards of this project.

Now, one of our other homeowners, Crow Rising, is concerned about 50 percent open
space. We not only have maintained the 50 percent we’re actually a little bit in excess of that.
She was concerned that her yard would be equipped with landscaping. We only contributed
or sold the lot. We weren’t the builder and we made no promises. So I want Crow Rising, if
she’s here to know that if representations were made she needs to go back to the builder to
meet those. And here Crow Rising states that the common thread is that the developers of La
Pradera say one thing and do another. That’s not the case and this is why I wanted io make
these corrections because it really isn’t fair to the homeowners nor to us fo base a lot of these
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secondary letters on a flawed first letler from Mr. Cooke.

When we developed the first phases we did have Advantage Asphalt contracting with
us. They got permission to have a yard for the equipment. We have recently had them clean it
up and what’s left behind is clean dirt. We’re going to be using some of it. Some of it is
standing by to be recycled, broken pieces of asphalt and concrete, It certainly is a mountain
but it’s not trash hidden in the corner. So I respect these comments but again, you can
appreciate why I want our homeowners and you, Commissioners, to hear our position as well.

CHAIR VIGIL: I have a question for you, Mr, McCarthy. Commissioner
Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes, Madam Chair. It could be Mr. McCarthy or
maybe even staff. I'm looking at the summary right now and it says Gardner Associates, La
Pradera, Applicants, request master plat for 22 residential units live/work lots on 2.27 acres.
I've heard the applicant and I’ve heard staff refer to 8,000 square feet, I've heard you refer to
7,000 square feet but I guess — help me understand. It doesn’t equate as far as lot size. I’'m not
at this point even making any determination. It’s more about 4,500 square fect per ot to
equate to 22 lots for 2.27 acres. So clarify that for me.

MR. MCCARTHY': Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, there’s two separate
sets of information and you're going to the heart of the matter. What we’re asking the
Commission to approve tonight is to modify the existing zoning in this area here, Phase 1
which is already approve for 32,667 square feet of commercial with half of it being
residential and 11 condos on three lots, All we’re asking for is permission to use the master
plat process to complete that development. This is already approved. Those jots would be
roughly 4,000 square feet on average, plus or minus. The balance of the request, which will
be heard later, is for the modification of lot lines in Phases I through VI, which are here, by
reducing these estate lots which I mentioned are on the southern tier and creating 27 other
lots here that have an average close to the 7,600 square foot average that we already have
when you take all of the lots we have and remove the estate lots. So you find out what the
standard size is. And the reason for the explanation of that is to allay the fears of our
homeowners that we’re coming in with some very, very tiny lots or substantially different
than what we already have and are building upon.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, just to staff. To put 22 lots on
2.27, acres, it's going to be about 4500 square foot lots. Is that specifically what’s requested?
Because we heard 7,000, we heard 8,000, and I’m not even saying I'm against or for that, I'm
Just saying I want to be clear. Commissioner Stefanics asked at the beginning, equate an
example of what it looks like, hut to put 22 lots on 2.27 acres is 4,500 square foot lots. Am 1
missing something associated with that?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, it's almost 4,600 square
feet. It's 4,594.6 square foot average lot size when you do that math. So you’re correct. And
the example I was giving was just in Rancho Viejo. I wasn’t referring to a specific
development.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I just want to make sure we’re all on the same
page. Then I guess my next question is, so we’re talking about 4,500 and change squere foot
lots on this request and we’re talking about what’s the price point on these lots, suggested?

MR. MCCARTHY: Our price point on these lots really, it’s just difficult to
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answer becanse what we're doing —

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: A range.

MR. MCCARTHY: Well, may I, Madam Chair, Cornmissioner Anaya, what
we’re looking at is a completed package, but a range of these lots would probably be
somewhere in the $85,00 range. So all of these lots, as Vahid has laid them out as they could
be detached. They’ll be two story. But because they’ll be oddly shaped you can’t impose a
grid upon them at this time. '

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: But you, Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, you’re
going to sell lots and houses together, correct?

MR. MCCARTHY: Yes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: What’s the range on a huilt-out lot? Low side,
high side?

MR. MCCARTHY: Well, Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, right now our
experience is from $239,900 to $425,000. We're hoping that these lots will be in the mid-
range of the $239,000 to $425,000. They’ll be good quality homes.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Mr. McCarthy, who will be giving the next part of your
presentation?

MR. MCCARTHY: I would like to pass the mike to Oralynn to touch a few
issues on wastewater and water in general.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Are you done?

[Duly swom, Cralyon Guerrerortiz testified as follows:]

ORALYNN GUERRERORTIZ: I'm Oralynn Guerrerortiz with Design
Enginuity, and my address is P.O. Box 2758 here in Santa Fe, New Mexico, I'm just going to
talk a litile hit about the wastewater system. La Pradera’s all six phases are going to be served
or are served by the La Pradera reclamation facility, which is an advanced tertiary treatment
plant. It treats nitrogen, reduces that and recirculates that and it is in 100 percent compliance
and always has been with the State. We're actually going through our five-year renewal
period at this point. There was a suggestion that the ED is unaware of who our operator is.
Our operator is Leonard Quintana. He's a level 4 wastewater operator, He's excellent.
Actually, he used to he an employee here at the County years ago; we were lucky enough to
have him.

The project is not just a simple septic tank. There was — there is a filtration and
disinfection system as part of the plant but the filtration and disinfection system served water
that flowed to commodes, for toilet flushing, and it was decided to turn off the commode and
toilet flushing facilities. They were never really in demand. Every house had to be plumbed
so it had the possibility of having potable water or reclaimed water in & toilet and very few
people actually wanted (o use the reclaimed water in the toilet, so that system was actually
shut down completely. The filtration and disinfection is not used. Reclaimed water is used at
La Pradera for the irrigation of common areas, like it’s down at Rancho Vicjo. As a result La
Pradera actually | think has the lowest water use of any project in the county and I’d love the
County to verify this. The most recent year there were 51 lots that were served by the County
and we're at .117 acre-feet per year. So I think this has always been a model of a low water
using project. I'm very proud of that aspect of it.
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There was issues raised about odors associated with the treatment plant. Fortunately,
the treatment plant through different maintenance operations odors are escaping, when you're
washing down things, when you’re cleaning things, you do get odor issues. And ather times
I’m not even sure where the odor is coming from. Ofien when I’'m there I can’t smell it. I
guess I'm hitting it at the wrong time. But nevertheless, I'm sure there are odors at times.
We’re also working regularly to find out what problems existing and trying to rectify them.
We have actuatly two parallel plants out at La Pradera. That’s because the second phase will
huild another plant that has a lot of capacity and we’re going to bring that second plant on
line just so we can take the first plant down which has been in service for a numher of years
now, about five years, and do a thorough checkup on it and look at it a little more carefully
on the inside to see where some of our sources of odors are,

Other than that, if you have any other questions, if anybody raises any other questions
with regard to wastewater, I"d Jove to be ahle to answer them. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Next person. Who will he presenting, if there are?
Are there any other further presenters?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, there's quite a few other issues. I'd just
like to mention a couple. This is in direct response to our Vista Ocasa neighbor Lisa Burns,
who has written two letters. But | wanted 1o address her concern ahout her groundwater and
cisterns. We are on the County water line which is wheeling water from the City, so wedo
not have a direct impact on her groundwater. In addition she was concerned about our drain
field. Qur drain field, if I may, Lisa’s home is located right here. The wastewater treatment
plant is located right here, and the drain field is located up here. So we are — this is a 200-foot
scale, so we are substantially quite a ways away from her property and our drain field should
not have any impact at all on her property.

In addition, in her second letier there’s some misstatements, actnally incorrect, and if' I
may again I believe that many of the obvious reasons to oppose the master plan amendment
have already been presented by Matthew Cooke in his opposition filed April 2011, So here
we go again working off of bad informational base. And there were three items ~ violation of
the waler restrictive covenants of .16. Oralynn has testified 10 .117; violation of the 1500
square foot minimum per household. Please remember that was Jane Petchesky affidavit that
cleared that up; and violation of the availability of reclaimed water for irrigation purposes.
That wes addressed in the third amendment to the restrictive covenants,

In addition, in this letter from Ms. Burns states that we’re not providing solar homes.
We never said we would. The inference is we didn’t do what we said we were going to do
and a further paragraph says evidence when compiled will show that this has not been in
compliance since Mr. Summers, the previous building of the systern and operator was
replaced in 2008. A quick check of the NMED metrics will show that we have always been in
compliance and still are,

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: At this point, we have all these letters and |
think what we were offering to do, and as the vice chair I'm taking over right now, but what
we were offering you to do is to offer any information you wanted to hefore we moved to any
other comments, since we are in a public hearing. And is there anything else you want to
summarize, not rebuttal to the statements, but anything you want to summarize ahout the
project or the development before we go to other comments?
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MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Vice Chair, Commissioners, yes. In closing,
we’re not asking for any variances. We're zoned for this use. We’re not adding any roads.
There's no significant impact from traffic, according to our engineer’s report, and we're
already zoned for the Phase I use. We're just asking for a procedural approval and direction.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS; Thank you very much. We’re going to move
to other comments from the audience, then we’ll go to questions and comments from the
Board of County Commissioners. If you have any comments to make would you please move
over and just line up and we’ll take one right after the other, and if we don’t move pretty
quickly we’ll be here till midnight. So if you have anything to say, pro or con, we’d love to
hear from you, but please move over to my right, your lef and up to the podium. We need
you, anybody who is going to speak stand forward and you will all be swom in at once. So
anybody who is going to speak at all pleasc come over so that you can be administered the
oath one time. And thank you. We're happy to hear from all of you but please, as she
indicated state your name and your address for the record and we’d love to hear from you.

[Duly swomn, Ernie Zapata testified as follows:]

ERNIE ZAPATA: Yes. My name is Ernie Zapata. 1 reside at 721 Don Felix.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: And I should explain. It’s been a long
evening so people are coming and going to the restroom and making phone calls to their
families, but everyhody is listening; cverybody is paying attention. So please hear with us. So
go right ahead,

MR. ZAPATA: Just comments. I'm in the real estate business and I know the
developers personally. I"ve seen what they can do and have done for the public interest as far
as providing residences to people that are looking at buying. There's been a few inferences as
far as — a few comments as far as stewards of the stale. You yourselves as far as the
Commission is concerned should be stewards of the siate but the land, on behalf of the public
of course.

There’s heen some presentations tonight as far as variances are concerned, some of
them being extensions on developments and obviously for the simple points of the economy
doesn’t allow for any kind of throw the money at it, start quoting it so we can provide
housing for people, This county basicaily lives on tax revenue that is built off of homes that
are built. What these types of development do, these people are basically making changes to
the development that are going to create a higher density and an affordable price point that
can hasically for pcople that are interested for that type of price point. The fact of the matter
is it’s not only going to be doing that it’s also going to be providing jobs. As you all know,
people are looking for jobs — construction workers, landscapers, electricians.

So the fact of the matter is that this is in the interest of the whole community as a
whole for tax revenue, for jobs as far as the community is concemed. They’re not asking for
any changes to the development itself. They're basically making a change as far as the
complexion of the development itself that is going to make more affordable homes for the
community. So other than that I hope you vote in favor of the changes and I appreciate your
listening to me.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Next speaker please. There were several
people that were sworn in so let’s keep going.

[Previously sworn, Rosalie Calhoun testified as follows:]
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ROSALIE CALHOUN: Hi. My name is Rosalie Calhoun and I live at 5
Camino Sabanero. I am also in favor of the changes. I think it’s much hetter for us to not
have condos. I've been in communities where you have two accountants, two cverything and
it does bring up the cost of your monthly assessment. Also I like the change of it being all
residential with some work space, as opposed to being commercial and the economy now,
with the larger lots in place I through VI, those homes or those lots could have sat for a long
time, Right across the street, Oshara has declared bankruptcy as of today or yesterday. I have
been in situations where bankruptcy has been declared in other states and I've seen the
residences plummet to a low from either the bank taking over or other owners taking over of
going down to one third of the value from the original sales. So I think that these changes are
needed for this community fo continue being successful and I want the developer to stay there
and not be put out of business and | don’t want this to become another hankrupt community. I
think that it is one of the most beautiful developments in the county. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much. Next person please.

[Previously sworn, Lisa Burns testified as follows:)

LISA BURNS: I’'m Lisa Bumns. I live at #1 1 Las Caballeras in Santa Fe, New
Mexico. I'm sort of taken aback hecause John McCarthy has already tom apart my letter and
you guys have already read it as well. But T do want to say that I did speak with Robert
George at the Environmental Department yesterday on the telephone. He was not able to tell
me who the operator is of the system. He said that he would look into it; he wasn’t sure, | ride
my horse past that system, a lot. It smells, a lot. It’s not just the, whatever, the effluent is that
they’re watering their — as Oralynn said and she also acknowledged that there are issues with
the system, and I smell it all the time. There's the land that Jane Petchesky has donated to the
conservation easement is where I ride my horse which is right along the amoyo. It is on a 100-
year flood plain on the Arroyo Hondo. There’s an aquifer. You can't tell me that that’s not an
issue with a wastewater {reatment plant the size they want 1o do here. It's a scary situation.

And yes, | am concerned about my water and my groundwater. I think everyhody

should be concemed because of the smell. Now, Robert George told me, 1 asked him
specifically if the smell is an indication that there could be something wrong with the system.
He said, well, an intermittent smell may not but if it’s consisient then it is. And it is
consistent. I've been snooping in your little wastewater ireatment plant, a lot. There are some
serious issues. There's a bid stink going on over there and I don’t know why they want to
cover if up and [ don’t know why they want to bring on more homes on line when there’s
some very serious prohlems with the system and a lot of the other residents here who live in
La Pradera can attest to that. And if I'm right will you raise your hand? [A number of people
in the audience raised their hands.] That’s all I have to say.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much. Next person please.

[Previously sworn, Kimberly Gonzales testified as follows:]

KIMBERLYGONZALES: Madam Chair, Commissioners, I'm Kimberly
Gonzales and | reside at 50 La Praders, and if I may I"d like to present you guys with pictures
of some of the problems that we’ve experienced in our residence. [Exhibit 3] What I’'m
showing you here is what Advantage Asphalt had created in our open space which is now full
of debris, not dirt or clean dirt as Mr, McCarthy referenced, and for months there would be
chain link fence around that as well as porta-potties and there were actually dump trucks in
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and out of our subdivision between the hours of 9:30 and 10:00 pm at night, of which I did
call the County Sheriff Department because I thought that something was fishy about dump
trucks going to that area in the middle of the night.

We have several problems, actually, in La Pradera. One of our biggest problems was
break-ins, , which occurred frequently and affected many of my neighhors and at the tast
HOA meeting I recall there was [inaudihle] event letting the homeowners know that we were
going to have a gated community. And there was a problem hecause our Vista Ocasa
neighbors if we closed down Dinosaur Trail, or Old Dinosaur Trail, rather, to put these gates
up to try and reduce the crime rate inside of our subdivision. So we were presented with a
different map showing us different entry levels within the subdivision that wouldn’t affect
our neighbors from Vista Ocasa from crossing through the suhdivision. That didn’t happen.
We never got our gates. We pay homeowner association dues every month for a gated
comumunity that was promised at the last HOA meeting that never happened.

My home was also built with a recycled water plumbing in my home and I cannot use
that because the effluent water treatment does not work. That was one of the main reasons
that I bought in La Pradera was for the open space, the balance with nature and the effluent
water treatment system. Sunday night my sons and I were driving home about 9:00 in the
evening and they asked what that smell was. The smell was the effluent water treatment
system and the wastewater treatment sysiem from the Dinosaur Trail and the Rudy Rodriguez
area, which is Phase II, actually Phase V1 through IV which they’re wanting to add more units
to.

If you go by Phases I and II, I actually feel very sorry for our neighbor how lives there
because that area where Lisa rides her horse does smell. And he put a play sct together for his
children and they are never out there because they cannot tolerate the smell.

I'm here asking you guys as our Commissioners to please do something about this
because I do not want other peaple coming and investing into a subdivision that is not
working for the current residents. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Kimberly. Next speaker.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Mayfield. Do you have a question for -

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Ms. Gonzales. Ms. Gonzales, when were
these pictures taken?

MS. GONZALES: Two days ago.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

[Previously sworn, Adriene Simpson testified as follows:]

ADRIENE SIMPSON: Madam Chair, my name is Adriene Simpson. I've
already —

CHAIR VIGIL: You've been sworn. Thank you, Adriene.

MS. SIMPSON: Wow. This started out really concise and now it’s grown. I'll
try and summarize it best I can. Density is one of our issues and I don’t think there’s ever
been a County code that allowed unlimited density like the Community College District Plan
does. And there are some good aspects and atiributes of the plan and | don’t believe the
current development is going by that plan. It wasn’t their problem of solar homes, it was the
Community College District Plan that promised sustainable development with solar homes,
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water reclamation facilities. It’s all in every page of the plan, practically.

So just because you have an aversupply of water it doesn’t mean that you’re supposed
to use it, according to this plan. And I would really like to see the math that comes up with
the .11 acre-feet a year. That's almost less than 40,000 gallons and I monitor my own water
use and I go over it and I’m as frugal as can be. My trees have heen there for over 20 years
and they’re still only ten feet tall. So I really would like to see the math and the data
supporting those figures.

As far as the marketability, I don't see the reason 1o increase the inventory of these
smell lots. There’s already a glut of inventory in La Pradera. By his own admission he says
there’s two years® worth there. Not fo mention Rancho Viejo has also got extensive
inventory. These lots are sitting vacant and it's just a hige, gigantic dirt paich out there.
We're surrounded by that on the south side and La Pradera’s dirt patch is on the north side,
So we're just subjected fo constant dust storms and tumbleweeds rolling by, not to mention I
think there’s some concern about the neighboring area. The neighboring aréas are not part of
this higher density. We’re aptly named Dinosaur Trail because we’re rural residential, I
guess, which is becoming a dinosaur. So again, the density is a question.

As far as the marketability, Mr. McCarthy stated at the Genoveva Chavez meeting
that we had that the price points aren’t going to drop on these lots. So I don’t see how the
smaller lot size is going to help with the marketability. And we delivered fliers yesterday in
the wind and I hadn’t personally seen a lot of the houses in Phase I close up until that time
and I have to say there is a marked difference between the market rate homes that are existing
out there in Phase I and the affordable homes that are being built now which have no -
they’re nowhere near the ones that have already been built. There’s no comparison at all.

Anyway, as far as the wastewater plant goes I spoke with Mr. Sumamers and he was
dismayed that he was still listed as the operator on the State documents and was going to
correct that immediately, since it’s been two years since he’s heen involved with it, since he
was locked out of the system when he raised concerns when they wanted to put Phases 11
through VT on the existing plant. I don’t know what those concerns were based on but I'm
sure they can be investigated as there’s already an acknowledged problem with the plant, and
he stated that it was questionable about the second plant that’s coming on line, whether it’s
being operated property. Anyway, there's a lot of environmenital questions here that need to
be addressed before any sort of density increase is agreed to.

I must mention we spent countless hours and time and effort to come to agreement in
2006 in this master plan and the humber of lots that were already on it. And that’s apparently
going out the window. It leaves me concerned — what are the decisions of this Board worth if
they can be just thrown out the window in another few years? How can we make the
decisions binding? Finally, I understand that there has to be some room for change because in
the residential — changing the commercial to residential, I don’t think that’s a bad change.
The density, of course, is outlandish and the price of the lots. I don’t think jt’s realistic given
the failure of Oshara and the questionable success of the one out in Rancho Viejo.

SoI just don’t think that the applicant applying for a rubber stamp from Mr.
Kolkmeyer on any of these issues is prudent. So I'd like to oppose that and any changes
should come before the Board. And the lot lines that are already zoned in the commercial
development area, those that already have lot lines zoned in there. They may in total be zoned
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commercial but it’s not zoned for 22 units. That hasn’t been approved by anybody, but
they’re suggesting that Mr. Kolkmeyer can rubberstamp it and approve it without you seeing.
So those are my concerns.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much, Adrian, Let me just do some time
management here. Is there any — who else would like to address the Commission? Let me see
a show of hands. Sir, would you please come up as you are coming up, and could I sec the
remainder of the show of hands? Six of you. Okay. Please state your name.

[Previously sworn, Ken Gand testified as follows:]

KEN GAND: My name is Ken Gand. We live at 97 Bosquecillo.

CHAIR VIGIL: Please proceed.

MR. GAND: Our lot size is 10,400 square feet, On that, according to the
4,000, you would be putting 2.5 houses on that lot. They said 1500 square feet, hieated and
unheated. The average size garage is about 500 square feet, which means the house, the
heated area, is going to be about 1,000, possibly less or maybe a little more. That density is
going to bring more traffic, smaller lots and squeeze us all in. That is not why we moved to
La Pradera. As the signs all said, 50 percent open space. This is a small community. They're
not making it 2 small community anymore. Thank you. I'm very much against the density,

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Mr. Gand. Appreciate your testimony. Whoever
would like to come up. There are six people interested in speaking. The only thing I would
ask without giving you a time limitation is just not to repeat the testimony that we’ve already
heard.

[Previously sworn, Marcella Wiard testified as follows:]

MARCELLA WIARD: I'm Marcella Wiard and I live at 703 Bosquecillos in
Santa Fe, La Pradera. And I'd just like to clarify that when we purchased our home, we were
in the first phase and there is a market rate house and there’s a very big difference in what our
house looks like and the second and third phases look like. They are entirely smaller. And
I'm concerned also about the density but what I would like to address is when we purchased
our fot we were told that there were 11 condos that were going to be built and scven
commercial buildings only. Period. No live/work. I never heard that term before. I work for
BT Homes. We presented La Pradera to a lot of the buyers who were out here and
homeowners who are here today. We never were using that terminology. And I’'m very
concerned about the live/wotk proposal.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Marcella. Appreciate your testimony. Next.

[Previously swom, Ron Gallegos testified as follows:]

RON GALLEGOS: Ron Gallegos, Old Dinosaur Trail. I know you don’t want
1o hear the same thing but [ just want to quickly reiterate because I think it is important there
is a clear delineation between the homes they are building now and what another home is. He
stated that Advantage Asphalt had taken down their yard. There is in fact still a portion of
their yard in place, so that is not entirely true. I'm sure he’s trying to move away from
commercial out of the goodness of his heart but just because he feels he can’t sell the
commercial and that’s within his right.

I am concemed that my property, actually bordering La Pradera, I actually never
received notice of this until I saw a notice on the mailboxes and that’s of hig concem to me.
Another thing is with his surrounding neighbors and keeping in mind the neighbors that are
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around him they’re all 2.5 up to 10-acre lots. My home is on 2.5 acres; there's one residence,
it’s 2.5 acres. Just a few feet away he wanis to put 22 on a smaller lot than I have. He’s
saying the traffic engineer said there was no impact but that is a considerable amount of more
people and a considerable amount of more traffic.
' The Commission’s approval, when this originally was done, it was under a harsh light
from Vista Ocasa and the surrounding neighborhoods that these were conditions of approval.
And to go away from that is to go away from original acceptance of this, that being the water
as well. I just wanted — it was a hard-fought agreement and I just would like them to stick to
the agreement. That’s all I have to say.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Mr, Gallegos. Next.

[Previously swomn, Michael Bartlett testified as follows:]

MICHAEL BARTLETT: My name is Michae] Bartlett. I'm at 23 Churchill
Road. I live next door to La Pradera Subdivision. From my back window I see homes that
remain unfinished and lots that remain einpty, the casualties of the downturn in the housing
market. Rather than waiting out the downturn La Pradera is asking to meke changes to what
has already been approved. Id like to present the following facts. La Pradera has already
received approval to build twice the density. When I look at La Pradera and I look at Oshara |
see a lot of emptiness. This whole idea of a work/study, work/live situation doesn’t seem to
have any bearing on the market. As Oshara now just went bankrupt that’s another indication
of it.

I have 2.5 acres. I'm an adjoining property. A few years ago I asked for a variance for
baving my existing guesthouse approved. It was denied. I was told it was too much — too
many people, too high density for my property. And yet here we’re going to try and fit 22
properties on 2.2 acres, less acreage than 1 have. And in addition to the people who live there
since it is live/work there are going to be people that are coming in and out as business, so
there is going to be & lot of traffic that’s going to be influencing it.

These are our neighbors. Most of us have lived there five, ten or even more years who
love the rural feel of the area. These developers come in every time making this promise and
that promise and when they don’t get what they seck they come to you asking for changes
which harm our neighborhoods. We lose. Our roads are crowded and no one pays to improve
them. The beautiful vistas are now being crowded with homes, many of which are empty.
When is the insanity going to stop? We’d like you to help protect us all. La Pradera made the
plan they did and they have to deal with the consequences, just like I have to deal with my
variance getting denied. The reality is that La Pradera is an approved master plan and itis a
plan that should remain in effect. Making smaller, lower quality units make some quick sales
but the La Pradera developers have shown that their interest is not in making the property
better for its owners and neighbors but simply make sales. The electronic pates are still not in
place among many other improvements. I ask the Commissioners to keep the master plan
intact and fo vote no on this ordinance.

CHAIR VIGIL: I'm going to take just a few minutes.
{The Commission recessed from 9:40 to 9:50.]
CHAIR VIGIL: We can proceed at this point in time. Please state your name
and continue with your testimony.
[Previously sworn, Tom Gillentine testified as follows:]
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TOM GILLENTINE: My name is Tom Gillentine. I live at 2256 Calle
Cacique and my family and I own five residential lots immediately to the east of La Pradera. [
am very definitely opposed to this density. We’ve talked a lot about square feet tonight but
ten units per acre is apartment house density, out here in our nice rural subdivision which
Jane Petchesky would in no way approve of. [Applause]

CHAIR VIGIL: Please hold your order. Everyone’s testimony needs to be
heard. Are you done, Mr. Gillentine?

MR. GILLENTINE: Yes.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much. Next.

[Previously sworn, Craig Tyler testified as follows:]

CRAIG TYLER: My name is Craig Tyler. 1 live at 83 La Pradera. The
comment I want to make here is that in a market downturn it’s harder to sell properties. We
all understand that. We’re all impacted by it. I suggest as painful when it happens the price
will rebound. If we allow them to do what they're proposing it will never come back. What I
mean by that is their changes are permanent. So if I may show, using their praphs, this is the
original plan, this is what they're changing it to. T think devaluing the neighborhood is pretty
obvious. I guess I'll just conclude by saying I'm encourage by the words “protection of
property” on the wall behind you and ask for your protection.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Mr. Tyler. Next.

[Previously swomn, Matthew Cooke testified as follows:]

MATTHEW COOKE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Matthew Cooke, 85 La
Pradera. | just have three brief points of consideration. 1 do have 15 signatures opposing this
request as was well as some of the other homeowners. {Exhibit 4] 1 will submit those for the
record please. Also, 1'd like to point out that the lot 35 that the applicant has offered to not
absorb for the development of the 22 units has not been factored into this 4,500 square foot
number. And lastly, based on the recommendation this evening for the developers to work
with the village authority in Case #MIS 05-5502, I would Iike to point out that the La Pradera
homeowners are presently unable to vote on issues which affect our communities via the La
Pradera Homeowners Association. The La Pradera Homeowners Association is run by the
board of directors, Alexis, Girard, John McCarthy and Bob Truyjillo and they are the only
members with voting rights.

Our only recourse to oppose the propositions of our developers is via these hearings
in front of the BCC. Approval of this authoritative request will strip that recourse from La
Pradera homeowners. Please consider these facts in your decision. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much, Mr. Cooke. Is that it? Is there anyone
else that would like to address the Commission? Okay, Mr. McCarthy or Ms. Guerrerortiz?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Thank you, Madem Chair. 1 just want to make some
statements on some things that were brought up. Robert George is the director of the
Groundwater Bureau. 1 don’t know how many groundwater discharge permits there are but
the fact that he doesn’t know who our operator is is not surprising to me. I think that our
permit writer is actually on matemity leave currently. It's Melanie Sanchez so she would be
best to ask.

The wastewater treatment plant is not in the 100-year floodplain. That's not allowed
under any rules in the County or in the State and ours is not in the 100-year floodplain. There
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was a 50-foot setback originally but actually the floodplain has shrunk in that area with some
more détailed Study recently so it’s probably a much larger setback but I haven’t measured it.

And with regards 1o water usc in La Pradera, they are really low. Karen Torres has got
that inforniation available. She sent it to me in Excel and anybody can get it; it’s parl of the
public record. Thailk you, _

: CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Mayfield.

.. COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, Ms. Guerrerortiz, has
anybody or has the Edvifonihent Department looked at your wastewater treatment plant and
heard some comments from the public that there are some concerns with smell, maybe
leaching? Do you have those results you could present to us? _

' MS. GUERREROQRTIZ: The treatment plant has had site visits a few times by
the Enﬁq@@t Department since it was constructed and putinto use. 1 have no knowledge
of any probléms the department’s ever raised with me or raised to the owners of the plaat. 1
agree ihat'ihﬂre‘qrq somie concerns ouit there, things that we need to address, some
improvemients we need io make and we’re moving forward with those. But the Environment
Departmen considers the plant in 100 percent compliance.

.+ - COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, on your comments there, if
you are proposing 10 increase density and you're already indicating there are some
improvements of.sb;he adjustmients you feed to make, are you going to have those
adjustrients brought to us before you inrease this density? Are you going to address those
concerns you al currently have right now?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: The changes that we propose to make at the plant are
actually in front of the Environment Department currently. And then 'm still trying to figure
out causcs of things. So why we’re moving, we've got two parallel plants there, We’re taking
the first plant that was a smaller plant out of service and going to bring the larger second
plant into service and then look at the first plant a little more carefully to see if we can make
some design changes to make some improvements with it. So we have any idea we'll make
design changes on that first plant.

The other changes that we're doing are related more to the pumping facilities
associated with getting the effluent to the different open space areas for irrigation.

COMMISSIONER. MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. On that note, so
what are the permits or what are you asking the Environment Department to do? To change
from one plant to a second plant?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: No, the second plant has already been approved.
What’s in front of the department is a renewal, it’s the five-year renewal that's the standard
practice with the Groundwater Bureau. But as part of that we have been looking at some
modifications with regards to the pumping facilities. And also just to integrate the plants
better, because we’ve always tried to set up the plants so that if one had to get shut down the
other one could come into play so we have backup systems, and we’re basically increasing
those backup systems now. That’s our intention.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: And if these density changes go through
your current existing plants will be able to accommodate?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Yes. Our current plant has the capacity of 40,000
gallons per day. We actually could serve a lot more homes than what we have in La Pradera.

(C&

.82/EB/98 Q3IAYOIIA AU 248



Printer Friendly View

Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Mesting of May 10, 2011
Page 99

And including if we could add another 50 and we’d still have more than enough capacity in
that plant. It was over-designed.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Mr. McCarthy, did you want to address the Commission?

MR. MCCARTHY' Yes, I had several closing comments. One is addressed {o
Ron Gallegos. Ron, the fence that’s still up; you're correct. That’s Joe Boyden's yard. He’s
doing construction now, but Advantage has taken all of their fences out. So we’ll prabably
remove that fence as well, but you’re correct, but it wasn’t Advantage’s fence. 1 don’t know
why you weren't noticed. We'll follow up on that with our addressing, We apologize for that.

And then in terms of the traffic impact, I'd like to invite the audience and
Commissioners’ attention to the fact that in Phase I, our existing approvals were for 11
condos, so by definition, if you multiply 11 times 1500 square feet you'd get, if my math is
correct, 16,500 square feet, and we also were approved for 32,667 square feet of commercial,
of which half could be residential. So that’s about 49,000 square feet that's currently
approved. And if you take 21 lots — and Matthew brought the correct point up that by
eliminating Lot 35 we’d have 21 units in the layout, times 1500, we're looking at 31,500
square feet.

So when you look at the change from the existing approval to what we’re proposing,
it’s just going from 49,000 down to 31,500, it’s easier to understand the statement that we
don’t have negative traffic impact. So 1 stand for questions from the Commission, and thank
you to the audience and the Commission.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mr. McCarthy,
were you able to look at these photos? Was a copy provided to you?

MR. MCCARTHY: No, sir, but I'm out there every day and 1 know that there
is a pile of debris, that it’s construction debris. There’s some asphalt and there's some broken
concrete as well as two piles, pretty high piles of dirt.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Mr. McCarthy, is this on development
property? Is this on a construction company’s property?

MR. MCCARTHY: No, sir, Where that’s located is - this phase here was
never built. It's approved but it wasn’t built. The yard in question is right down here in the
southwest corner and one of our neighbors asked us to remove it which we then did, but this
is an unrecorded phase, so it’s not in open space or anything, it’s just undeveloped land at this
point.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Mr. McCarthy, and I asked our recorder, but
wasn't it your testimouy a little earlier that this is just fill dirt and it’s all clean?

MR. MCCARTHY: What I had testificd — when we had origipally started this
development there was a mound of dirt here that was about 35 feet high. We moved that over
here and so there’s now — and that’s been reduced somewhat. So there's a large mound of dirt
at this location. There’s another mound of dirt here that’s clean fill, and then in front of that
there’s the two stacks of concrete, broken concrete and asphalt right here in this location. And
Advantage is in the process of removing that as well. So it takes a while to ship that out but
they're moving it.

Excuse me, Madam Chair, Commissioner, if I may say so, this was an allowed use

oK

T182-28-908 GIQYO03E HWITO D48



Printer Friendly View

Santa Fe County

Board of County Commissioners
Regular Meeting of May 10, 2011
Page 100

that while these phases were being built it was used as a marshalling yard and since we’re not
doing any construction right now it does need to be moved.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: And Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, how long
has this debris been sitting there if you have not been doing any construction out there?

MR. MCCARTHY: Well, the large pile has been sitting there since we moved
the large pile from here over to here. It's been sitting there for 2 number of years, probably
since 06, 07.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any further questions? And I do believe there’s no one else in
the public that wants to address us so unless someone would — please step forward.

(Duly sworn, Trish Trujillo testified as follows:]

TRISH TRUJILLO: The only thing I wanted to address is that 1 don’t have a
personal interest in this development other than a business relationship. From the very
beginning I've been the escrow officer closing a lot of these transactions. And a lot of the
changes that are taking place that I wanted to bring up have to do with our economy. A lot of
the changes in the structure of homes that are being built are being changed to accommodate
what can be sold in this economy. And I'm actually getting ready to close 14 home
transactions, maybe not $400,000, $600,000 or $800,000 homes but a $250,000 home that
could house your child, my child and your employees.

And that’s something that I want you to consider is that changes are taking place and
my number one — we’re living in an economy where my number one client right now are
banks. 1'm closing short sales, bank-owned property. But they’re working to fry to
accommodate homes for the average working person like yout and me and our children. I've
got four children here and one of my biggest things is keeping them here, and this
development is working to accommodate that with what we’re living with today. That’s all I
wanted to say,

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Ms. Trujillo,

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair, is the public hearing over?

CHAIR VIGIL: That’s what I'm trying to determine. Please step forward and
state your name,

{Duly swom, Kay Gillentine Britt testified as follows:]

KAY GILLENTINE BRITT: My name is Kay Gillentine Britt and I will be
very brief. Ms. Trujillo wants to speak to the emotional side of this with the economy and
everything and I would just like to say that I do not live in La Pradera. I grew up on the land
east of La Pradera. I rode my horse through that country before Rancho Viejo was there,
when it was still the Jarrett Ranch. And I’ve seen a lot of changes to that countryside over the
years and 1 grew up knowing Gene and Jane Petchesky my whole life. And yes, it's changing
and | know that we need some new homes for people. My children do not live here anymore.
They’ve gone back — they live in the Midwest right now.

However, there’s got to be some space left for those of us who appreciate the beauty
of this land and the open space is diminishing day by day here. I know that the Petchesky's
left their ranch as open space. I know that my father has tried to, for whatever reason, we
don’t own our ranch any more but it's been developed. There's 2.5-acre lots there. I don’t
want it to be any smaller than that. I like to be able to see the mountains. I like 10 be gble tg
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go and see the countryside and for the people who are able to ride their horses through there,
that was what that land, that we wanted it to be and that’s what I would like for it to stay as
much as possible, and that’s all 1 would like to say. Thank you very much.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Ms, Britt. Anyone else? Sceing no others, this
public hearing is closed and I'll tum it over to the Commissioners. Commissioner Mayfield
and then Commissioner Stefanics and then Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair. Just for the record, Steve, |
don't know how many emails [ received regarding this. I believe that some of them have been
forwarded to us but I just printed up two or three as I went through my email now. So we can
have all those placed in the record please. Thank you.

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, we'll do that..

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair, just as a quip, for all the
emails we received we might all have to recuse ourselves from making a decision about this.
I want to make a series of comments, First, Jack, could you talk about the Community
College District. This, La Pradera is in the Community College District. Correct?

JACK KOLKMEYER (Land Use Administrator): Madam Chair,
Commissioner Stefanics, yes. You want me to expand on that a little bit?

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Yes. Madam Chair, Jack, could you please
describe some of the purposes of purchases of land or development within the Community
College District.

MR. KOLKMEYER: Sure, 1'd be happy to, because it seems like this is sort
of a crux of the issue here and what 1 will say probably won’t make some of you happy but it
might make others of you happy. But the idea of the Community College District was a
mixture of everything — small houses, large houses, people with a lot of money, people with
no money. The idea was that you could have apariments next to large lots, and it was
configured in such a way that these developments would be built around community centers.
La Pradera was designated as one on the Community College District maps. And that meant
that those areas would be mixed use, mixing commercial, residential. Fifty percent open
space was mandatory for everybody. That's a lot of open space compared to what’s
happening in other paris of Santa Fe County.

So the all the things on the plus side, plus trails. You have the best trail system in the
Community College District in the county. It connects to the rail line, Excuse e, sir. Please
excuse me for a moment.

CHAIR VIGIL: Sir, you will have to step back we have a deputy waiting in
the back. You will need to step back and allow for staff to make their statements. You've
been given your opportunity. Please allow us,

MR. KOLKMEYER: So with the 13 village centers spread all throughout the
18,000 acres of the Community College District it was expected that the developments would
occur around those village centers. Two years after we did the Community College District,
however, we did a fiscal impact study. 1 don’t believe any of you — Commissioner Vigil, [
believe you may have known about some of that, And the consultant at that point told us we
had two many village centers, that we should reduce it from 13 to 7. And one of the ones that
Wwas not appropriate was in the La Pradera area, because there was concern that because of the
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existing neighborhoods there, Vista Ocasa, the other one that's over there, and the other areas
around Dinosaur Trail, that the mix wasn’t going to work that way.

Now, what we've seen in a period of about two or three-year segments after that
period of time, every one of the developers came in and asked for large amounts of
commercial, I think Oshara asked for something like three million square feet of commercial.
And then slowly but surely all the developers said, no, we can’t do the commercial. We want
residential. So ironically, we were turning back 1o the very things that our consultants told us
in 2001, that you’re going to have to go through some kind of a period of readjustment in the
Community College Dislrict, because you weren’t going to be able to get the commercial to
satisfy the residential because the residential wasn’t there, So it’s one of these conundrums
that we constantly find ourselves in.

So it seems to me now, fen years later, we probably didn’t go back and do the
adjustments the way that we should have, readjusted the village centers on the map from 13
to 7, which maybe would have solved some of this problem that we’re facing here today. But
it seems {o me right now, as the Land Use Administrator, because what’s being asked foris a
technique that gets my approval and even if you do that, you have to grant me the ability to be
able to do that. Even if you do it's still got to g0 back to the CDRC and the Board again.

.So the issue is, if there's 10 be a readjustment it makes sense right now. What is it?
And it seems like one of the adjustments is there has to be some kind of rearrangement of the
types of residential that should be included in La Pradern. So whether this is right or if it’s
wrong, I'm not sure, We're all able to grasp what the al] components of that decision are right
now, but one thing bothers me as the Land Use Administrator and that s the problem with
the wastewater,

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. Well, this has gone past my question

and I really appreciate your putting out the concept for people to get to. The reason I'm
asking the general question, Madam Chair, and I was using this analogy earlier with my
colleagues, when people move to the country lots of times they don't know what they’re
getting into. When people move and buy some place, lots of times they don’t know what they
have bought into in terms of what has been approved for the plans of the community, And I
think that some people who move into a high density area that’s already established know.
Other people who move into things that are considered urban sprawl don’t know that some
day it might be very dense around them. And I think that some people aren’t intimately
involved in every detail of the Community College District. So I think that’s the problem for
some of the people involved in this,

I think that there’s an issue with when a developer or purchaser of Jand makes that
investment under our code, under the plans they have the right to do things. But I'm also
hearing a varicty of concerns that have not been addressed by people who live in the existing
community. So when the County Commission approves things they are approving things to
be done according to certain standards, and I am hearing tonight that maybe not all of these
standards are addressed or are in place. Whether or niot there was development and then
problems occurred. It might have happened. Or whether there were problems from the
beginning; I don’t know. But I think we have some disconnect about moving ghead with
future plans when people in the community are very concerned about what they have now.

So I wanted to just put out there’s a variety of issues that have come up tonight and 1
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just wanted to verbalize some of mine while 1 listen to the rest of my colleagues. Thank you,
Madam Chair,

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. I believe Commissioner Anaya you were next.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Commissioners, staff, I'm going
to go back to some basic questions just so I can make sure I’'m in the right place. Madam
Chair, staff, tell me exactly how many total lots prior to this request to modify the plan, how
many total lots have already been approved?

CHAIR VIGIL: Ms. Lucero can give us that answer.

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I'm just trying to do the
math here and add these up. 1 believe it was 238 lots.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So Madam Chair, Ms. Lucero, this request, the
existing approval is 238 lots, plus a commercial lot?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, the commercial lot was
included in that total number of lots.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. Of that 238 how many are commercial
lots?

MS. LUCERO: I believe there was — well, they were approved for 1 believe
there were four commercial lots with a total of 32,000 square feet of commercial space,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Does this request that logistically would have to
go through CDRC and back here before it would go forward, does this request take away all
four of those commercial lots?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, what it basically does is
it converts those four lots into a village concept where there’s going to be live/work units. So
that would be the form of commercial that would exist within those lots.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So aside from the live/work terminology,
total lots, 238, of which four of those are commercial. In this new proposal, the total lots
would go up 117 238 to 249 total?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, as part of the math of
this request tonight, which is for the - to allow, well 21 now, 21 lots, so out of those 21, 1
believe that there would be ten new lots? Ten new lots. So ten additional lots. :

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So I'm just going to put some perspective
on this. We’re talking about a total master plan that’s been approved, combined commercial
and residential of a total 0f 238 lots. The entire discussion we’ve had tonight and the
concerns raised, the advocates and the people raising concerns, we're talking about a net
deviation of ten lots out of 238 to 248. s that right?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, the ten lots that are
being proposed, those ten lots are part of the master plat authorization that’s requested
tonight. In addition to those, as you’ll see in a few months when they come forward with the
master plan amendment application, there’s also an additional 27 lots that will be proposed.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay, so that's what I'm getting at. So when I'm
looking at this 22 number in my book here what [ understand that to be is that they already
had 11 of those approved, and that there’s an additional 11 that they’re asking for in this
request. Is that accurate?

MS. LUCERO: That’s correct.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So we had 238, and tonight’s action, if
it’s allowed to go forward would raise it ten lots?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, it would just allow them
— all tonight’s action is going to do — but it won't actually approve the additional lots. I just
want to make sure we’re clear,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So tell me, what did you say about 27 lots? I'm
looking at all the lots, trying to make sure I'm completely clear. What 1 understand that to be
is we're going from 238 to 248 with this proposed action to take it through the process,
That’s it.

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, for tonight’s request,
that’s correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: But whal you're telling me is in addition to
those ten Jots they’re going to come in with 27 additional lots, on top of what that {s, to take it
up another 27 lots?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that’s what they're
proposing as part of their master plan. So in total it will be the 238 original lots, plus 37
more. For a total of 273 lofs.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So of the — just a logistical question. Then
why in your summary when you tell me ~ and I’'m not picking on you. I'm just trying to
understand the logic in the framework of the recommendations and the information I have.
Then why on the issuc do you give me the issue as 22 lots at the top and then in the back you
restate that again and you say, recommendation, and you refer back to the 22 but there’s no
reference to the additional. So I guess what I'm getting af is if you bring it up in the issue and
then you — what’s the recommendation of staff and then you bring the 22 up? 1 think I'm
understanding that of those 22, 11 were existing and 10 are new based on the deviation of one
that I heard over here about a Lot 35 or whatever that was.

You're also saying that you’re going to bring back another item 1o hear that's going to
go through the CDRC and the Commission again? Or is that additional number of lots you
said that’s going to be part of the proposal that’s going to go to CDRC and back to us? Are
you following me?

MS. LUCEROQ: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I think so. Let me if 1
can just kind of clarify. The reason that we're only bringing up the 22 lots right now is
because that's the only part of the subdivision that they want to have a master plat for, Those
22 lots are the ones that they want to be able to create administratively ultimately. The
remainder of the lots, the additional 27 lots, those will actually be platted through the master
plan amendment process.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So thats not tonight at all.

MS. LUCERO: That’s not tonight at ail. So all we’re considering tonight is a
master plat to allow them to proceed under the master plat guidelines for these 22 lots.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. So Madam Chair, Ms. Lucero, along
those lines and now that we're focused in on only tonight, only talking about 22 lots, we’re

really only talking about 10 more Iots in addition to what they*ve already received approvals
for.

MS. LUCERO: That’s correct,
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Ten lots in the scheme of 238 plus ten.

MS. LUCERQ: Correct.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay. That being said, this is a question for the
applicant, and 1 don’t care who wants to answer it. The thing I heard, and 1 agree with
Commissioner Stefanics’ separation of issues. I can tell you that 1 completely agree with her
comments relative to things that maybe aren’t what they should be relative to sewer or
relative to cleanup. I think that’s a separate issue. I think that's a responsibility of all of you
to work with the community that you already have residents in to mitigate those issues and 1o
make it right. Just to put it blunt. I think that’s not the issue that we’re hearing tonight, but
that is very much an jssue that we've been discussing as a Commission in recent meetings
that it’s not only our obligation and responsibility as elected officials to make approvals or
vote and take action in accordance to recommendations from staff and feedback from the
public and even those applicants. It is our obligation to make sure that those people that are
fulfilling those build-outs are doing so in & way that’s in accordance with the conditions and
specs and regs and all that stuff. So 1 think I agree with Commissioner Stefanics. I think those
concems need to be addressed and those are separate issues.

Speaking specifically to the density issue, which I heard over and over and over again,
which is going to come up as part of the process at CDRC and then back probably as
discussion items at the Board of County Commissioners, I would presume. You're probably
going to have the same groups of people who are going to raise those concerns relative to
density. Does the applicant have additional space to augment the size of that 2.27-acre piece
of land higher? Is that possible?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, not if we maintain
the 50 percent open space.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, and 1 kind of was thinking ahead
to that that might be something that would come up. 1 thought that. And I guess I would go
back to our Land Use Administrator as a question. Because [ heard what you said and 1 heard
your follow-up. Part of my thought process when some of the communication was’ going on
was we go through a process and prior Commissions — 1 can’t speak to every single detail and
aspect, nor would 1 pretend 1 could, to what those Commissioners were faced with when they
were making those determinations. What I know is that they were bombarded with a Iot of
information and a lot of different aspects and the Commission at the time I think took an
aggressive step to do something that was fairly progressive in nature and took the Countytoa
different place. And I think some might say, well, maybe it was a bad place or maybe they
don’t agree with the place they took it to, and I respect that, but I think overa!l when you look
at affordability and other, trails and things that you mentioned, that it does bring forth options
that weren’t prevalent in other developments and a process that wasn’t prevalent in other
developments.

So I guess my question back to you is you said, and I think I agree with it, that there's
adjustments that we have to make. Do you feel the same way about those adjustments
associated with commercial? Would you apply that same logic to utilize potentially part of
open space to raise the density up a little bit to be more consistent with — maybe not more
consistent but more prevalent with surrounding areas? I mean is that even something that you
think is rational along the same thought process that you brought up?
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MR. KOLKMEYER: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, the point to what I
was trying to make about the adjustment was in fact the adjustment, what they're trying to do
to adjust from commercial, which no longer really works the way that it was originally
intended to be something else. So 1 think we have to take that into consideration, becausc if
it’s then going to be something else then it’s probably going to be some other kind of
residential. Becavse the commercial is really difficuit there, We have lots of commercial on
Turquoise Trail. Some is happening in Rancho Viejo. But it doesn’t appear at this point after
ten years that we’re going to — that adjustment about having about appropriate commercial is
going to work.

Where we’re going to hold the line as staff is we’re not going to go below 50 percent
open space. We're not poing to do it. That was the agreement that we made with everybody
that lived out there and we're going to stick to that as your staff. So, however a developer
wants to come in and accommodate that is probably going to have to be through them, if they
want {o rearrange commercial to some other kind of residential, our thinking would probably
be then they’re going to have to figure out how to rearrange the residential and the density to
make it work within the 50 percent open space.

Because if we give away the 50 percent open space — and we did that 12 years ago.
That was a key element to the Community College District. Several people have gotten up
here and said we're losing open space. That was the whole point of this to try to get dense
areas where we could have a wide variety of housing for people who were rich, poor, young
or old could live in 2 more community-type situation but certain things wete really important.
In fact that’s where the whole affordable housing ordinance started was with the 15 percent
open space where we got affordable housing at that particular rate.

But we don’t think we can jeopardize the 50 percent open space.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, | just want to be clear. I don't
think 1 said I wanted to walk away from 50 percent but I think what I heard from a lot of
people in the audience and otherwise was if it wasn’t exactly 50 percent 1 don’t think it would
undermine the whole integrity of the Community College District. I'm just going to leave my
comment at that and 1"d like to hear what some of the other Commissioners have ta say. |
think that there’s a process in place. I think that may be something that as you made the
comment about adjustments, maybe that’s an adjustment we need to look at, but that the
process, if we're talking not about the 27, Ms, Lucero, that potentially would be coming in.
We're not talking about that. We’re just talking about 22 and a deviation of not 11 but
actually 10, based on the one coming off the table. I think the process at the CDRC as well as
BCC and maybe some more thought and more interaction with not only these developers but
the other developers and the other community members in the Community College District
might be warranted if it's in the interest of the entire comununity as a whole. So those are my
thoughts, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. I will turn it over to you. May I just make a couple
of comments? Id like to remind our colleagues that we’re also dealing with an issue in the
Community College District that places the burden on the County with regard to a wastewater
treatruent plant and that’s Oshara. Now, Oshara, we did hear (estimony and we knew coming
down the line that it was in financial trouble. It was going bankrupt and part of the reason
why I think it did is nobody anticipated the economic downturn. We actually don’t have any
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policies in place to deal with economic downturns, and we know that this community does
not want to be put in the same place that we're having to deal with Oshara right now because
those peaple who own property there are between a rock and & hard place. They don’t know
what’s going 1o happen to their wastewater treatment plant. Their homeowners association
has gone defunct. There’s nobody there taking on any kind of a leadership role to make that
community happen. So all of a sudden the issues that they’re having difficulty with have been
brought to the County and we're asked 10 rescue them from a lot of the jssues that were
created because of the economic downturn, because there was nothing to assist this
development in creating a {inaudible]

I wanted to make that statement. And then I had 10 ask you, Jack. One of the issues
that I didn’t hear you address when Commissioner Stefanics asked the question about
highlighting the Community College District is that live/work spaces were imposed in that
district, and if I'm to understand correctly that actually exists in commercial developments
themselves, like the Turquoise Trail Industrial Park. It’s one of those concepts that has been a
part of integrated community mixed-use plans. Correct?

MR. KOLKMEYER: Madam Chair, that’s correct. It's been used from the
beginning. Now, maybe it hasn’t been used in the context of La Pradera and the subdivision
in the development that’s going on there, but that was a term that was used early on in the
development of the Community College District, yes.

CHAIR VIGIL: I just want to also state, my understanding because through all
the development review processes that we’ve gone through, the live/work space is actually
less of a traffic impact because the folks that live and work there stay there and there is the
traffic coming and going. At least that’s what I recal from the Galisteo property.

MR. KOLKMEYER: Madam Chair, that’s correct. In the traffic studies that
we've done in Rancho Viejo and with Oshara show less trips per day for live/work. That’s
correct.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. And one other thing that  also want to just put out
there with regard to the concerns of the community is you also don’t want this development
to go under, because if they do you really don’t know what’s going to come up if this
development goes under because what they're requesting, | think, is an attempt to assist them
in moving forward with this development in a way that would assist you in keeping that
development somewhat vibrant at least. There were, I'm sure you heard and 1 heard
testimony, that there were commitments and prornises made. The Commission can’t address
those. The only thing that we can address is what's in compliance and what can be in
compliance with the code.

Another question I have for Vicki is why the master plat — can this be done through
preliminary?

MS. LUCERO: Madam Chair, these lots could be created through a
preliminary and final normal plat procedure, however, because as the applicant stated that
they weren’t cerlain who the buyer — how the homes were going to be designed they wanted
the flexibility to be able to create the ot layout and lot configurations as the homes were
built. So that’s the reason for the master plat process.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Does the developer agree with that or did you have
another reason for going through the master plat process?
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MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioners, we have a specific vision
for a village with trails and interaction possibilities throughout the village. So we’re going {o
have some very, very odd-shaped structures, number one, if we were to build the whole thin g
at one time. Number two, we want individua! huyers to have the flexibility to tailor their
home occupation spaces to fit their needs. So that’s going to change the footprint. So we
would like to be able to come in and superimpase that jigsaw type of lot line configuration
pretty close to the final stages of development and if T may add one thing, please recall in this
Phase I that we’re dropping the commercial. So when we talk about ten lots or eleven lots in
addition to the eleven condos, that’s in lieu of the commercial, which already had a 50
petcent residential allowance in there.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Thank you, Mr, McCarthy, Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD:; Madam Chair and whoever can answer this.
Is there any covenants or restrictions that currently prevent live/work space in the homes that
are out there?

MR. MCCARTITY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, almost by
definition for Phase 1 approval it states that we have this 32,667 of which 50 percent may be
residential. 1t in an indirect way defines a live/work kind of structure even though that may
not have been the original intent, that’s effectively what it is. But 16 directly answer your
question, we do not have any kind of home occupation zoning unless it’s in the matrix that
the Community College District allows, and I don’t think that’s the case, nor do we have the
equivalent of the City’s RAC zoning, I think recreational arts and crafts zoning. But no, we
don't.

And &s a matter of fact, when we talk about live/work units, we're really talking about
single-family residential, and I think Vahid addressed this — single-family residentia! where a
music teacher or a tutor or someone else could invite their students into their home,
effectively, and legally conduct business, and I think I heard staff mention as long as there
weren’t more than six visits a day kind of thing that it would fit within some other zoning
category. But no, we do not have a specific zoning category for this.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. McCarthy, pethaps you can help me again.
Your last comment about 50 percent of the commercial was for 50 percent residential — say
that again and tell me what that equates to in units.

MR. MCCARTHY: Well, 50 percent would be 16,335, so if you divide that
by 1500 you’re going to have at least 11 units ariyway. That's on the 50 percent of what's
already approved. In other words, 50 percent of the 32,667 commercial, divided by two gives
you 16,000, divide that by the minimum of 1500 square foot units and we’re effectively not
asking for an increment in terms of approved space. It’s the conversion of using the already
existing comumercial of that commercial to flexible residential use.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, in Phase I, how
much of the commercial are you converting? How many of those four Iots in just Phase I are
you converting to residential?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, we’re suggesting
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that we do away with all of the commercial and for the sake of the technjcal description of the
commercial includes the condos. But we're doing away with all of the commercial, not just
the 50 percent share that's allowed. So we would be going again with my prior comment,
from 49,000 approved square fect down to 31,500 or so square feet.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any further questions? Seeing none, what’s the pleasure of
the Commission?

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissjoner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: 1 will move to deny the applicant’s request
for the master plat,

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. I have a motion to deny. Is there a second? Motion dies
for lack of a second. Is there another altemative motion?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair,

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, given my last couple sequencing
of questioning, keeping in mind the two issues are separate between the existing property
owners that I think have issues that I think need to be addressed and I thirnk we al! need to
learn rmore what those are, and then taking into consideration the question associated with the
total - basically with what you said and I guess I wish that would have been said at the
beginning and maybe you said it and I missed it. But the whole discussion here and concern
revolves around density as I hear it from the residents.

I'm going to make a motien to approve the process going forward which encumbers
going back to CDRC and coming back to the Commission. But I'm also going to ask as part
of the motion to do that that staff in coordination with the applicant as well as the feedback
you already heard from community members relative to the density aspect of the units
themselves, that that discussion take place and that staff consider that as what potential
allemates do you have as you go through the process because otherwise, you’re going to have
these same folks that are going to go to CDRC again and they're going to come back here
again and I think the interest is to try and figure out is there any balance or compromise
associated with some of those concerns. So ' going to move for approval that it continue
forward, given that the conversion is from commetrcial and it’s a net increase on this one of
ten lots total, but that there be some internal County efforts, applicant efforts to incorporate or
have discussion on options that potentially raise the density I guess is what I’m hearing, But 1
would move that.

CHAIR VIGIL: I have a2 motion. Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Madam Chair, I'll second it and I would like to
add an amendment that there be meetings between the developers and the residents. I just see
& lot of problems with regard to the dumping we saw, with regard to the wastewater treatment
plant, with regard to many things that were promised and were not followed through on. So if
I were to —this will come back to both the CDRC and the BCC and 1 would not £0, 1 would
not approve it I would not go forward with it any rnore unless I really see a good faith effort
on the part of the developers to work with the community to address those problems, and
there are problems.

I'would also like to say something to the commuaity, I think that what we’re seeing
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here is something that's happenmg across the United States. I think that the way that we are
deveIOpmg, the way that we envision ourselves as developing in America i{s changing, It’s
clianging | because of a lot of things that are out of our control. One if it is the cost of energy.
Otie'of it is the cost of land. The kind of development that we’ve done, that we’ve worshiped,
the 2.5-acre lot, when you think about it it’s the way of destroying the most amount of land
that we cail. And a lot of people talk about 2.5-acre lots and that's open space, butit’s not.
That 2: 5 -acre lot is served by all kinds of infrastructure, It's served by roads. It’s served by
electnc lines, and lt’s a way of actually destroying the most amount of environment that we
cari.

So I think that we have to relook at the way we develop in this country. We have to do
what I think is envision more in the Community College District, which is that we defer with
dense development and then ‘ve set aside a certain amount of open space that will preserve
the environment. So 1 think that this is a hard lesson for Americans to leam because we have
always had, we have always secn ourselves as having an unlimited amount of land and so we
should be ‘ble to develop however we want. But in the long run we have now eaten up a lot
of the land in Santa Fe County and if we really want to preserve the open space that we love,
the charactcr that we love dbout this counnty, then we're going to have to rethink how we
develop Thank youl.

- COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair,

CHAIR VIGIL Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, I would accept the friendly
amendment for discussion. I think in the Community College District it was put together,
centered around that methodology of more dense, cluster-type development throughout that
district, but I guess where I might differ a little with some of the comments would be that
there are segments within Santa Fe County that that's not the way of life associated with the
residents in some parts of the county. So I accept the amendment but ] think there are areas of
the county that don’t see that same need for cluster development. So I do accept the
amendment though.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, we had earlier discussion
about 1 guess a neighboring property, Oshara Village, and T know this body has also discussed
maybe a performance bond being put up by our developers, so if in case or if in fact this
development does go belly up, how do we make sure that the residents aren’t holding the bag
with the infrastructure that’s there. Is there any type of guarantees from the development
community that there are some assurances provided to this commumty? One, we spoke about
the wastewater system, that if something goes BWTY, they’re not gomg to be left holdmg the
bag with that wastewater system, or somebody’s going 1o be coming to this County saying,
iake it over. We cannot manage it anymore and we need the County to bail us out. And I
don’t know if that’s been discussed. I know we’ve —~ or at least I believe I've discussed that
there might be some performance requirements on some of our developers in the future.
Steve, is there anything in place right now?

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, we're just trying to
review what’s in place right. In the ordinance there is performance bonding required. It
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wasn’t in place in Oshara because it had already been developed, but there are requirements
in the code and they certainly can be beefed up in the rewrite. We’ll pay close attention to
that.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Would they apply to this development?

MR. ROSS: 1 believe the bonds have already been released because the
improvements have been completed.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Could we put that as a condition if they're
asking to increase the density in this area?

MR. ROSS: Commissioner, when they come in for the subsequent
development platting and plans, if (here are irnprovements, say, upgrades or increases in the
capacity, those would have to be bonded.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair, and the other
Commissioners brought this up. My thoughts to the development community, going back and
working with the residents that you currently have is one, I believe you should have
environmental certification on your wastewater treatment center, especially if you're
proposing to increase density. Two, testimony that was provided to us and pictures that were
provided to us, there is an eyesore out there of some serious debris. 1 would say at least 100
yards, maybe, from what 1 saw in the picture. 1 would think that just as a good gesture you all
would have that stuff immediately removed and hapefully not place any more in those lots.
That’s all I have to say. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. We’re going to take a vote on this. 1 just want to clarify.
This really just is a motion to approve a process. It isn’t a motion to approve a final product.
This process should be able, and I like the amendment that Commissioner Holiar provided,
this process should be able to previde a design and the opportunity for the residents in the
area, and I did hear the testimony today that there is a desire and there is a statement of
confidence that there has been good stewardship on this and if it’s the case that stewardship
should consider so that communication with the residents and the neighbors will continue. I
{hink once we approve this process we still have a lot of hoops to go through, just because
this process has been approved docsn’t mean this density is going to be approved. So it gets
really confusing to those of us who are here making decisions saying why are there so many
people here that don’t really like it?

But the fact of the matter is we don’t know what we like right now, because we’re not
taking action on any particular product. So with that I'm going to go ghead unless there’s any
more comments. All those in favor of the amended motion please say so by saying aye.

The motion passed by majority [3-2] voice vote with Commissioners Anaya,
Holian and Vigil voting in favor and Commissioners Mayfield and Stefanics voting
against.

CHAIR VIGIL: I hope that by the time this comes to us that we’ll have a
better idea of what this is going to look like, and we’ll have a better understanding from the
neighbors in the area that they clearly understand your intent to be good stewards. Thank you.
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XIV. A. A CDRC Case # ZJ/S 02-4325 La Pradera Master Plan
Amendment. Plat and Development Plan. Gardner Associates,
LLC and La Pradera Associates LLC (Alexis Girard) Request
a Master Plan Amendment to Allow for the Creation of 27 New
Residentinl Lots within the Previously Approved La Pradera
Subdivision and ta Allew for the Previonsly Approved 32,667
Sq. Ft. of Commercial/Residential Area, Parking Lot and 11
Condominiums to Be Replaced with 17 Single-Family
Residential, Live/Work Lots. The Application Includes
Modification of the Original Approval That Proposed the Use
of Reclaimed Water for Irrigation and Toilet Water Flushing
on All Private Lots. The Use of Potable Water is Now
Proposed. Reclalmed Water Will Be Used (o Irrigate Common
Areas Only. The Request Also Includes Preliminary and Final
Plat and Development Plan Appraval for 27 New Lots and
Several Lot Line Adjustments in Phases 2-6 and Four Master
Plat Lots Which Could Be Develaped Into a Totel of 17 Single-
Family, Live/Work Lots (11 Condos and 16,334 Square Feet of
Residential Space as Previously Approved to Be Converted to
Single Family Lots) in Phasc I. The Property is Located within
the Community College District, West of Richards Avenue
Between 1-25 and the Arroyo Hondo, within Sections 17 & 18,
Township 16 North, Range 9 East (Commission District 5),
Vicki Lucero, Case Manager [Exhibit 7: Letters in Support;
Exhibit 8: Letters in Opposition]

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, I'm taking the case for Vicki. This is & little
unusual. I'm going to give you a chronology of events. I's included in your staff report
on the top of page 2, On June 16, 2011 this case was scheduled to be heard by the CDRC,
However, the case was tabled by the CDRC because at the time the applicant was not
present. The case was then scheduled to be heard by the CDRC on July 21, 2011 due to
lack of 2 quorum. On August 18, 2011 and with only four members present the motion
cnded in a tie vote resulting in tabling of the case. Those minutes are included in your
packet as Exhibit H.

Due to non-action by the CDRC the applicant has requested that this case be taken
directly to you, the BCC for actioa. Note that the Land Development Code doesn’t
preclude this action and the BCC can act on this case or direct staff to wait for
recommendation by the CDRC. So, Madam Chair, I can go on and read the staff report
and you can take action on this or you can have me take it back to the CDRC for a
recommendation.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Shelley, so the first meeting
you said the applicant didr’t show up to the CDRC meeting?

EXHIBIT
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MS, COBAU: That’s correct. The cases went through the CDRC agenda
think more quickly than the applicant had anticipated and they arrived about five minutes
after the CDRC decided they didn’t want to wait any longer.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Then the second meeting there was not a
quorum of CDRC so no action was taken at all at that meeting?

MS. COBAU: There was no meeting because there was no quorum of the
CDRC. We have been having issues with members showing up on the CDRC.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: [ want to ask about that in a second. But in
the third meeting there was a quorum but it was a 2-2 tie.

MS. COBAU: That’s correct. Because we only had four members. So
there were two for and two againsL.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, just given the timelines on
the project and the fact that it went to the CDRC three times I don’t have a problem
hearing the case.

CHAIR VIGIL: Anyone else? Okay. This is a public hearing. The
applicant is here.

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, would you like to take a vote on hearing it
and then I’ll read the staff report on il?

CHAIR VIGIL: Well, is there anyone that wants to move forward with
this or is there anyone that wants to take a motion to send it back to CDRC? It’s your
pleasure. Do you want to move forward? Okay, I'm seeing a consensus to move forward.
Shelley, you can present the case,

MS. COBAU: Okay. Thack you. In the summary of the staff report there's
a chronology of events regarding La Pradera with approvals from 2003 to the present. it’s
kind of a laundry list of things that have gone on with La Pradera and 1 won’t go through
that. You can read that chronology. The applicants are now requesting a master plan
amendment for the La Pradera Subdivision in order to create an additional 27 residential
lots, The twenty-seven proposed lots will be created by adjusting lot lines of existing lots
to reduce the size of some of the oversized lots in Phases 2 through 6. The applicant
states that these smaller lot sizes are dictated by the significant changes to our economy
and the market demand for entry-level housing. Six residential lots from the previously
approved 16,334 square feet of residential space will be combined with 11 previously
approved condo units from Phase I, for a total of 17 lots, in order to create a village
concept which will have the potential of being live-work units.

The previous master plan approval was granted with the proposal of utilizing
treated effluent for irrigation of common areas as well as for toilet flushing and irripation
of private lots. The proposal was for each home to install a dual plumbing system. The
applicants are requesting an amendment to modify their original approval to allow for
irrigation of common areas only with reclaimed water. County staff has met with the
New Mexico Environment Department who stated that they are supportive of this change
because it is very difficult to control what individual property owners do with the treated
effluent which leads to a concern for health and safety.

The applicants are also requesting preliminary and final development plan
approval for the 27 new lots and several lot line adjustments in Phases 2-6 and master
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plat approval for 4 lots which could be developed into a total of 17 single-family, live-
work lots in Phase 1.

The project has been reviewed for compliance with zoning allowances for the
requirements of live-work units in the Community College District Ordinance, for water
and wastewater, for fire protection, for solid waste, roads and access, terrain
management, open space, landscaping and archeology, affordable housing and the
homcowners documentation will be revised should this be approved.

Therefore the staff recommendation is that the proposed master plan amendment
and master, preliminary and final plat and development plan are all in conformance with
the Community College District Plan and Ordinance and County Land Development
Code. Therefore staff recommends approval of the request subject to the following
conditions.

1. Provide a minimum of 8 residential units (30%) for affordable housing. A mix of
housing types is required for the entire development. The affordable housing lots
must be identified on the Final Development Plan. The affordable housing
agreement must be modified to reflect the additional lots and must be approved by
the Affordable Housing Administrator prior to this case being heard by the BCC.

2. Development of the Master Plat lots, which are located within the Neighborhood
Center, shall comply with the minimum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of .25 and the
maximum of 2.0 as required in the CCDO. This sha!l be noted on the Final Plat
and Development Plan.

3. Coordination with the Utilities Department on final modification of the water
lines and meter locations.

4, Modification and re-filing of Water Restrictive Covenants to reflect new
dwellings and maximum water use per dwelling prior to Final Plat Recordation.

5. The live/work units must be sold as a single unit/lot and can’t be
condominiumized or sold separately. This shall be noted on the subdivision plat
as well as on the individual plats and included in the disclosure statement.

6. The property must be braught into full compliance including rermoval of
stockpiles, trash and detritus prior to final plat recordation and shall be
revegetated prior (o final plat recordation.

And I would like to enter the first five conditions to the record, Madam Chair, and
note that I believe the applicant has complied with condition & regarding the property
being brought into compliance with code and they’ve removed the stockpiled trash and
detritus from the site. And I would just like that condition to be restated to say that the
property must be revegetated in these areas prior to final plat recordation.

Thank you, Madam Chair, and I"ll attempt to address any questions you may
have.

CHAIR VIGIL: Are there any questions? Commissioper Stefanics.
COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Shelley, on
condition number 3. Did staff consider the use of an independent water engineer?
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MS. COBAU: The conflict issue was resolved. I don’t believe Mr.
Guerrerortiz was involved with this at all, Rich Silva did the review and the Ietter for the
County Utility, and these conditions come from Rich Silva, utilities engincer.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So should we in fact ~ it says
coordination, future, going forward, not past. Should we in fact say something about it
would not be Mr. Guerrerortiz?

MS. COBAU: I believe that you could do that, Commissioner Stefanics.
We do have the letter in Exhibit D from Mr. Silva. Let’s see if I can find which page that
is. 1f you look on NBD-37, you can see that the letier came to Vicki from Karen Torres
through Rick Silva, the utility infrastructure manager, and those conditions were directly
from him.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. That seftles it, Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Further questions for staff. Seeing none, is the applicant
here? Please step forward. Is there anything you'd like to address the Commission.

KARL SOMMER: Madam Chair, my name is Karl Sommer. My mailing
address is Post Office Box 2476, Santa Fe, New Mexico. 1 represent Gardner Associates
and La Pradera Associates and those are just two entities that are owned by John
McCarthy, Alexis Girard for Greer Enterprises and Bobbie Lee Trujillo who’s here
tonight. Also with us tonight is Oralynn Guerrerortiz. She’s the project engineer. She’s
been on this project from beginning to end. She can answer just about every technical
question and code question you might have. We'll be as brief as possible. Staff has on a
few occasions now drafted a very, very tharough report and they have accurately laid out
the request and the conditions of recommendation. The recommended conditions are
acceptable to my client.

What I'd like to do is just briefly tell you why we're here and then go through
what it is exactly what we’re asking for, how we’ve addressed the application, and then
conclude by what we’ve done since May when this was in front of you with the master
plat request. At any time if you have any questions we can answer them even out of order
if you think it’s appropriate.

Why are we here? We are here for one principal reason, and that is that the
downturn in the real estate market in this country and in this community has had a
devaslating effect on many, many property owners, developers, homeowners and
landowners, banks, everybody has felt the pinch. This developnient is no exception.
We've seen in this community several failed developments, at least one in the
Community College District. We saw how Suncorps which was doing Rancho Viejo
packed up and left. So the downturn in the economy has had a devastating effect.

Well, what effects are those? It has principally tightened credit on all sides, and
by that I rnean banks are less willing to lend to horrowers who buy, and banks are
constrained from lending to landowners who develop. So the consequence has been a
drop in the market. Well, that drop in the market has a consequence on the banks’
portfolios, and what you have is banks have a loan/value collateral that they must
maintain or they start to call the notes, even though they might be performing. When
prices of real estate fall, their collateral drops, and what we are trying to do is maintain
our collateral, put this development in a secure financial position so that it can move
forward and eontinue (o be a successful venture that will provide housing to working
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families in this community, That's why we’re here. We wouldn’1 be here but for that
feaso.

We're here also asking you for a master plan amendment that was fully within
your authority. We're not asking for a variance, we’re not asking you to change any
policy. We're not asking you to do anything otber than add to our density by less than ten
percent or about ten percent, which is well within the Community College District
constraints. But we’re not here just with our hands out asking you, We have done
everything we can possibly do to make this a successful venture, They have parinered up
with a local non-profit. The are producing housing or working families in chunks of 14
that has cost them money by donations of lots and the like. They have done everything
they possibly can to shore up their position and this is part of that effort.

What are we asking for specifically? Mr. McCarthy will go through it. But if you
look at the staff report we’ve met every condition of approval in our last approvals and
we are in agreement with every condition that they have here. I will not belabor the point
about the economy but in short we’re asking for an increase in density, & recognition that
the water use that we have established is sufficient, even though we have 1o transform the
effluent use from private to the common areas for the reasons that are in the staff report.
We are asking for the conversion of the master plan of the commercial units to live-work
units because the rnarket does not support small commercial in this kind of environment
and in this development.

We have also addressed the complaints that have been voiced by some of the
neighbors. What are those complaints? They dea! with basically the untidiness of the
development and for a while there the property was being used as a stockpile for debris.
There were areas that were being used for the storage of soils and other materials
inappropriate and unsightly. Those have been cleaned up. And as Ms. Cobau has
indicated the only condition Jeft is revegetation of the areas that have been scarified by
virtue of that storage area. All the other stuff has been taken care of,

They’re in compliance with all the permits from the State Environment
Department. The issues related to the wastewater treatment plant have been complied
with and Ms. Guerrerortiz can tell you all about that if you have any questions.

The one rernaining issue that I think remains with some of the neighbors and most
of the in the Vista Ocasa neighborliood which is a legal non-conforming development
made up of 2.5-acre and 5-acre lots directly south and adjacent to this development center
around density, This Board knows and has had much experience in the Community
College District. The Community College District is where this Commission has put its
money in infrastructure. It has said this is where we’re going to grow. And the policies of
the Community College District are to densify and avoid sprawl and 2.5-acre and 5-acre
development and bring people around transportation, the utilities, and still at the same
time maintain 50 percent apen space. Well, that’s called density.

And essentially, this plan is well within the limits of the Community College
District Plan. The Visia Ocasa people to the south are worried. Their worried about the
values to their 2.5 and 5-acre properties. They're worried about what the neighborhood
will become if more people move in. Well, they live in the middle of the Community
College District where density is called for. There are floor area minimums, not
maximums. Now, I understand their concems and we’ve met with them over the course
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of the months since we were last here in May, and we are not going to be able to resolve
among us the density issue. They would like us to come down in the density requests. We
are simply unable to do so. This development is on the order of being able to make it. We
are in the process of doing everything we possibly can. The density is a key component.
We're asking about ten percent of the original density increase, which is again not
outside the realm of the policies of this Board and we are maintaining the 50 percent open
space.

The buffer, in terms of the distance to the houses to the south in Vista Ocasa is
being maintained. We're not moving houses into that open space area. Essentially what
we're doing is taking larger lots and reducing their size and increasing them by 27. We're
not going to be able to negotiate that because there is no room for us to be able to do it. |
wish there were because we'd avoid a controversy. We can’t. We simply can’t.

On all the other issues related to cleanliness or the appearance or compliance with
those we are and have addressed them. With that I’'m going (o tum it over to Mr.
McCarthy or to any questions you all might have of us related to this application. And I’ll
just simply conclude and turn it over 1o the experts.

CHAIR VIGIL: Karl, let me just find out if anyone has any questions of
you. Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam Chair, Mr, Sommer,
have you had meetings since our May meeting with the residents of La Pradera?

MR. SOMMER: Yes, there have been many meelings since then with
members in the association and there were people outside the subdivision that also
attended.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Right. But I’'m mostly concerned with
whether you've had meetings with the people who actually live in La Pradera.

MR. SOMMER: Absolutely, and I believe that where we started out in
May, we’ve come a long way in terms of coming to agreement with people inside the
development.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any other questions? Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you, Madam Chair. You have
association rules or regulations?

MR. SOMMER: Yes, there are covenants and there arc bylaws in the
subdivision.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So do the covenants — let’s talk about
solid waste. Do the covenants allow individuals living there to use the County or to
engage the services of a company?

MR. SOMMER: I'l! lcave that to Mr. McCarthy but I believe the
homeowners association — do they do it individually, John? 1t’s done on an individual
basis and they’re not required to use Environmental, Inc. or anybody. There is no
requirement either way.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. I guess I should ask staff this
next question. Is there any way — this development is not tied to County water,

MR. SOMMER: It is.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: It is?
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MR. SOMMER: It is.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: So the new units would be tied to
County water as well.

MR. SOMMER: As well.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Okay. That's all my questions for right
now,

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Mr. Sommer, you made a
comment earlier about the surrounding neighbors and you said that they were in the
illegal lots and then you said non-conforming, Is it —

MR. SOMMER: Legal non-conforming.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay.

MR. SOMMER: Their subdivisions were legally approved.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: It’s non-conforming use. I've gol it. That’s
the only clarification I wanted to ask, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any other questions? Procced with your
preseniation.

MR. SOMMER: I'll turn it over to Mr. McCarthy for his comments and
again I encourage you, Ms. Guerrerortiz has the technical information if you have
questions about that,

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Welcome, Mr. McCarthy.

[Duly sworn, John McCarthy testified as follows:]

JOHN MCCARTHY: My name is John McCarthy. I reside at 825 Allendale
Street in Santa Fe, and I'm the managing member for La Pradera and Gardner Associates for
La Pradera Associates. We've had to adapt to the changing economic times as Mr. Sommer
has mentioned. What that means specifically is that we’re building homes from the $229,000,
three-bedroom, two-bath, two-car parage range to up around $325,000. This is where our
demand exists in Santa Fe such as it is right now.

Since the primary concems relate to our relationship to our La Pradera homeowners
I"d like to mention right now that afier our May 10% meeting we asked several members of the
La Pradcra Homeowners Association, about six of the homeowners to form an advisory
committee to assist us in communicafing and making the correct decisions for everyonein La
Pradera moving forward. Some of those suggestions included our housekeeping and we have
cleaned up the site as mentioned. We've also put the second wastewater treatment plant on
line. We shut down the first plant and have extensively rebuilt it. So currently we have
resolved those problems and what we’ve also done as a result of meeting with the Vista Qcasa
neighbors as well as our La Pradera neighbors is addressed the density issues and we have
made changes based on meetings with the advisory committee and with our homeowners.
Specifically, the changes that we made were to reduce the density in the Phase 1 area from 20
originally requested own to 17 units. Now those 17 units we ended up with in Phase 1 are
comprised of the originally approved 11 condos and only six additional units that were put in
place in substitution for the commercial so the commercial is eliminated.

To put the phase 2-6 request in context, all but about 27 of our lots out of the
originally approved 152 lots in phases 2-6, all but about 27 of those lots are about 80-foot
frontages. So our request is to make it so those 27 supersized lots, and what I mean by that is
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they had frontages up to about 135 feet, so our request is not to decrease the size of the norm
but to decrease the size of these extra large lots into conformity with the mean size of the lots,
And the reason for that is that we can build any of these homes on a 78 to 80-foot lot size.

Secondly, we’ve conformed with all of the conditions we’ve represented at the time to
our Vista Qcasa neighbors and that includes setbacks from Dinosaur Trail, we provided a 195.
foot buffer minimum. We added an additional road section because of concerns about traffic
next to Vista Ocasa. So we don’t need those extra lots. I could point out where the majority of
those lots are located for the benefit of the Commission, but essentially they’re on the
southern tier, adjacent to the 190-foot to 300-foot buffers that exisi between our neighbors to
the south. So I'd stand for questions.

CHAIR VIGIL: Questions? Commissioner Holian.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. Will future residents
purchase just the lots or will they purchase a lot plus a residence?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, our preference
would be to sell lots because that was our original business plan. Part of our adapting to the
current market conditions is we find that we have to work with builders in conjunction to put
these homes up. The short answer is both are available but the likelihood of an individual
buying a lot without a home is very remote because the lending community will not extend
credit for a lot and in many cases won’t extend credit for a builder to build a spec house. So
what's being defined by external issues is that you have to have a buyer in place before you
can build a home and consequently absorb the lot.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. McCarthy. And then
have some questions that have to do with water, so is there going to be a presentation on that?
Should 1 save those questions for later?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, 1 can attempt to
answer those and ask Oralynn for supplemental information.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: So my first question is is all the treated effluent
now going to water landscaping it or is some of it still going to homes that exist?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, all of the treated
effluent is now going to common area landscaping.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Okay. And also has the water treatment — are
there one or two water treatment plants on the property?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, there are two
discrete plants,

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: And have they been inspected recently?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Conunissioner Holian, we're obligated to
provide monthly reports to New Mexico Environmental Department and that goes into melrics
to make sure that we’re in compliance.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: And I remember reading something in the
packet that you were going for a five-year renewal of the permit and I just wondered if that
had been approved yet.

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, we do not have that
final approval. It’s quite a lengthy process.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you. And I guess one other question I
have is with regard to the live-work units. Has the developer done, or whoever, done any
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surveying to determine what the demand might be for those kinds of units out there in our
community?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Holian, we constantly do
update ourselves, but if I could describe the unit that we’re building in this way. It's basically
a detached single-family home that has an exterior entrance that would allow, for cxample, a
music teacher or tutor or someone other of that type to be able to maintain privacy while
having a home occupation business. So our product differentiation is not such that it takes us
outside a standard single-family home. It enhances it in those cases where someone would like
to have a home occupation,

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN; Thank you, Mr. McCarthy. That’s all for me.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair, and I apologize if
somebody’s already asked this question. Are you willing to accept all the conditions?

MR, MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Stefanics, yes we are.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Mayfield,

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. A question for
staff. Shelley, did you guys go out and do a site inspection of this property?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayficld, subsequent to the initial
application and some of the complaints that were received regarding the wasiewater treatment
plant, myself, Ms. Lucero, members of Mr. McCarthy’s team and the New Mexico
Environment Department went out and inspected the wastewater treatment plant. We have
also sent code enforcement out there to make sure that the debris piles and stockpiles were
removed as required. So I've been personally to the project and members of my staff have
been out there on several occasions subsequent to this application being submitted.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you. And Madam Chair, Mr.
McCarthy, you indicated that there’s a homeowners association out in the area that kind of
looked at some of your suggestions and they are participants in this also?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, the advisory
committee is comprised of the six or seven homeowners in La Pradera, and they’re the ones
that have been working with us closely.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. Did those folks go
out and do the site inspection along with you? Were they invited to?

MS. COBAU: I don't recall any members of the homeowners association were
there the day that 1 was out there for site inspection. I believe it was just Mr, McCarthy’s team
and County staff at that time.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, and Mr. McCarthy, I may have
some questions for Ms. Guerrerortiz. But one thing, is the wastewater system plant 1 online or
offline?

MR. MCCARTHY': Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, Plant #1 is
offline. Plant #2 which is a new, state of the art plant is operating. Both plants can be cross-
connected at this point.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, why is Station
1 offline?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, because it has
been in operation over five and a half years and in addition to the lightning strike there was
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wear and tear that we had to come in and totally replace all the purnps, essentially all the
pumps, install lightning arresters and do a general rehab of the plant.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, on that point,
are you guys going to rehabilitate Plant 1, are you in the process of doing it, are you going to
do it in the future? How are you going to interconnect the two if this is offline?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, we have
completed the rehab at this time. We have also completed the cross-connect plumbing and the
only issue remaining is cross-connecting the clectronics. We have two discrete electronic
control systems and we're trying to combine those but still maintain the ability to operate
these plants independently.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair and a question
again for staff. Shelley, so on your scenario that you gave to us in your memorandum, under
the wastewater and water, is this for Plant 1 or Plant 2, what the capacity is?

MS. COBAU: Commissioner Mayfield, this is going to apply to the entire site.
We do have, i you look at the NBG-41 in Exhibit D, there is correspondence from the New
Mexico Environment Depariment that indicates that their discharge permit remains fully
effective and enforceable by the New Mexico Environment Department who oversees the
wastewater treatraent plans at La Pradera. The County doesn’t oversee those, and [ would just
say that Oralynn can answer specific questions I'm sure regarding the functionality of those
plants.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, but Ms, Cobau, going back to
your memorandum, the current capacity of the plant exceed 40,000 gallons per day. So is that
the capacity of both plants together, or just one or just two?

MS. COBAU: I can’{ answer that question, Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Ms. Guerrerortiz?

[Duly sworn, Oralynn Guerrerortiz testified as follows:]

ORALYNN GUERRERORTIZ: I'm Oralynn Guerrerortiz with Desi gn
Enginuity. We’re at 1421 Luisa Street. The two plants together have a capacity of 48,000
gallons per day.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: What does each individual plant bave?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: The first plant has capacity of 12,000, and the second
plant has a capacity of actually 30,000, so together it’s actually 42,000.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Ms. Guerrerortiz, what is the current
homeowners out there using?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: I believe — John would know this better — 70 homes
arc connected. We’ve got flows of about 8,000 to 9,000 gallons a day.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: And just from testimony back in May there
were concern with Plant 1. What were the big issues if you guys had capacity on Plant 1? You
weren't being able to sustain the 8,000 at the time, you had 12,000 capacity? What were the

issues?

MS, GUERRERORTIZ: No, actually, we were having problems
communicating with the plant and we found that the plant had probably either dealt with a
lightning strike or & surge. Several of the pumps had becn blown, and so the plant wasn’t
really operating. So that’s why we hrought the other plant on line immediately. Luckily, we
have two parallel plants and they’re very well interconnected.
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COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: And with firture growth of this proposed
subdivision, what do you anticipate capacity coming in?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: We anticipate a flow close to 32,000 gallons, so we
have excess capacity in our plant.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: And going back to the permitting, you still
need to wait on some permitting from the state?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: We made our suhmittal, I think it was in February.
The Environment Department is 2 little understaffed currently and our staff planner went on
maternity leave for several months. She said becanse we've never had an issue with our plant
we’re a fairly low priority, so we’re kind ol low on her pile. But she’s told me that the
submittal is complete and we’re just waiting to get to the top of the pile for it to move
through.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Could you give me a statement of this
somewhere, how do you get back to online? You don’t have to have it permitted to getit
online? You don’t need final approval to get it online?

MS. GUERRERQRTIZ: When we got phases 2-6 approved, we actually
constructed the second plant fully, built the entire thing out, and we had it just sitting on the
ground not operating. We filled it with clean water and left it there. And so it was always
ready to go.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, do you have it online now?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Yes, it’s currently working, It's actually an Arenco
plant that’s set up as a number of pods, and so we’ve brought several pods online, and as we
find we need more capacity we can add additional pods. Not add them, just tumn them on.
They’re already out there.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Do you need state approval to have that
operating plant online right now?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: No, we have our staie approval.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: For Plant 1?7

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: For both plants, sir.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: For both plants.

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Yes.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: So then whal are you waiting state approval
for then?

MS. GUERRERORTIZ: Oh, it's your renewal that happens every five years
when you have a groundwater permit. Every five years you're required to resubmit and Jjust
tell them we know where you are and kind of document the capacity and where the current
flows are and that kind of information in a nice clean package. So we did that as is required.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Okay. Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any other questions? Seeing none, is there anyone else
from the applicant that would like to address the Commission? This is a public hearing. s
there anyone out there in favor of this project that would like to address the Commission?
Would you please stand and come forward. Is there anyone else? Please come forward. And
you do need to get sworn in. And you can, sir, wait and get sworn in.

{Duly sworn, Ellen Heath testified as follows:]
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ELLEN HEATH: My name is Ellen Heath, and I live at 65 Bosquecillo in La
Pradera. And ]'m coming here, ] own 2 home in Phase 1 and I'm coming here in support of
the revised master plan. 1 also served on the advisory committee that Mr. McCarthy in the
effort to develop a consensus on the revision of the plan. And I know that there’s concern
among some of the original owners in La Pradera about dropping property values and the
increased density that’s being asked for. And I'm coming from the position that the world has
changed around us and that we’re being asked to change with it in order to gel things moving
again, and that this is a good way for us to start here.

With regard to the details of the master plan, none of us on the advisory committee
like the idca of the commercial area, and we didn’t think it was viable anyway, and so the
live-work homes seemed a really good alternative. When we were concerned about the
number of them the developers agreed to reduce the number to everyone's satisfaction.

1 can see people who are accountants, teachers, consultants, therapists, moving into
those homes and being quite an asset to the community, so I'm very much in favor of it. And
with regard to the increased density in phases 2-6, a ten percent increase does not seem
excessive to me. And also there’s a concern that even if the master plan is approved the
buyers may not necessarily come. And my perspective is affected by the fact that 1 drive
through Oshara every day and it’s a very sad reminder that a wonderful idea can fail in this
economy, and I hope that doesn’t happen to us. And I know that we need & certain number of
homeowners paying dues to maintain our landscape and our roads and our community areas,
and ] know that we need a cerlain number of homeowners to bring the dream of La Pradera to
the reality. And we all bought into that vision and hope that it will succeed.

And there’s no magic bullet under these difficult circumstances but 1 think this master
plan gives the developers the flexibility they need in order to adapt to these very difficult
times and to ensure that all of us in the long run have made a very good investment in this
wonderful jdea. And thank you very much and I hope you will approve.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Ms. Heath. Next. Please state your name and
address for the record and be swom in,

MICHAEL HENDRICK: My name is Michael Hendrick. I live at 103
Bosquecillo in La Pradera, in Phase 1.

[Duly swom, Michael Hendrick testified as follows:]

MR. HENDRICK: Like Ellen Heath did I'd like to speak in support of the
revisions. Ellen was very thorough. There’s not a lot I can add to what she said. I really
reiterate the notion that situation at Oshara, we'd hate to see that repeated in La Pradera. T
personally feel, living in Phase 1 as 1 do, 1 think Phase I and 2-6 will all benefit if we have an
increased number of homeowners living out there. | think one issue that will improve will be
safety. The more people we have living out there the better we’re going to be as far as being
safe and free from robhery and that kind of thing.

Families that are moving into phase 2-6 now are young families, most of whom have
children. They are people who are where I was 40 years ago, probably where a lot of you were
then too. This is a big step up for them, to own their own houses, detached houses. These are
nice houses, and { think that the plan, in addition to the things that it does for La Pradera that
Ellen has mentioned, basically supports some of the goals that Santa Fe and Santa Fe County
have in terms of providing housing for people that otherwise could not afford to live in the
Santa Fe area. This project addresses those needs.
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1 understand, I've talked to people who live up in Vista Ocasa. ] understand those
concerns, Those are nice houses. They’re big lots. They’re horse properties. If I lived up there
1 might feel differently. But I dont. I live down in La Pradera and I think that the plans the
developers have will benefit everybody that currently lives in La Pradera and the people who
will come in later. Some times some people have concerns about the work-live arrangement.
My understanding, and you're better informed than I am, obviously, but I think pretty much
anybody in the county can have a live-work situation in their house as long as they limit the
number of people who come on a daily basis to see them, whether an accountant, an attorney,
a tutor, a piano teacher or not because there's not going to be people flooding in here. We
were at a meeling and someone was concerned that the person was going to buy a house, they
were going to operate a church and there’d be 300 people coming in there on Sunday
moming. This is ridiculous.

The work-live notion is very modest. It will not increase density, to my understanding
anyway, much at all. Again, as Ellen said, the idea of the commercial property was a nice
idea. It was part of the Community College District idea. It was a good idea; it didn’t work. It
didn’t work at Oshara, and there are a couple of businesses at Rancho Viejo that are hanging
and there in fact you approved a liquor license for one of them tonight. It’s a new restaurant
that took the place of Lucky Bean and we hope the Capitol Grill does well, There's a lovely
market there, the Rancho Vigjo Village Market that seems to be thriving, but there's just two
small businesses. So that concept didn’t work.

Well, now let’s try somiething different. Let’s build some affordable homes, We've got
the Community College which is a resource. We've got the church. We’ve got the area where
growth is beginning to happen in Santa Fe. Some people don’t like that; I can understand it.
But this is something that's going to be positive in the long run and I really, sincerely dont
think that it will negatively affect the folks up in Vista Ocasa, They’ve had to live with
Rancho Viejo to the south. We're a much smaller operation. There won’t be much traffic and 1
think basically this will work,

I’m soiry to be so long-winded. Thank you for your time.

CHAIR VIGIL: There’s a question for you. Hold on, Mr. Hendrick.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Hendrick, would you support this applicant
at this time if the density would have increased in the Phase 1?

MR. HENDRICK: It did. We’ve increased — we've added 17 units 1o Phase 1.
They’re right around the corner from my house.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: As I’m reading your letter and the staff
recomnmendations it went from 21 to 17. So clarify that for me. I guess I don’t understand
what you mean.

MR. HENDRICK: 1 think there were some situations — when they took the
commercial property, the square footage and divided it down, there were lots very close to
commercial property. Now, one in particular would have been impacted by houses very close
to it and the buyer had no idea it would ever be there. Several properties. So these ~ I think
there were two, possibly three — these owners were concerned about this. They bought lots,
built houses with the assumption that they were going to be looking at what might be
commercial property down the road much later. And now they were going to be locking at
houses close to them that they hadn't anticipated. So the needs of those individuals, the
advisory committee met with the developers on behalf of the homeowners and argued for a
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reduction of density because of that fact. Because these were existing houses that were there
and in good faith had not expected to have [inaudible] So that’s why it dropped from 22 to 17,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Okay, Madam Chair, | wasn’t picking on you,
Mr. Hendrick. I was just reading your letter and you’re supportive in your letter. You say, I
favor the developers® plans to increase density in all phases. I understand their concems.
However, the developers have modified their original La Pradera plans and are building four
fewer homes in Phase 1.

MR. HENDRICK: This is because they were affecting homes that were already
there,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any other questions. Thank you, Mr. Hendrick. Is there
anyone else who’s in favor of this development that would like to address the Commission?
Hold your hand up or forever hold your peace, because there will be a closure of the public
hearing afier we hear from the opponenis. Seeing none, Mr. Graeser, did you want to speak in
favor? Okay. We're going to now here from those who are opposed lo it. Mr. Graeser.

CHRISTOPHER GRAESER: Good afternoon, Christopher Graeser, 227-M
East Palace. I'm an attorney acting under oath. 1 think the primary concern— I do represent
several neighbors in both Vista Ocasa and La Pradera, And there’s three primary reasons they
object here. The first is simply a procedural one. As you heard, CDRC mect on this, they heard
it, they took a vote. It was a tic; they had to wait for their next meeting. The developers are
under a time crunch and they don’t want to have to wait for that. But you know what? The
code requires them 1o go to CDRC., Article V, Section 5.2.6.b of the code says any substantia)
change in tand use or an increase in density or intensity of development in the approved
master plan requires approval by the County Development Review Committee and the Board.
It has to go to CDRC and CDRC has to recommend approval. That hasn’t been done and with
all due respect I think that needs to happen before this Commission can act on it.

It’s not just a hoop, it's an important part of the process because the CDRC is charged
with evaluating the application on a number of bases, among those, impact on adjacent lands,
viabilily of proposed phases. That’s what we’re here talking about is the viability of this
development. The CDRC needs to look at that and make a recommendation o you so that you
can act on the basis of that recommendation and with the benefit of that recommendation.
This isn’t a situation in which the CDRC sat on this and didn’t act for six months. There was
no quorum one month. That’s not fair to the developer but it happens. They met on it. They
tried to act. They didn’t get a motion passed so we simply have to wait for the next meeting,

The second one is a fundamental faimess issue. [Exhibit 9] In 2005, when this was
approved, it was an initial approval and an amendment, the developers met with the neighbors
and they made an agreement. There was a lot of back and forth. There was a lot of negotiation
and they reached an agreement op density and on lot layout. In fact they agreed on everything.
There was one remaining issue which was they didn’t agree on the width of the buffer and in
fact the CDRC, or the EZC at the time simply accepted the buffer the applicants were
proposing and nobody appealed that. But at the time what got them approval is the developer
agreed to reduce the density of lots in phases 2-6 from 201 to 158, and to put the large lots
along the southern side of the development which faces Vista Ocasa. And those were two very
important points of the agreement. And now they’re asking for a do-over on that, They made
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their agreement, their business plan didn’t work out, and now they’re coming to you fora
bailout. And simply that bailout is on the backs of the Vista Ocasa residents.

The concern — what’s the point of making an agreement if it’s not going to be an
agreement, it’s going to change as market conditions change. It's not like no one understands
that market conditions change and as Mr. Sommer said this development is on the brink or on
the border of being able to make it, but it would be worse is for the development to be
approved and then it still to fail, and then to have all these small lots out there with no
developer working on it.

The second issue just has to do with the submittals. You can look at this as a ten
percent increase. You can also look at this as 2 new 27-lot subdivision, 27 plus 6-lot
subdivision. We don’t have particular heartburn with the change from the commercial fo the
residential so we're not making an issue of that. But adding 27 new lots, that's a good sized
subdivision that would come before you and there have been issues withthis subdivision.
There have been utility issues; the reclaimed water thing didn’t work out. The septic treatment
plants weren't working, they were stinking up the neighborhood, and for that matter there was
junk all over. None of that was cleaned up until they needed approval to come back and it’s
already been a couple months and T don’t think anybody, at least that I represent has
confidence that in fact those utilitics arc going to continue working, the septic is going to
continue working, that water lines are adequate to serve all this development and just being
split. And we don't feel that the developer has made full new submittals for what is just going
to be an increase in intensity. It simply is not well enough thought out at this point. It'snota
minimal change; it’s a significant change.

1 don’t want to give the impression that my clients aren’t willing to work with them,
As Mr. Sommer said, quite honestly we have no common ground; there's nowhere to go. It's
simply a decision that this Commission necds to make. As far as what we're asking for, we're
asking for you to deny the amendment, to uphold the origina] agreement that the developers
made with the neighbors and that the neighbors relied on. The gentleman that just spoke, Mr.
Hendrick said, well, we reduced the density from the initial proposal because people were
living there and they hadn't anticipated new houses and in good faith they didn’t expect new
houses. Well, you know that applies to my clients too. And they did in good faith because
they in good faith negotiated.

We're asking, if you do approve it, which we request that you do not, that you do not
allow administrative approval of the lot layout, which is what they're asking for, since the lot
layout is such a big issue. The negotiated agreement was that the large lots would be along the
southern boundary. If we allow administrative approval of lot layout then that’s not a public
process and we don't really have input on that very significant issue so we’re asking you not
to allow that to be done by the Land Use Director but to require it to come to committes.

And we ask you not to allow subdivision of any of those lots on the southern
boundary.

The third issue is the covenants. [Exhibit 10] The covenants of the subdivision and
Commissioner Stefanics, you asked ahout covenants. Well, in fact the covenants prohibit
subdivision. Section 3.2, no subdivision of any lot shall be permitted. T understand the
Commission doesn’t have authority to enforce the covenants but I think the covenants give
you an idea of what everybody in La Pradera bought in expecting, and what the neighbors
expected to see and what the developers initially intended. Now, they don’t want to comply
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with that. So while you can’t enforce that covenant, that would have to be another one of my
clients to enforce that in a separate action, you can - you have full discretion to deny this
because it doesn’t comply with the agreement originally made in the concept that everyone
originally had.

Calling a 135-foot lot supersized I think ignores the real issue which is they were big
because the agreement was made, and the issue is density but the issue is significantly lot
layout also. That’s all 1 have if you have any questions.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you. Are there any questions for Mr. Graeser?
Commissioner Mayfteld.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, and Mr. Graeser, I don’t know
if you're the appropriate person to answer this, but does the homeowners association meet
regularly? Are there regular meetings?

MR. GRAESER: I'm sorry, Commissioner Mayfield. 1"m not the person who
can answer that. I'm surc that one of the applicants could.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Would someone like to answer that from the applicant’s end?
Do the homeowners association meet regularly?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, there is
mandated annual meeting with the homeowners and with this current situation since I
believe February we've had repeated meetings with our own homeowners to which the
public at large was also invited to those meetings. The public was notified within 200 feet
of La Pradera boundaries.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Mr. McCarthy.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Mr, McCarty, We are on the section of the
hearing to hear from the public with regard {o those who oppose this project before us.

Can | see a show of hands of those who oppose it? Okay. And how many of you would
like to address the Commission? All of you who would Iike to address the Commission
would you please stand and be sworn in simultaneously?

[Duly sworn, Ron Gallegos testified as follows:]

RON GALLEGOS: The name is Ron Gallegos, 120 Old Dinosaur Trail.

CHAIR VIGIL: Welcome, Mr. Gallegos.

MR. GALLEGOS: As | said, myself and my neighbors are here to oppose
this action, The first thing, we are a liltle insulted that they didn’t feel it was necessary to
abide by the CDRC’s decision and come forward and basically say we don’t care what
the say or what they’re going to do, we’re coming before the BCC. 1 think that says a lot

to the constituents that the developer can not abide by the rules and everybody else will
have to.

Another thing, they're talking about all the meeting that were had with residents
of La Pradera and you did ask a question about where were the meetings held with the
owners of La Pradera. Residents of the surrounding arcas don’t attend those meetings.
We did have one mecting with them at the Community College, very contentious
between the residents of Vista Ocasa and residents of La Pradera. It was essentially, the
tone of the meeting was that no concessions would be made. Shortly afler that meeting
Mr, McCarthy contacted residents of - most of them were from Phase 1 that were
concerned about the commecrcial plan that was scheduled for that area and they arranged a
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deal with the residents of Phase 1 1o eliminate the original plan and go with a lower
density. That’s why you have the individuals here saying we support this because that is
the area directly surrounding their property lines and they could get the reduced density
that they were asking for.

They are so — first of all, commercial property in that area which as we all know
they never had any intention of them building, They’re also being threatened with failure
as the Commission was. 1f this doesn't happen, we're going to fail, It’s going to be like
Oshara. You’re going to have to pick up the pieces, scared the residents of Phase 1. If this
doesn’t pass, if you don’t support this we’re going to fail just like Oshara and that’s not
what you want, They were speaking about the buffer that we have with Rancho Viejo.
That’s a very different story. The buffer is at least 600 feet so it’s quite a bit of a
difference, and there is no thoroughfare through that area. It’s all open space. So it’s not
like the one we had originally negotiated with La Pradera which is much smaller than 600
feet. And like the Jawyer said, the reason thesc supersize lots are 5o big along that area is
because that’s what was negotiated. And these lots in Phase 2 actually happen to share
property lines with myself. That’s one of my big concerns. That's dircctly going to
impact myself, just like it was directly impacting the residents of Phase 1.

1 feel for their financial position. | own property around Santa Fe and we all come
into situations such as this, but it’s not the County’s responsibility to provide collateral to
2 builder. The CDRC tabled it last and the reasoning behind that was that they allowed La
Pradera to meet with the residents of Vista Ocasa to try to work it out as CDRC and BCC
have recommended several times in the past [inaudible] We did meet with their lawyer
this past Friday and pretty much the outcome was we’re not willing to do anything, We
did try to suggest several options, options that would even allow them to have the
collateral if they would, but if conditions improved that they would go back to the lower
density, but it was made pretty clear that they weren't willing to — they were supposed to
get back to us but it was made pretty clear that they weren’t willing to do any negotiating
with us. The negotiating was already done; they took what they had to the Phase 1 people
because it looked bad to have residents of La Pradera here objecting.

Commissioner Mayfield, if you recall, you had seen the pictures of the waste that
was there before and they said that they made a good effort to clean it up. They make it
sound like it’s all taken care of but essentially what they did is they took the large debris
out and then they just spread the rest of it out into the depressions that were there. So if
you walk out there it's debris, aggregate, tree stumps, other such construction materials
that were just spread out over that property, probably raised it up 2 good foot or more in
some areas,

Their lawyer talks about abiding by the Community College District. Well, they
asked 1o be in the Community College District. They can’t use that as a ploy. Our 2.5-
acre lots, we had an expectation. We came to an agreement in 2005 that that's the way il
was going to be. He also used words like anti-spraw! to kind of go with Ms. Holian who
is anti-sprawl.

That pretty much covers everything. I’m willing to answer any questions.

CHATR VIGIL: Any questions? Commissioner Mayfield.
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COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: | have a question for staff. Madam
Chair, Mr. Ross, Mr. Gallegos and also Mr. Graeser brought up maybe that we should not
hear this based on our rules, Can you give me your thoughts on that please?

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, I was just talking to
Jack about that and I understand it has been on the CDRC agenda without a decision and
the decision was made to bring it up because normally three times is the limit of the
notice. The code limits the viability of the notice to three meetings. Otherwise you have
to readvertise the whole thing and start over again. So the decision was made to burnp it
up.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, Mr. Ross, does the code
allow it to be remanded directly to us or does it say it has to be noticed again?

MR. ROSS: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, it doesn’t address
this specific situation but it does address the three-notice issue.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, Mr. Ross, what is your
recommendation to us as legal counsel?

MR. ROSS: Well, I don’t think it offends the code to hear it. The CDRC is
Jjust a recormmending body on a master plan; you’re the final decision makers.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any questions for the testifier? None. Thank you very
much. Next.

[Previously swom, Adriene Simpson testified as follows:]

ADRIENE SIMPSON: My name is Adriene Simpson. My address is 15
Los Caballeros.

CHAIR VIGIL: Please proceed and welcome.

MS. SIMPSON: Madam Chairperson, Commissioners, ] think none of us
are really — I wish this was a two-part argument. None of us are against the changes that
were made in the commercial part of this development. All we're opposing is the 27 lots.
So we’re not being unreasonable. They can do whatever they want except for those 27
lots as far as we're concerned. Because we had this argument in 2005. And pait of the
reason that Rancho Viejo is probably successful is that it is surrounded by larger Jots.
That was part of their recipe for success there. Now we’re talking about taking the larger
lots, of which large is kind of a euphemism. I don’t think any of them are even as Jarge as
lots in Phase 1.

So they're proposing to divide those down into tiny lots and 1 think the only
reason we're here really is because of finances. Their note is coming due and they need
collateral and it's all been devalued and somehow I supposed the bank is valuing it by the
lot. So by approving these we're letting banks dictate the development of Santa Fe
County, basically. I'm sure the economy is a variable to dictate development I suppose,
but in this case we’ve already made some concessions. It’s not like they can’t move
forward. I think (hey're about 40 percent bought out of the lots that are available with at
least 60 percent of the lots still to be developed.

So now they are proposing to degradate the neighborhood more by dividing these
into the tinicst lots they can, and then partnering with Joe Boyden, the builder, to
complete them. I don’t know how many of you saw the Channel 4 news story on Joe
Boyden and the quality of the homes he built in Edgewood that are in question. I've seen
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the quality of the homes that are going up in Phase 2 and they’re nothing like the quality
of the homes that were in Phase 1. We had no problem. When I moved out there 25 years
ago [ was in a conforming Extralerritoria! Zone area that was 2.5-acre minimum. There
was nothing illegal or non-conforming about them. That’s how it was. I thought the area
would be developed — this property had about 80 homes on it.

So now I've accepted the fact that the Community College District development
program is a fact of life so I'm accepting that there’s four times already the amount of
homes that would have been on there. And it’s supposed to be dictated by water
requirements. I think the original 2.5-acre parcels were based on the availability of water
and now that they have County water out there there is no limit. There’s literally no
maximum of homes per acre. So maybe the water's not limited but their wastewater
facilities are questionable at best. I'm not sure how everything is operating now. 1 know
obviously we’ve gone over the problems in the past.

1 was under the impression that the first wastewater plant, or the second one that
is now supposed 1o be operating, all this time it’s been a big holding tank that they were
just pumping over to the other one. There was no trealment going on there at all. Now, |
don’t know what the status of that is. It just goes to show that this is a scramble to save
themselves. So they’re not going to invest anymore in infrastructure to dig up the street
and put in the proper water lines to these lots. The County is probably going to approve it
because they have no regulations and codes like the City of Santa Fe. So these are going
to be homes that once again, are not going 1o be up to code. Well, they!l be up to County
code but there is no County code. So they're going to be up to whatever the Utility
Director thinks is okay.

A 3/4-inch service line is not going to serve two houses efficiently. They’ll have
water bul they won’t have the proper pressure. And they’re not going to dig up the street
and do it the way it should be done. And we did meet with Mr. Sommer this week (o try
and come up with an alternative with the collateral situation. We agreed that maybe they
could add some more lots on the interior, still leaving the exterior lots bigger in line with
the way Rancho Viejo was developed and hopefully any future development. And we
also suggested that maybe Phase 6 take on more lots because the likelihood of them ~
Phase 6 is the big debris pile, basically, The likelihood of them investing more money to
put the infrastructure in there to complete Phase 6 might be questionable. So if they
added more lots there we may never see them in reality.

So 1just want to say that I don’t think that the bank should be dictating the
development of Santa Fe County and that they should stick with the original agreement or
meet with us and agree on a limited number of lots on the inlerior and in Phase 6. That
was the original intention, I believe, of the CDRC to delay this was so that we could meet
and come to some sort of agreement. But they don’t want to negotiate, so that was a
waste of time.

COMMISSIONER ANAY A: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Did you provide any number of lots that you
suggested? A specific number of lots?

MS. SIMPSON: Ten.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: You said you submitted, as a group you
submitted a recommendation.

MS. SIMPSON: It was an oral suggestion at the meeting. We were there
as a group. Nobody objected to that.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thaok you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Any other questions? Ms. Simpson, where is Los
Caballeros in relation —

MS. SIMPSON: In Vista Ocasa.

CHAIR VIGIL: Where is it in relation to La Pradera?

MS., SIMPSON: It’s on the ridge right above La Pradera. I look down.

CHAIR VIGIL: You're on the north side?

MS. SIMPSON: On the south side. The freeway’s on one side and I'm on
the other.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. I understand. Thank you very much, Ms. Simpson.

MS. SIMPSON: And as far as the 2.5-acre lots being horse properties, I
have one of the horse properties out of the 38 or so homes out there, there are six of us
with horses. It’s not some sort of elite community. And most of the people are the same
types of people that are buying into this. They’ve been there for years, it seems like to the
people that are buying into this new phase of La Pradera. The Phase | La Pradera homes
cost probably three to four times more than any of our original homes did. So we’re just
trying to keep a median home price out there, somewhere between $250,000 and
$350,000, I suppose, just to maintain our property values, And also to discourage the
gang signs that bave been turning up on all of our junction boxes and things around our
neighborhood ever since these new lower-cost Homewise homes have gone in there. I
don’t know. I'm not saying that they're all gangsters over there but it’s a different kind of
neighborhood than what we’ve had in the past,

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much, Ms. Simpson. Is there anything
else you'd like to add?

MS. SIMPSON: No, thanks.

CHAIR VIGIL: Next. Please state your name for the record and your
address.

[Previously swom, Maureen Cashmon festified as follows:)

MAUREEN CASHMON: My name is Maureen Cashmon. 1 live at 20
Arroyo Viejo Road, and thank you for letting us address you. 1 was proud of the group
when this first plan came before the EZC and the EZA and we negotiated in good faith.
The homes that were proposed, the density was way too high. We negotiated down, the
Commission, the EZA approved a lower density. They thought that La Pradera had
negotiated in good faith with us and they thought that the reduction in density was
appropriate. And even though we requested a 300-foot buffer like our neighbors, Rencho
Viejo have given on the other side of the development, the Commission at that time, or
the EZA felt that 195-foot buffer was adequate, even though the Community College
District plan allows for special provisions for existing neighborhoods.

Now to go ahead and change the density and if you approve this you are bringing

it very close to what was originally proposed. We’re asking this Commission to keep that
good faith effort that you gave to us as voters, We know economic conditions have
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changed. I can sell my house if I choose to right now, but it’s at a very different econormic
condition than it was in 2005. La Pradera can sell those lots right now. At market value,
just like I would have to sell my home at market value, not what | hoped to get in 2005;
what is existing right now. This is America. That's what happens. They took an
investment risk. They were hoping to realize a profit just like my home. When [ sell I
hope to realize a profit. Right now we wouldn’t sell our home, We first love where we're
living, but we wouldn’t sell it. It would be very different than what we could get in 2005.

The Commuaity College District, I have pored over that since 2005 when we met
and we discussed La Pradera. One of the things, one of the centerpieces of the
Community College District Plan allows for we don’t want the sprawl. We want mixed
use commercial and residential development. So we can have a rich network of highways
and roads that everyone doesn’t have to go into town. We can reduce the traffic on our
infrastructure by eliminating that commercial development, which was envisioned,
maybe a little coffec shop, maybe a little bit of ice cream store that my children would
bike to, Now that lias been eliminated.

[ understand why Phase 1 might not want commercial development, and we can
live with that. But ] think also if you approve this what you have done and what the last
night is you pitted neighbor against neighbor. You heard people from Phase 1 talk about,
well, we negotiated with the developer to reduce the density in Phase 1. Our people in our
devclopment have tried to talk to the developers and saying, okay, we understand you
want more density. We don't believe it should happen. But if you do, please don’t put it
on the side right next to the existing neighborhood.

Now, to say that the CDRC met three times, well, we’ve been here for all those
meetings. It was not our fault that the developer didn’t show up at the first meeting and
we waited, and the CDRC waited, and they said we will give the developer a certain
amount of time 1o show up. The developer didn’t show up. So to say now, okay, three
times, but now you have to go ahead and Jook at this, it should go back to the CDRC.
However, I sit on boards for Santa Fe Public Schools, so I know also too that CDRC is
only a recommending body. You are the approval officials.

I know that La Pradera has said that they’ve tried to be a good neighbor.
However, 1 can tell you many in the existing neighborhood of Vista Ocasa do not believe
that and one example, and 1 think there is some disappointment, some outrage to be back
here in front of this Commission. La Pradera decided they were going to gate our road
that belongs to the County. That we have used for many, many years, Only, only until we
hired a lawyer at our own expense did they decide they would not gate those roads. That
was a suggestion from Phase 1. They wanled a gated community. We don’t want to live
in a gated community, This is Santa Fe. This community should be for all of us; not fora
select few, But it was only until we’d hired a lawyer to stop those gates going up — we
{ried to talk to the developer and say, don’t put up those gates. How are our school buses
going to get to our community? Well, we'll make sure that we open it up. But we said,
what happens when the school bus comes early? Well, the school bus has to reroute
around it. That’s not being a neighbor.

So we're asking, we’re asking that you keep the faith that we had when we came
back her and we negotiated in 2005 with the EZC and the EZA. They approved a
development, We know market conditions have changed. Market conditions will change
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again. We all believe that. Whether it’s in five years or ten years, this will have changed.
We are a dynamic community. We're a dynamic country. We will get back to where we
were. We're asking don’t make a short-term decision that has long-term consequences for
our area. If you do decide to approve this, we ask, and I think you've heard everyone
from [inaudible] say please do not put that density on those lots on the south side. Put
them up next fo the highway. Will that take the developer some effort to do that? Yes.
But we shouldn’t have to have the density next to us.

And so that’s — we would like you to first of all honor the - I know everyone has
said they're okay to let the commercial development go. I’m not necessarily in agreement
with that but that’s a decision of this Commission because later on, Rancho Viejo, when
they started out could not support a coffee shop, could not support a grocery store.
They’re supporting those now. Later on the commercial development might support a
litile book store, a little coffee shop, a little ice cream place. That's part of the
Communily College Disirict Plan. So everyone doesn’t have 10 come back into town to
get basic things. To have a community. A community is more than just houses,

So we would ask you not to support this plan as it is being brought forward to
you. Il you do apprave it we are asking that you do not approve the way that they want to
put those 27 homes. I find it interesting that Phase 1 is supporting (he development
because the contractor/developer was willing to negotiate down a level of development.
We from Phase 2 through 6, and this has been a history of that property, 2 through 6,
we’re going to put in the high density there.

‘We’ve lived there many, many years. We understand, as Ms. Simpson said that
times have changed. We have changed. We support the Community College District. But
don’t just gut and pick and choose from that plan. The whole point of that was to develop
mixed use, residential, commercial. That was the plan. I've seen that plan work in other
conmmunities. 1t isn’t easy to get to that point but it does work. It may take Jonger than
what you hoped and that was part of the thing with Oshara. By the time they finally got
their approval market conditions had changed. Does that mean that Oshara’s concept is
dead? No. It may come back. But will there be somebody different developing that?
Probably. And will it take many years? Sure.

Santa Fe has been here for over 400 years, We’ve got a rich history. La Pradera
will be here for many, many years. Vista Ocasa has already been here for many years. So
we're asking you please do not support 27 more lots in phases 2 through 6. Honor the
commitments of previous Commissioners, commitments to this community.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you, Ms. Cashmon. Anyone else? Do you have any
questions of Ms, Cashmon? Okay. Questions? Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, | have three questions
and whoever can answer them I’d appreciate it. On the Phase 1 build-out, is that 100
percent? What'’s the percentage on Phase 1?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, Phase 1 had
originally approval for 80 dwelling units, of which 11 were the condos. Out of the
remaining units we have sold approximately 61 of the standard lots, and that includes
duplexes. So we're up around 68 units sold.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you. Madam Chair, Mr.
McCarthy. Phase 2, has anything been built on any piece, any lot in Phase 27?
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MR. MCCARTHY; Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, in Phase 2
there have been 15 lots already built upon and lomes.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Is that 1-5 or 5-0?

MR. MCCARTHY: 1-5.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you. On any other phase has
anything been built?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, in Phasc 3
the similar number has been built.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you. Madam Chair, a question for
Mr. Ross or Mr. Kolkmeyer. Would there be anything right now to prevent & homeowner
in Phase | or the current homeowners in Phase 2 that have built, or Phase 3 to come here
and ask us for a lot split to put more density on the current lot they own?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayficld, as part of a
previously approved subdivision with a pretty strict water budget I don’t think you could
anticipate any further land divisions will be occurring in La Pradera Subdivision.
Certainly someone could come in and ask for a variance and there’s nothing that would
preclude them from doing that but it wouldn't be supported because it wouldn’i have the
water. I'm sure that the covenants in the subdivision themselves prevent further
subdivision.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: But Madam Chair, Shelley, that’s kind
of like what we're asked to do right now on this Phase 2. There was alrcady agreement a
while back that was approved by this Commission and now the applicants are coming in
and asking us (o change those lot lines. So why would that prevent somebody who's
already purchased & home and owns a home on one of the existing lots to come and ask
for a variance to split that?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, just let me go
through the numbers and maybe it will make it easicr to understand. Phase 1 was
originally approved for 69 residential lots, 11 condominiums, 16,334 square feet of
commercial space, which is much more than a small bookstore, and 16,334 square feet or
residential space, which were I guess the live-work units. Phases 2 through 6 were
approved for 158 residentia) lots for a total of 238 residential Iots, 16,000 square feet of
commercial and 16,000 square feet or additional residential.

Now they’re coming in with & cutrent proposal of 271 residential lots as opposed
to 238, 11 of which can be live-work. I don’t think that it’s unusual for a developer to
come in prior to development of subsequent phases and ask to modify that phasing and
the ideas that they had. A master plan is just an idea.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair and Shelley, could the
developer come in and ask for a modification of Phase 1 on the vacant lots they have?

MS. COBAU: They could. They’d have to get approval of this body
before they could do that and there would be a public hearing process.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, But Madam Chair and
Shelley, the homeowner who’s already purchased on Phase 1 could not come and ask for
a variance to split that.

MS. COBAU: Yes, they could. They could come in and ask for a variance
unless they were subject to covenants and restrictions by the subdivision that would
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preclude them doing that. We don’t — the County doesn’t enforce those covenants so
there would nothing from that person coming forward and asking for a variance, Whether
or not it was supported would depend upon the conditions and ceriainly things like water
availability and everything else. But there’s nothing to preclude them from coming
forward.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, in staff’s opinion should
the developer be subject to the same covenants?

MS. COBAU: Well, they are. I think they participate in the homeowners
association and are subject to the same covenants.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. That’s all the
questions I add. -

CHAIR VIGIL: Did you want to add something to that, Mr. McCarth

MR. MCCARTHY: Yes, Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield. There's
two distinct issues here. One is that when we purchased the land it was already deed
restricted for the purpese by the sellers for the purpose of avoiding guesthomes. So no
matier what size of the lot the deed restrictions preclude coming in and asking for
additional dwelling or lot splits on a lot, no matter what size,

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: On that point.

CHAIR VIGIL: On that point, Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, was it those same deed
restrictions that referred to a 1,500 square foot minimum house size or is that different set
of restrictions that are referenced in some of the documentation I have in front of me?
Was that in the same document or was that different? There’s a document in our packet
that says there’s a minimum size of a house of 1,500 square feet. Where did that come in?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I believe there's
two separate documents. The one that restricted 1,500 square feet per dwelling unit, and
it was interpreted through an affidavit of the people that placed that restriction that the
1,500 square foot was total not deeded. But I believe it was a separate document that did
deed-restrict the land from further subdivision for the purpose of guesthouses.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Separate from the 1,500 square foot
document.

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I believe that is
correct. We bought the Jand in 1999 so I'd have to refresh my memory, but I believe
that’s correct. But the condition does exist, whether it’s in one document or two.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any further questions? Okay, is there anyone else
opposed to this project that would like {o address the Commission. You need (o be swom
in. You weren't sworn in with the original group. | need to ask one more time, anyone
else opposed that wants to speak 1o this, because after this the public hearing will be
closed. Please state your name for the record and your address and we’ll have you sworn
in,

JANE GILLENTINE: My name is Jane Gillentine and [ live at 2236 Calle
Cacique.

[Duly swom, Jane Gillentine testified as follows:]
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MS. GILLENTINE: Madam Chair, Commissioners, I represent the
forgotten neighbor to the east. My family owns five lots directly east of this. We have not
been involved. We have reccived mail letting us know of your meetings and the CDRC.
We have not been involved in any of the meetings nor have we been invited. This
development was presented to us when it first started. The large lots adjoin ours as does
some of the open space. If was presented to us &s a phased in large lots, not so large,
smaller, smaller. This present plan destroys that. It is our land. We’ve owned it over 35
years and we would like to see some integrity remaining out there.

Our other major concern, and we don’t live out there any more so this is a concern
for the people that do live out there, A 24-foot wide roadway is not going to
accommodate the kind of traffic this development is going to bring, 1 think you should
give it really serious consideration. Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Thank you very much Mrs. Gillentinc, This will close the
public hearing and I}l just defer io my Commissioners up here in terms of what direction
they would like to go. Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, 1 have a guestion going back
to a comment that was made by one of the individuals that came forward of staff. It had
to do with the timeliness or lack thereof of a commercial development within a
subdivision or an area. Does staff want to comment on the comment that was made that
today might not be the right time to deal with commercial here but the future could be the
right time? Does staff want to comment on that in the context of everything that’s
happening? What comes to mind, it may be & lot different but a scenario that comes to my
mind is Eldorado.

Eldorado was subdivided and it was absolutely no commercial. Do not do it. No
way. We don’t want il. We'll go to Santa Fe for our commercial. And now you see that
it’s an essential part of that community in that segment of Eldorado that makes a lot of
sense for commercial, So it maybe wasn’t the right time in 1976 or 74 or whenever it was
originally developed by AMREP but it cértainly is now. Jack, do you want to comment
on that? Having been part of the Community College District Ordinance and the
development therein, Shelley, you as well.

MR. KOLKMEYER: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, there's
actually do things that have gotten complicated here. One is the types of centers that were
designated in the Community College District, Employment centers, village centers, and
neighborhood centers. Again, this is 12 years ago when this was all created, so the idea
was there would be a difference in scale of what would happen in these particular types
of centers. Employment centers would be predominantly commercial with other mixed
use. Village centers would be in the larger residential centers, and the neighborhood
centers would be in the smaller subdivision areas.

Secondly, the idea of mixed use was originally to be a mixture of not only just
commercial and residential but other things as well — institutional uses, open space, open
community areas, And what we found, in 2005 we did a fiscal impact study for the whole
Comumunity College District and what was suggested to us at that time was that there
were 00 many village centers in the whole Community College District and there may be
too many neighborhood centers. We didn’t redo that at that time under the assumption
that the developers who came in would make those kinds of decisions themselves and
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come up with the appropriate kinds of development. But what we’ve found now, as has
been mentioned by all sides of the argument here is that the times have changed.

So the request here, part of what is adding to the density discussion is that to
eliminate some of the commercial for what7 And that has been for live-work which we
still consider a form of mixed use, and to continue to have the open space but to continue
to make up the difference with residential. So the problem, and again your example of
Eldorado — of course none of that commercial was even built in the subdivision of
Eldorado. It was built in the outside subdivision.

But the point is we’ve had to adjust somehow in our thinking about what was
originally intended from the Community College District to what we’re seeing happen
right now, which is a shifi of some kind. The problem for all of us is shift to what? How
are we supposed to make the decision about what's right for the amount of commercial?
What's right for the mixed use concept that has now asked to be changed and to move
forward, And I think the only way we really get there is through this public kind of
negotiation,

This is a really good thing for us to be discussing because this is going to set the
precedent for a lot of the other smaller neighborhood type centers that are going to occur
thronghout the Community College District. So how we arrive at those numbers we’re
not really sure because we can’t say a definitive number, like Shelley said before, 16,334,
that’s a lot of commercial space for a neighborhood center. It's not going to support it. So
what do we pick? What number do we pick and how do we do that? And I (hink it really
is a combination of having the neighbors and the developers really work this out.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, I went back and I apologize
to anybody that thinks I wasn’t paying attention because I was looking down, but | went
back and read twa to three times the comments and discussion that took place at the last
meeting, and during that discussion I was asking a whole lot of questions as were my
fellow Commissioners about what was going on with the last phase. And if you
remember there was a lot discussion about, are we talking about 22 units or 2171
remember Shelley and staff was probably frustrated with me but I was trying to really get
to the core of what are we really doing here at the last meeting. And we had a long
discussion about what’s reasonable and what makes sense? We talked a little about the
commercial aspect at that meeting as well.

And when we left that discussion, the discussion was to go forward with allowing
the 11 actual 10 additional units if you go back and look at the minutes. And then what
was — and it was our other staff member was presenting. Her name escapes me right at
the moment — Vicki — Vicki was presenting. And | said you keep bringing up this other
factor, 27 units. Well, we're back here to have the discussion on the 27 units again. You
have the same community members that have voiced concerns with the project, and you
have the developers here that it doesn’t seem like having a whole lot of discussion at this
point. And what1 asked earlier, was there any proposal between the 27 units and any
increase, and I only asked one person. It was the lady back there, Ms. Simpson, 1 believe,
who said 10. And other than that, other than those comments there’s a separation between
the 10 and the 27. But I think, and I want to hear from my colleagues, but 1 think 10 just
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walk away compleiely from the ¢ommercial, I don’t know. I would have to agree with
some of the comments made by the carlier lady about walking away from that all
together. I don’t know that that's décessarily the right thing to do either.

1do have one Spec1ﬁc question for the applicant, is to help me understand and |
understand the frustration of the developmcnt community and the market and the fact that
you're tryiiig 1o ke 4 living and you're trying to be able to sell homes and sustain the
development so it doesn’t fall apart. Help me undcrstand the need to go from the
discussion we had at master plan last time for the ten additional units to the full-blown 27
units additional for all phases. Is there some middle point that you could get to that I’m
looking to you, Bobble Lee and John, whichever one of you wants te respond. Is there
some miidpoint assocxated with somc ofthe subsequent phases that helps you with your
financial predlcament, if you will, but tomght doesn’t pull us ali the way {0 277

The other question that I have, is there some compromise associated with
additional residential units and holding some of that commercirl back? Not 16,000 square
feet, but, I don’t know, maybc 5,000 in each phase. Was that possibility discussed on
your end and could you give me any feedback associated with those questions or
thoughts?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, to answer your
first question, we are not giving up cominercial: What we're doing is micro-business,
allowing for micro-businesses thro ugh these live-work or home occupation programs, So
there could be a small coffee shop or an exercise tutor or music teacher or whatever
within the commercial. So we're retaining that — for want of a different word, that
commercial aspect in Phase 1.

As far as the distribution - let me back up a little bit. The ten units, through
negotiation with our advisory committee and our immediate neighbors we’ve reduced
that as previously testified from ten down to six. In terms of the 27 units, they’re
distributed through all phases, 2,3,4,5 and 6. So Phase 6, for example, has I believe four
additional units. Phase 6 hasn't recorded. Phase 3 has 5 additional units.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Give me those one more lime again. Each
One.

MR. MCCARTHY: Of the 27, Phase 6 has four additional lots. Phase 5
has 3. Phase 4 has 7, which is not yet platted. Phase 3 has 5 and Phase 2 has 8. So phases
2 and 3 have already been platted and recorded and we’ve sold a combined total of 30
units, 30 homes in those two phases. The way we onginally laid out La Pradera utilizes
50 percent open space not only as the buffer. This has the 195-foot buffer from the
centerline of the road to the back of this house, and this is about 300 linear feet here. We
did put some larger supersized lots along this corridor here but remember that my
comments were also limited by the number of units we’re putting in each phase.

So again, Phase 2 we're proposing to add 8 lots in here that will be distributed,
and in Phase 3 we're adding 5 which were distributed through here. But you also have
this big backyard. So you’ve got an 80-foot front lot with 195-foot backyard, Then you
have the other side of the 50-foot rlghl of-way, 25 feet more on the opposite side. And if
I may correct the record, Phase 4 is where the pile of debris was which has been cleaned
up now, not the other phase, Phase 6. So Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, I hope that
answers your questions.
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COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, the answer to
my question associated with is there any other way from your perspective economicelly
to not have all 27 approved today, the answer is no? That’s the only way? The only way,
1o put it more straight, from your standpoint to be able to suceeed is to be able to have the
27 lots?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that is the
absolute minimum.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: I don't have any questions right now,
Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Further questions? Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Mr. McCarthy, with the map you have
up, where is the wastewater treatment plant?

MR, MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Mayfield, the
wastewater treatment plants are located in this area right here.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Okay. Maybe it’s not you I'm asking
this question. Would there be a need for a third wastewater treatment plant, which all the
phases at complete build-out?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commisstoner Mayfield, based on our
engineer’s calculation which was accepted, planning-wise but the NMED, no.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Any other questions? Okay. Seeing none, what is
the pleasure of the Commission?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Mr. Martinez, Madam Chair. Mr. Martinez,
do you want to address the Commission?

CHAIR VIGIL: I actually closed the public hearing.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Relative to the economics. I mean as a
partner —-

CHAIR VIGIL: Oh, on the question you were posing.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: A question as a partner on the economics.
Madam Chair, the reason we went through the dialogue and the last time, and the need
for us as a Commission to try and provide some economic development, an opportunity
to get some houses built and sold, 1 think it’s important. But on that point, you'd concur
that there’s no other alternative that you have at this time, other than what's being
brought before us today.

[Duly swom, Bobbie Lee Trujillo testified as follows:]
BOBBIE LEE TRUJILLO: My name i5 Bobbie Lee Trujillo and I reside at

3 Hacienda. Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, we've studied this. We met with
people. We*ve worked out the details, We knew that the total of the 32,000 square foot
commercial would never work. It just hasn’t worked in other subdivisions and [ won’t
slart pinpointing the other subdivisions, but we’ve worked on how do we make this
happen so that we can produce 2 product that can be purchased, that somebody might
want to actually purchase the lot and build something. We've switched that thought to us
going in and getting with a builder and with the Santa Fe Trust and building houses.

So we're attacking it from every point of view we could possibly do. And I think
this is sort of where we’re at. I really do. I think that if you see that the 27 lots that we're
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trying to et in addition on phased 2 through 6, 27 lots on about — P’I1 just guess, probably
in about 90 acres. Because | bélieve the entire subdivision is somewhere around 160, 170
acres so we’re 1alking about 27 additional lots on about 90 acres. I might be wrong on the
exact calculations. But if you look at it like that it’s not a lot. it's not a lot and if you look
at the drawings it’s not an impact at all.

- COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, if I could. I'm sorry I called
you Mr. Martinez. Mr. Trujillo, if you could comment on your base minimum price fora
house and a lot, what’s the minimum that you could see on any of the phases?

MR. TRUJILLO: Well, the minimum right now is $129,900. I mean
$229,900, excuse me. And we brought a model in at $325,000. So our plan was to be
somewhere between $229,900 or $229,500 and $350,000. Of course it can go up from
there as wel.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you, Mr.
Trujillo.

CHAIR VIGIL: 1 did have a couple of clarification questions for staff
before we move forward, There's a couple of — just two pieces of information that I heard
in the testimony that I think needs to be clarified for the record. I did hear testimony from
the opponents that there is no County code. Would you clarify that, please? There does
cxist a County code and 1 don’t know why — I just wanted 1o clarify that for the record.
When was it adopted?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, this project was reviewed for compliance to
both the Santa Fe County Land Development Code that was adopted in 1981 and also the
Community College District Ordinance which I believe was adopted in 2001. It was
checked for compliance to both those ordinances, Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. And one of the other statements that was made that
1'd like staff to comment on is that there's a 24-inch wide road that is insufficient for this
development? Would you comment on that?

MS. COBAU: Madam Chair, the subdivision regulations of the Land
Development Code have pretty clear requirements on roadway widths and 24 fect is one
of the wider roadways. It’s two 12-foot lanes. We're going currently with the Community
College District standards, I think even allow a narrower Iane than 12 feet. And road
design is based on traffic volume and we have a traffic report that has been generated by
a licenscd professional engineer who has assured as that the design of the surrounding
roads is adequate.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Those are the only two outstanding questions I had.
So are there any other questions? Commissioner Mayfield.

COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Madam Chair, question for staff or
maybe you or one of the other Commissioners could answer this, Is there ever any plans
or have there been plans for DOT to cut off ramps right there by the Richards Avenue
exit? Is that something that could happen in the foreseeable or near future?

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: On that point, the MPQ has placed a
Richards Avenue exit on its priority list. It’s a very larpe amount and would probably not
be funded as one of the regular federal or state projects, but would require some major
appropriation from one of our congressional representatives. But it is on the priority list
for the MPO,
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COMMISSIONER MAYFIELD: Thank you, Madam Chair. Thank you,
Commissioner Stefanics,

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair.

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Anaya.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, we’re in a tough clinate right
now. There’s a lot of people here in Santa Fe County that are still not able to even find
houses to purchase, and at $224,000 on the low side, that’s still a lot of money in this
comununity but it’s an opportunity. 1 guess one last question and then I'm going (o make
a motion. How fast, how much time would it take in your plans to push through your
phases, to actually get to build-out? What’s your target planning on build-out of the
subdivision?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, based on
today’s absorption we're looking at probably seven years to fully build out La Pradera.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: And Madam Chair, Mr. McCarthy, within
those price points, especially on the $220,000 side, how much of the development in the
early going in the next two years is going to be within that scale or price point?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, based on what
we're already experiencing, today it’s about 95 percent in the $220,000 to $265,000
range. If we don’t see much movement that number will probably come down over 2%
years (o an 80/20 mix. And then we're hoping that the ratios would start to flip after that
period, afier the presidential election and economic recovery and job creation, which is
what we're trying to do locally.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: So Madam Chair, Mr, McCarthy, if this is
approved these units would increase the number that would be in that price point of
$220,000 to $265,0007

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, that’s comect?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: How many of those 27 would you say?

MR. MCCARTHY: Madam Chair, Commissioner Anaya, 27.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: All 27.

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Madam Chair, it’s on that point and for that
reason that I would move for approval.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Madam Chair, I would like to sccond it and
during discussion I would like to make a few comments.

CHAIR VIGIL: 1 have a motion and a second. You can proceed with your
comments.

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. I do have
sympathy for the neighbors of this development. I know that they had a vision of what
they wanted that area to look like, but times are changing and there’s just no way around
it. I really feel that this type of development that has been proposed is much more in line
with what our existing market looks like, that is the live-work units and I believe that the
27 new lots are really more targeted to first-time homebuyers. I have a friend who'’s a real
estate agent and she says those arc the kind of units that are moving in Santa Fe at this
point.

It is also consistent with the Community College District Ordinance and I don’t
believe that the La Pradera commercial center as it was originally envisioned would be
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successful at all. Those kinds of commercial centers have not worked in many, many
other developments in the last ten years and I think that the live-work units really make
sense. 1 belicve that approving these changes actually increases the chances that this
development will be successful and I believe in turn that increases the chances that
property values in that area, not only in La Pradera but alse in the neighboring
communities will start stabilizing as well.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Madam Chair,

CHAIR VIGIL: Commissioner Stefanics.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Does the motion include all the
conditions listed on page 6?

CHAIR VIGIL: Would the motioner include that please?

COMMISSIONER ANAYA: Yes.

CHAIR VIGIL: The seconder?

COMMISSIONER HOLIAN: 1 agree.

COMMISSIONER STEFANICS: Thank you very much.

CHAIR VIGIL: Okay. Is there any other question, comments?

The maotion passed by majority [4-1] voice vote with Commissioner Mayficld casting
the nay vole.

[The Commission took a five-minute recess.]

XIV. A, 6. CDRC Case # V 11-5200 Jesus Garcia-Solis Variance. Jesys

Garcia-Solis, Applicant, Requests a Variance of Ordinadce No.
2002-9, (La Cienega/La Cicneguilla Traditional Comfauaity
Zoning District), Section 6.4.2 to Allow a SccongdTwelling Unit
on 2.53 Acres. The Property is Located in the¢Vallecita de

rq¢in Subdivision, off Los Pinos Rd. (County Road 54) at 1
Cortc™Gracia, within Sections 22, 27,€ 28, Township 16 Norih,
Range 8 East {(Commission District 3) Wayne Dalton, Case
Manager

MR. DALTON: Thank you, MadaimChair. The applicant requests to allow a
second dwelling unit on 2.53 acres. Theze'ts currently wsesidence and conventional septic
system on the property. The property4s served by a shared Wel] systern which serves five
additional lots. The property is lpcated in the Traditional Historie~Community, within the
Basin Zone. Ordinance #2002<9 requires the minimum lot size in this»sea as 10 acres per
dwelling unit. With progf6f 100-year water supply through a geohydrologit~teconnaissance
report, and adoption pf water use covenants the maximum density may be incréased to one
dwelling unit pep2?5 acres,

The Vellecita de Gracia Subdivision was granted preliminary and final plat and
developmefit plan approval by the Board of County Commissioners on March 10, 2005. The
approydl consisted of an 11-lot subdivision. On July 13, 2010, the Board of County
Com#nissioners approved a request for preliminary and final plat and a development plan
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being met; and 3) it finds that the final plat is in substantial compliance with the
previously approved preliminary plat.

5.4.4c Denial. If the final plat is denied by the Board, the reasons for the denial shall be
referenced and attached to two (2) copies of the final plat and such action shall be
dated and verified by the signatures of the Chairman of the Board and the Code
Administrator affixed to said copies. One signed copy shall be returned to the
subdivider and the other shall become a part of the files of the Code
Administrator's Office. The original drawing shall be returned to the subdivider.

5.4.4d Failurc 1o Act. If the Board does not act upon a final plat within the required
period of time. the subdivider shall give the Board wrilten notice of its failure to
act. 17 the Board fails to approve or reject the final plat within thirty (30) working
days after that notice, the Board shall. upon demand by the subdivider, issue a
certificate that the final plat has been approved.

5.4.5 Filing
The final plat, subdivision covenants and final disclosure statement shall be recorded by
the County Clerk. The Code Administrator or his authorized representative shall notify
the subdivider of the date of such recordation. Final plats, approved by the Board, shall be
recorded within ten (10) working days after all conditions of approval have been met,

5.4.6 Expiration of Final Plat
Any approved or conditionally approved final plat, approved after July I, 1996 shali be

recorded within twenty-four (24) months after its approval or conditional approval or the
plat shall expire. Upon request by the subdivider. an additional period of no more than
thirty-six (36) months may be added to the expiration date by the Board.

5.4.7 Acceptance of Dedications and Improvement Agreement
Acceptance of offers of dedication on a final plat shall not be effective until the final plat is

filed in the office of the county clerk or a resolution of acceptance by the Board is filed in
such office.  Acceptance of a public dedication by the County does not imply the
maintenance by the County of such dedication. Maintenance of public dedications require
a separate action of the Board pursuant to Section 8.1.9 of this Article.

54.8 The final plat will not be signed by the Code Administrator until the subdivider has cither
installed all required improvements or filed a surety bond or other acceptable security as
required in Section 9.9 of this Article.

549 A copy of the final plat shall be provided to every purchaser, lessee or other person
acquiring an interest in the subdivided land prior to sale, lease or other conveyance.

5.4.10 Copies of all brochures, publications and advertising relating to subdivided land, as
required by the New Mexico Subdivision Acl. shall be filed with the Board and the
Attorney General within fiftecn (15) days of initial usc by the subdivider.

5.5 Summary Review Procedure

5.5.1 Qualifications. The following types of subdivisions shall be submitted to the County for
approval under summary review procedures:

a. Type 1II subdivisions containing five (5) or fewer parcels of land, unless the land

within the proposed subdivision has been previously identified in the County © zneral

EXHIBIT
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THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SANTA FE COUNTTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-193

A RESOLUTION
FINDING THE EXISTENCE OF SEVERE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND
SUSPENDING ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIFIED PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE V
OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE THAT CONCERN EXPIRATION OF
MASTER PLANS, PRELIMINARY PLATS AND FINAL PLATS PURSUANT TO
ORDINANCE NO. 2011-11.

WHEREAS, Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6 and 5.4.6 of the Santa Fe County
Land Development Code ("the Code") and the former Extraterritorial Zoning Ordinance
contain expiration dates for certain development approvals such as master plans,
preliminary plats and final plats;

WHEREAS, Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6 and 5.4.6 require an applicant to
apply for an extension of these approvals and precludes an extension should the approval
expire;

WHEREAS, the national, state and local economies have experienced a severe
downturn in recent years which has heavily affected the housing sector, and signs of an
economic recovery are ambiguous at best; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2011-11, the Board of County
Commissioners ("the Board") may suspend provisions of Article V, Sections 5.2.7,5.3.6
and 5.4.6 of the Code upon a finding of economic necessity, which is defined in terms of
a score of 100 or less on the Conference Board's Leading Economic Index® for the
Umted_St_aEgs_ for any qu quarter and for three years following any such event, and the Board
recognizes that these ‘conditions are present and desires to temporarily suspend the
enforcement of those sections of Article V that set forth expiration of master plans,

preliminary plats and final plats for two years pending an economic recovery.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 2011-11, The enforcement of Article V, Sections
5.2.7, 5.3.6 and 5.4.6 and related policies and procedures of the Land Use Department
whereby master plans, preliminary plats and final plats expire are hereby suspended until
approval of a subsequent resolution of this Board for those developments located within
the unincorporated lands of Santa Fe County and those areas within the extraterritorial
planning and platting jurisdiction as described in NMSA 1978 Sections 3-20-5 (1965)

development in questlon is approved by the Board.

EXHIBIT
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2. Any suspension of enforcement of Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6 and 5.4.6
granted by the Board pursuant to paragraph | herein shall be valid for a period of two (2)
years from the date suspension is authorized.

ADOPTED THIS 13th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2011.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SANTA FE COUNTY

By: e e T ',_"'
Virginia Vigil, Chair  ~ B
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" THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SANTA FE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO, 2011-11

AN ORDINANCE SUSPENDING ON A CASE-BY-CASE BASIS PROVISIONS OF
ARTICLE V OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE CONCERNING EXPIRATION OF
MASTER PLANS, PRELIMINARY PLATS AND FINAL PLATS UPON A FINDING OF
ECONOMIC NECESSITY

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF THE
COUNTY OF SANTA FE:

Section 1. Suspension of Expiration. A new paragraph of Article V of the Santa I'e
County Land Development Code is enacted, as follows:

The Board of County Commissioners may approve, by resolution, temporary retroactive
suspension of enforcement of Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6 and 5.4.6 of this Code
concerning expiration of master plans, preliminary plans and final plats for any development
located within the unincorporated lands of Santa Fe County and within the extraterritorial
planning and platting jurisdiction as described in NMSA 1978, Sections 3-20-5 (1965) and
3-21-2 (1965), upon a finding that severe economic conditions justify such a suspension
either for a particular project or for a described class of projects. Any such resolution shall
not suspend enforcement of Article V, Sections 5.2.7, 5.3.6 or 5.4.6 more than three (3)
years, nor apply to a master plan, preliminary plan and final plat expiring more than three
(3) years prior to the effective date of this ordinance, and such resolution may contain
conditions that the Board deems appropriate to such approval. For purposes of this section
wsevere economic conditions” are present when the Conference Board Leading Economic
Index® for the United States is less than 100 for any quarter, and for three years following

any such event.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED THIS 13th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2011.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
SANTA FE COUNTY

By: = \24{,;:?2/7,?/

Virginia y(igil, Chair
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Kathy Holian

Cormnissioner, Dustrict 4

Daniel “Danny” Mayfield

Ceinmissioncr, District 1

Liz Stefanics
Comumtissioner, Dratrict 5

Miguel M. Chavez

Connmissioner, District 2

Katherine Miller
County Manager

Robert A, Anaya
Commissioncr, Districl 3

DATE: April 29, 2014
TO: Board of County Commissioners
FROM: Jose E. Larranaga, Development Review Team Leader%%
VIA: Katherine Miller, County Manager
Penny Ellis-Green, Land Use Administrator
Vicki Lucero, Building and Development Services Manager ‘-‘/i,
Wayne Dalton, Building and Development Services Supervisor vy
FILE REF.: CDRC CASE # Z 14-5010 31 Bonanza Creek Road
ISSUE:

Leslic Moody and Mitchell Ackerman, Applicants, JenkinsGavin, Agents, request Master Plan
Zoning approval to allow a Bed and Breakfast within an existing residence on 9.94 acres. The
property is located on the west side of Highway 14 off Bonanza Creek Road {County Road 45),
within Section 26, Township 15 North, Range 8 East (Commission District 5).

Vicinity Map:

Site Location

102 Grant Ave. * PO.Box276 ¢ Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 » 505-986-6200 & Fax: 505-995-2740
www.santafecountynm.gov
AR






SUMMARY:

On March 20, 2014, the County Development Review Committee (CDRC) met and acted on this
case, the decision of the CDRC was to recommend approval of the Applicant’s request, for
Master Plan Zoning with staff conditions. The CDRC also recommended that the Applicants
provide water rights if the water use for the Bed & Breakfast exceeds 3 acre feet of water per
year.

The Applicants request Master Plan Zoning approval to allow an existing 5,580 square foot five
bedroom residence to operate as a Bed and Breakfast. There are two dwellings on the 9.94 acre
site. A 4,561 square foot residence will be utilized by the Applicants as their primary residence
and the second residence will be utilized as a five bedroom Bed and Breakfast. The Applicants
are not proposing any expansion of the existing structures as part of this Application.

The Bed & Breakfast is currently in operation without the proper zoning approval or Business
License from Santa Fe County. This statement is based on an observation made by staff on a site
visit and advertisement on the internet as Rancho Gallina in Santa Fe.

The two existing dwellings on the 9.94 acre parcel are non-conforming as per the density
requirements of the Land Development Code (Code). The Applicants propose two kitchens in the
five bedroom residence which will operate as the Bed and Breakfast and a kitchen in the
Applicants residence. Ordinance No. 1998-9 states: “any such structure, mobile home or unit that
contains both a kitchen or cooking facility and a bathtub or shower shall be presumed to be a
dwelling”. At the most basic level, a bed and breakfast is a place, often found in a renovated
home, mansion or small hotel, to spend the night and enjoy a full breakfast in the morning. In
observance of the non-conforming status of the site only two kitchens shall be utilized on site.

Article I11, § 8, Other Development (8.1 Uses Permitted) states: “All uses not otherwise regulated
by the Code are permitted anywhere in the County™.

Article I, § 4.4.1.a (Design Standards and Review Criteria) states: “to zone or re-zone any
parcel for a commercial or industrial non-residential district a master plan shall be submitted.
Submittals and procedures for master plans are set forth in Article V, § 5.2”.

Article V, § 5.2.1.b (Master Plan Procedure) states: “a Master Plan is comprehensive in
establishing the scope of a project, yet is less detailed than a development plan. It provides a
means for the County Development Review Committee and the Board to review projects and the
subdivider to obtain concept approval for proposed development without the necessity of
expending large sums of money for the submittals required for a preliminary and final plat
approval”.

This Application was submitted on January 10, 2014.
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Building and Development Services staff have reviewed this project for compliance with
pertinent Code requirements and have found that the facts presented support the request
for Master Plan Zoning: the Application is comprehensive in establishing the scope of the
project; the County Hydrologist has determined that the application is sufficient for
Master Plan; the Application satisfies the submittal requirements set forth in the Land
Development Code.

The review comments from State Agencies and County staff have established findings that
this Application is in compliance with state requirements and Article V, § 5, Master Plan
Procedures of the Land Development Code.

APPROVAL SOUGHT: Master Plan Zoning approval for a Bed and Breakfast
within an existing residence on 9.94 acres

GROWTH MANAGEMENT

AREA: SDA-2 within the Residential Fringe category of the
SGMP Future Land Use Map

HYDROLOGIC ZONE: Basin Fringe Hydrologic Zone, minimum lot size in this
area is 12.5 acres. The 9.94 acre lot size is non-conforming.

ARCHAEOLOGIC: Moderate potential area, less than 10 acres, no further
disturbance of the site is proposed. The Applicants
requested a waiver from conducting an Archaeological
Study on this site from the Historic Preservation Division
(HPD). HPD reviewed the submittal and determined that
the Bed and Breakfast would have no effect on historic
properties and an archaeological survey is not required.

ACCESS AND TRAFFIC: The property takes access from Bonanza Creek Road
(County Road 45), Via Highway 14. County Public Works
determined that a Traffic Impact Study is not required for
this type of use.

FIRE PROTECTION: Turquoise Trail Fire District. The Santa Fe County Fire
Department Fire Prevention Division has reviewed the
application and recommends conditional approval.

WATER SUPPLY: Existing on-site well; proposed water use not to exceed .25
acre feet of water per year. The County Hydrologist review
states: “based on a review of the water budget a water
supply plan is not required for master plan approval,
since the proposed water use is less than 1.0 acre-foot
per year. Based on the analysis of water use for
residential and bed and breakfasts it appears the water
use may exceed 0.25 acre-feet per year for the project.
As part of the original application, the Applicant

AMR.



requested Master Plan, Preliminary and Final
Development Plan  approval. A Preliminary
Development Plan requires a water supply plan which
addresses water availability, water quality, water
conservation and fire protection. After review of the
documents submitted, by the Applicants, code
requirements for water availability for Master Plan
have been met”. The Applicant is proposing to collect 3
months of actual water use data in order to submit an
accurate water budget with the Development Plan
application.

LIQUID WASTE: The 5,580 square foot residence utilizes two conventional
septic tanks (1,000 & 1,200 gallons). The 4,561 square foot
residence utilizes a 1,000 gallon conventional septic tank.
NMED has determined that the on sight liquid waste
systems are not sufficient to meet the needs of the
proposed B&B. Compliance with NMED requirements
shall be in place prior to submittal of Final
Development Plan.

SOLID WASTE: Weekly disposal of trash to the County Transfer Station.
FLOODPLAIN & TERRAIN
MGMT: The Applicant’s proposal has 2 retention ponds located on the

southwestern portion of the property and there is no new
expansion to existing or proposed use. Pond (1) one is a
2,400 cubic foot pond and Pond (2) two is 2,200 cubic feet.
The required retention for this project is 3,226 cubic feet.
Therefore, the submittal is in conformance of Article VII,
Section 3.4.6 and Ordinance 2008-10 Flood Damage
Prevention and Stormwater Management Ordinance.

The Project contains slopes of 0-15% and slopes from the west
to the east into the Arroyo Gallina. The site is located within a
100 Year Flood Zone and is located in designated Flood Hazard
A. The project must be setback 75’ from the Hazard Area. The
structures are setback at 88’ feet therefore, the submittal is in
conformance with Ordinance 2008-10 Flood Damage
Prevention and Stormwater Management Ordinance.

SIGNAGE AND LIGHTING: No Signage is proposed within this Application.

The Applicants propose to utilize existing outdoor lighting
on the property. The Applicants have provided a lighting
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EXISTING DEVELOPMENT:

ADJACENT PROPERTY:

PARKING:

LANDSCAPING:

RAINWATER HARVESTING:

AGENCY REVIEW:

plan. Staff has determined that the lighting element of this
Application complies with Article III, Section 4.4.4 h.

The existing residential structures are recognized as non-
conforming constructed prior to the implementation of the
Land Development Code (1981).

The site is within a residential area and is bordered on all
sides by rural residential property.

The Applicant has provided 7 parking spaces for the
Development. The Applicant has designated 1 space for
handicap use. All parking spaces shall be defined with
striping, wheel stops, parking bumpers, or railroad ties.
Staff has determined that the parking element of the
Application complies with Article IlI, section 9 Parking
Requirements.

The site is heavily vegetated with native grasses, native
shrubs, evergreens, drought tolerant deciduous and fruit
trees. The south side of the site shall require additional
landscape (trees) to screen the site.

A 5,300 gallon cistern is proposed to capture rain water
which will be used to irrigate the existing landscape. Water
conservation measures shall be implemented with the
development.

Agency Recommendation
NMOSE No Opinion

NMDOT Approval

NMED Approval with Conditions
NMDHP Approval

County Fire Approval with Conditions
County PW Approval

County Utility Approval for Master Plan
Planning Approval

NB-~4



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Ceonditional approval of Master Plan Zoning, to allow a

Bed and Breakfast within an existing residence on 9.94
acres, subject to the following staff conditions:

1. The Applicant shall comply with all review agency
comments and conditions, as per Article V, § 7.1.3.c.

2. Master Plan with appropriate signatures, shall be
recorded with the County Clerk, as per Article V, §
5.2.5.

3. Only two (2) kitchens shall be allowed on the site in
keeping with the non-conforming status of the site, as
per Article I1, § 4.5.

4. The Preliminary and Final Development Plan shall be
submitted promptly after 90 days of data collection on
actual water use is obtained. The Final Development
Plan shall be submitted to the County Development
Review Committee accompanied by a staff report, as
per Article V, § 7.

5. The Applicant shall provide water rights if the proposed
water use for the Bed and Breakfast exceeds 3 acre feet
of water per year.

EXHIBITS:
1. Applicants Report
2. Drawings
3. Letters of Support
4. Aerial Photo of Property
5. Agency Reviews and Comments
6. Article III, § 8, Other Development (8.1 Uses Permitted)
7. ArticleIII, § 4.4.1.a (Design Standards and Review Criteria)
8. Article V, § 5.2.1.b (Master Plan Procedure)
9. Review Letter from County Hydrologist
10. Article VII, Table 7.4
11. March 20" CDRC Minutes
12. ArticleV, § 7
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jenkinsgavin

DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT INC

April 8, 2014

José Larrafiaga, Senior Development Review Specialist
Planning and Development Division

Santa Fe County

102 Grant Avenue

Santa Fe, NM 87501

RE: 31 Bonanza Creek Road
Master Plan Application

Dear José:

This revised letter is submitted on behalf of Leslie Moody and Mitchell Ackerman in application
for Master Plan approval for a Bed and Breakfast Inn for consideration by the Board of County
Commissioners at their meeting of May 13, 2014. On March 20, 2014, the County Development
Review Committee recommended approval of the Master Plan application.

Project Summary

The subject property is a £9.94-acre parcel located at 31 Bonanza Creek Road. The property
comprises 1wo existing structures, a 5,580 square foot, five bedroom house, which will serve as
the bed & breakfast, and a 4,561 square foot private residence, which the owners occupy. No
new development is proposed as part of this application. Master Plan approval is requested to
designate the subject property as “Other Development™ per Article 111, §8 of the Santa Fe County
Land Development Code to permit a five unit Bed and Breakfast Inn. Per the Preliminary
Zoning Map of the Sustainable Land Development Code (the “SLDC?”), the property will be
zoned RUR-R 10AC (Residential, one dwelling unit per 10 acres). A Bed and Breakfast Inn is
permitted as a Conditional Use in a Rural Residential zone. This request for “Other
Development™ aligns with the Conditional Use approval process, and is therefore consistent with
the provisions and intent of the SLDC.

The subject property lies 0.25 miles west of State Highway 14 on Bonanza Creek Road. The
Bonanza Creek neighborhood is a diverse, primarily residential community, which includes
small 2.0-acre parcels, as well as significant ranches of hundreds of acres. The mix of
neighborhood uses includes a 50-acre horse training facility next door to the subject property, a
horse hospital, a retreat center, and the Bonanza Creek Movie Ranch. Furthermore, several of
the area ranches offer horseback riding, boarding, and training. EXHIBIT

130 GRANT AVENUE, SUITE 101 SanTa FE, NEw MexIco B7501 % l

NR-7
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31 Bonanza Creek Road
Master Plan

Page 2 of 4

San Marcos District Community Plan

The subject property lies within the boundaries of the San Marcos District Community Plan (the
“Plan™). The Zoning Map in the Plan designates the property as “Rural”, which permits bed and
breakfasts of less than seven units as a Special Use. This application and approval process for
*Other Development” is consistent with the requirements of a Special Use Permit and, therefore,
consistent with the provisions of the Plan.

Access & Traffic

The property is accessed from Bonanza Creek Road via a 20’ wide base course driveway. Due
to the minimal traffic impact of a 5-bedroom bed & breakfast, no Traffic Impact Analysis is
submitted with this report. Please refer to the attached ITE Trip Generation Summary, which
reflects four AM and PM peak hour trips respectively.

Terrain Management

The site’s terrain slopes gently from the northwest to the southeast and drains into the Arroyo
Gallina on the east side of the property. In order to provide the requisite storm water retention
for the existing impervious areas, two new drainage ponds are proposed. Pond 1 will be located
east of the residence and Pond 2 will be southeast of the bed and breakfast on the south side of
the driveway. All disturbed areas will be revegetated. For further details, please refer to the
Terrain Management Plan, Drainage Calculations, and Soils Report attached for your review,

Landscaping & Water Harvesting

The property has a variety of mature landscaping comprised of drought tolerant deciduous and
fruit trees, evergreens, native grasses, and native shrubs per the attached Landscape and Water
Harvesting Plan. A 5,300 gallon cistern will be installed to accommodate one month’s irrigation

demand in accordance with the Landscape Water Budget outlined below:

Landscape Water Budget

Plant Type | Quantity | GPW/Plant | GPM GPY
Non-Growing Season (5 mos.) Trees 52 2.0 447.2 5,366.4

Shrubs 32 1.0 147.2 1,766.4
Growing Season (7 mos.) Trees 52 8.0 1,788.8 | 21,465.6

Shrubs 32 4.0 588.8 7,065.6
ANNUAL BUDGET 35,664.0
MONTHLY REQUIREMENT 2,972.0

NS
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31 Bonanza Creek Road
Master Plan

Page 3 of 4

Water Supply Plan

The property is served by an existing private well (Permit #RG-08039). The water budget for
the property is 0.25 acre feet/year as detailed in the attached Water Budget, Draft Water
Restrictive Covenants are included herein and will be recorded with the Master Plan.

Liquid Waste

The bed and breakfast is served by two existing 1,200 and 1,000 gallon septic tanks. The
residence is served by an existing 1,000 gallon septic tank.

Solid Waste

The property owners haul refuse to the County landfill.

Lighting & Signage

Existing site lighting consists of 10-watt path lights, 60-watt pendant lights under the portals, and
60-watt building mounted sconces, as reflected on the attached Lighting Plan. All lights are
down-lit and shielded in accordance with Santa Fe County requirements. No new lighting is
proposed with this application. There is no existing signage and none is proposed.

Archacology

The property is located in a Medium Potential Archaeological Area. In accordance with Article
VI, Section 3.4.3 a.v. of the Santa Fe County Land Development Code, we are requesting a

waiver of the archaeological survey requirements since the property is already disturbed and no
new construction is proposed. Please see the attached waiver request letter.

In support of this application, the following documentation is submitted herewith for your review
and consideration:

0 Development Permit Application 0 Legal Lot of Record

0 Trip Generation Summary o Letter of Owner Authorization

0 Drainage Calculations Summary 0 Assigned Address Form

o Soils Report a Proof of Property Taxes Paid

o Water Budget 0 Master Plan Submittal Drawings: 9
0 Archaeological Waiver Letter full size & 1 reduced set

Q0 Warranty Deed
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31 Bonanza Creek Road
Master Plan

Page 4 of 4

Please do not hesitate to contact us should you have any questions or require additional

information,

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Jenkins Colleen C. Gavin, AIA
JenkinsGavin Design & Development, Inc.

N - \0
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PURPOSE STATEMENT

THE PURPOSE OF THIS MASTER PLAN IS TO PERIATT A BED & BREAKFAST INN AS *OTHER
DEVELOPMENT.

NOTES

1. WELL WITHDRAWAL IS LIMITED 0.25 ACRE PER FEET PER YEAR PER THE WATER RESTRICTIVE
COVENANTS RECORDED IN THE RECORDS OF SAHTA FE COUNTY IN 800K PGS,
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GENERAL NOTES: Yy
|. ALL LANDSCAPING SHOWN HEREOH 15 EXISTING. KO HEM .hu.n!
PLANTINGS ARE PROPOSED. /

2. I8 ADDITION TO THE EXISTING TREES SHOWN, THE SITE IS
NATURALLY VEGETATED WITH NATIVE SHRURS AND GRASSES
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Dear Santa Fe County Comimissioners,

As the President of the Turquoise Trail Association (TTA), I am writing to support
the Master Plan for development of a bed and breakfast at 31 Bonanza Creek Road. In
June of 2000 the TTA completed a Federal Grant Proposal that established N.M. Hwy. 14
as a National Scenic Byway resulting in a multi million dollar grant going directly into
the region. Part of the grant requirement was the Turquoise Trail Scenic Byway Corridor
Management Plan (CMP). The CMP was completed in 2006 with this vision statement:

"To achieve an environmentally clean, scenic corridor with managed growth and
have the ability to provide travelers with an interesting, educational, recreational, cultural,
historic and natural experience."

Section 16 of the CMP is the Tourism Development Plan, an economic study that
outlines how to increase high margin tourism, destinations and jobs in our region. To
increase multi-day visits and maximize conversion rates we must provide visitors with
desirable products. A critical component to achieving this is an increase in the
appropriate developent of rural lodging. Bed and breakfasts are precisely the type of
lodging/business encouraged by the CMP because it creates high quality jobs in the area
while retaining the rural character important to the Turquoise Trail.

The proposal for 31 Bonanza Creek Rd. is ideal in realizing the CMP vision.
With a classic French-trained chef serving locally-sourced food, infrastructure upgrades
such as solar, geothermal, rain-catchment and water wise facilities provide a lodging
option that fits perfectly into the rural character and responsible development of the area.
This is the kind of economic development that attracts high margin tourists to our area
and retains them, it improves our area in a sustainable way while adding to the high
quality job opportunities our corridor needs.

Sincerely and respectfully,
Kevin Box, President

Turquoise Trail Association

cc: Penny Ellis-Green, Land Use Director
Jose Larrafiaga, Commercial Development Case Manager

EXHIBIT
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THE SAN MARCOQOS ASSOCIATION

To: Santa Fe County CORC

From: Walter Wait

President

San Marcos Association

P.O. Box 722

Cerrillos, New Mexico 87010

RE: Development Permit #14~5010 Bed and Breakfast Application

The San Marcos Association met with Leslie Moody and Mitchell Ackarman at the
Associations March 13th Board Meeting. At that meeting we discussed their plans to
initiate a Bed and Breakfast at 31 Bonanza Creek Road in the San Marcos District. Santa
Fe County.

After discussing the plans, and reviewing the history of the property, our Board felt
that the plans are in keeping with the rural residential nature of our district and that
the B & B would make a good contribution to our cormmunity.

We do believe, however, that limiting the Bed and Breakfast to 1/4 acre foot of water
per year might create an un-due hardship on the proposed facility. We would
recommend that the water budget be be changed to 1/2 acre foot. We have reviewed
the proposed water catchment systems that are proposed or are in place and one of
our Board Members has visited the property. We feel that conservation efforts more
than justify the added domestic water, especially since the property's current allotment
is three acre feet.

We strongly recommend that you recommend approval of Development Permit
#14-5010 to the Board of County Commissioners.

Walter Wait

NB =24
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS
HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION

BATAAN MEMORIAL BUILDING
Susana Martinez 407 GALISTEO STREET, SUITE 236
, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO §7501
Govemor PHONE (505) 827-6320 FAX (505) 827-6138

February 12,2014

Jose E. Larrafiaga

Development Review Team Leader
Counly of Santa Fe

102 Grant Avenue

P.O. Box 276

Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

Re: CDRC CASE # MP/PDP/DP 3| Bonanza Creek

Dear Mr. Larrafaga:

I am writing in response to your request for review and comment on the above referenced master plan and
preliminary / final development plan for a Bed and Breakfast [nn. It is my understanding that there is no
new construction proposed and the approvals are requested in order to designate the property as “Other
Development™ under the Santa Fe County Land Use Code.

Taking the above information into consideration, | reviewed our archaeological records management
database and our State Register of Cultural Properties. There are no known archaeological sites or
properties listed on the State Register located on the subject property. Although there are no historic
properties within the subject property, the Cerrillos Mining District (SR 273) is located south of the
property and archaeological sites have been identified nearby. Despite the presence of historic properties
nearby, it is the Historic Preservation Division's (HPD) opinion that the designation of the property as
“Other Development” and the creation of the Bed and Breakfast will have No Effect on Historic
Properties because there will be no new development and an archaeological survey is not necessary.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. [ can be reached by telephone at (505)

§27-4064 or by email at michelle.ensev{@state.nm.us.

Sinnfj'ely,
T2

Michelle M.
Archaeologist

Log: 098519

EXHIBIT
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April 7,2014

Mr. Jose E. Larrafiaga

Commercial Development Case Manager
P.O. Box 276

Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

Re: CRDC Case #MP/PDF/DP 31 Bonanza Creek

Dear Mr. Larrafiaga:

Traffic staff reviewed the Development Repaort for the above referenced project in Santa Fe
County, NM. It is apparent from the Traffic Data submitted that impacts from the
development will be minimal to the state roadway system. No further action is required.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at
505-995-7800.

Sincerely,
- L
Yo & ity

Javier A, Martinez, P.E.
District Traffic Engineer, District 5

District Five 7315 Cerrillos Road SantaFe. NM 87502

Susana Martinez
Govemnor

Tom Church
Cabinet Sceretary

Commissioners

Pete K. Rahn
Chainnan
District 3

Ronald Schmeits
Vice Chairman
District 4

Dr. KKenneth White
Sceretary
District 1

Robert R, Wallach
Cemmissianer
District 2

Butch Mathews
Commissioner
District 5

Jackson Gibson
Commissioner
District &
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER

SANTAFE
Scott A. Verhines, P.E. February 24, 2014 CONCHA ORTIZ Y PINO BLDG.
State Enginear POST OFFICE BOX 25102
130 SOUTH CAPITOL
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87504-5102
(505) 827-6091

FAX: (505) 827-3806

Jose E. Larrafiaga

Development Review Team Leader
Santa Fe County

P.O. Box 276

Santa Fe, NM 87504-0276

Reference: Bonanza Creek Master Plan/ Preliminary Final Development Plan
Dear Mr. Larraiiaga:

This letter supersedes the letter sent on February 6, 2014 and only amends comments made
regarding meter readings. The requirement for meter readings has been omitted, as it is not a
permit condition for the well RG-08039.

On January 14, 2014 the Office of the State Engineer (OSE) received a request to provide
comments for the Bonanza Creek Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan
submittal for a bed and breakfast inn at 31 Bonanza Creek Road.

The proposal provides an outline for the development of a bed and breakfast inn on 9.94 acres.
There are two existing structures on the property; a 5,580 square foot, five bedroom house which
will serve as the bed and breakfast inn and a 4,561 square foot private residence, which the
owners occupy. No new development is proposed as part of this application. The property is
located at 31 Bonanza Creek Road, 0.25 miles west of State Highway 14 on Bonanza Creek
Road, in Sections 26 and 27, TI5SN, R8E, in Santa Fe County. Water supply is provided by
existing private well RG-08039.

This proposal was reviewed pursuant to the Santa Fe County Land Development Code (Code)
and the New Mexico Subdivision Act.

The developer has quantified the subdivision’s annual water requirements as 0.25 acre-feet per
year. The Water Budget assumes 2 persons for the private residence (at 38 gpcd) and 7.5 persons
for the bed and breakfast inn (at 35 gpcd) with an occupancy rate of 55 percent or 200 days per
year. This estimate is consistent with the findings presented in the City of Santa Fe’s November
2009, Resolution No. 2009-116 that adopted standard formulas by water use category for

NR— 24



Bonanza Creek Bed & Breakfast Inn
February 24, 2014
Page 2 of 3

calculating development water budgets. However, an error was found in the residential estimate,
as the developer did not include the cleaning estimate (365 GPY) in the total sum. Also it is
unclear how the developer obtained the shower use at 18,820.3 GPY since no citation was
provided. The OSE estimates shower use to be 11,250 GPY based on indoor water uses and
quantities presented in OSE Technical Report 48, (Wilson, 1996). In spite of the variations in the
estimates, the water budget is still within the annual water requirement of 0.25 acre-feet per year.

It is recommended that the developer amend the Water Budget to reflect the proper assumptions
made in quantifying the water demand. These assumptions should be consistent throughout the
proposal.

When a development/subdivision proposal is received by the OSE, the developer’s water
demand analysis is reviewed (pursuant to the Code) to determine if it is technically correct and
reasonable. The OSE also verifies that the appropriate conservation measures are reflected in the
analysis. Further, data in the water demand analysis is compared with the data and statements
included in the application for Master Plan and Preliminary / Final Development plan to make
sure that they are consistent with each other.

Section 47-6-11.F (1) of the New Mexico Subdivision Act requires that the developer provide
documents demonstrating that water sufficient in quantity to fulfill the maximum annual water
requirements of the subdivision is available. Therefore, the OSE reviews the water rights and the
physical water availability.

Existing well RG-08039 is located on the property. The OSE records indicate that permit RG-
08039 was approved in accordance with Section 72-12-1 NMSA 1978 for one household. It is
recommended that the applicant contact the Water Rights Division of the OSE to have permit
RG-08039 amended to indicate the correct use of water.

Article VII, Section 6.1 of the Code allows the Santa Fe County Land Use staff to refer
development plans to state agencies for review “if] in the opinion of the County Hydrologist and
the Code Administrator, such referrals will provide information necessary to the determination
of whether or not a proposed development is in conformance with provisions of this Code”. The
OSE recognizes the proactive actions on behalf of the County to solicit the technical opinion of
the OSE on this development plan. However, because the proposed development is not formally
covered under the New Mexico Subdivision Act, the OSE declines to provide an opinion at this
time. We appreciate the opportunity to review the Bonanza Creek Bed and Breakfast
Development Plan.

NR — 29



Bonanza Creek Bed & Breakfast Inn
February 24, 2014
Page 3 of 3

If you have any questions, please call Emily Geery at (505) 827-6664.

Sincerely,

Molly Magnuson, P.E.
Senior Water Resource Specialist

cc:  OSE Water Rights Division, Santa Fe Office

NI 12
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State of New Mexico
ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT

Environmental Health Bureau

Santa Fe Field Office
oS : 2540 Camino Edward Ortiz
Susana Martinez Santa Fe, NM 87507 Ryan Flynn
Governor 505-827-1840 Secretary - Designalte
) www.nmenv.state.nm.us Butch Tongate
March 2, 2014 Deputy Secrctary
Mr. Jose Larranga, Development Review Team Leader TDS;,.:::::“

Santa Fe County - Planning & Zoning Department
P.O. Box 276
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276

RE: CDRC Case #MP/PDP/DP 31 Bonanza Creek Preliminary/Final Development Plan
Dear Mr. Larrafiaga,

1 have received the additional information 1 requested relative to my review of the CDRC Case
#MP/PDP/DP 31 Bonanza Creck Preliminary/Final Development Plan submittal. | have reviewed
the plan submittal for compliance with the New Mexico Liquid Waste Disposal and Treatment
Regulations (20.7.3 NMAC). These regulations are administered by the New Mexico Environment
Department (NMED), Environmental llealth Bureau.

In Summary, this subject property is 9.94 +/- acres and has 3 separate existing liquid waste systems.
They have permit #’s SF120179, SF120180 & SF120181. The on-site liquid waste systems are not
sufficient to meet the needs of the proposed B&B. Please see my review below.

Permit SF120179 has a design flow for a Studio (1 bedroom) of 75 Gallons Per Day (GPD). The
correct sizing for a one bedroom is actually 150 GPD of design flow. The Studio apparently has been
altered and is now a two bedroom structure. This will be the residence of the property owner and will
also contain the kitchen where guests will be served breakfast.

As a 2 bedroom residence, this building requires a total design flow of 300 GPD. As reported the tank
size is 1000 gallons and is sufficient for a two bedroom. However, the leach field was sized for a
studio and has only 150 square feet of absorption area which is not insufficient for a two bedroom
residence. The installation of additional leach field will be required.

SF 120180 is sized for a 3 bedroom and has a design flow of 375 GPD. This system was sized
correctly for a residence. However, the required design {low for a B&B is actually less at 350 GPD for
3 bedrooms. Therefore, this system is sized correctly.

SF120181 is sized for a 2 bedroom home or a design flow of 300 GPD. The required design flow for a
B&B is actually less at 250 GPD for 2 bedrooms. This svstem is also sized correctly.

N>~ 3l



Mr. Jose Larranga
Santa Fe County P & Z
March 5, 2014

It was also reported that the kitchen in the homeowner’s residence is currently being remodeled. The
plans for the kitchen should be submitted to this office for a review before construction begins.

If you have any questions regarding this review of CDRC Casc #MP/PDP/DP 31 Bonanza Creek
Preliminary/Final Development Plan or other matters related to this permit, please contact me at the
number above.

Best Regards,

Robert :ta iano, Manag,

Environmental Health Bureau - District 11
New Mexico Environment Department
Santa Fe Field Office

NG



Memorandum

DATE: February 18, 2014
TO: Jose Larrafiaga, Commercial Development Case Manager

FROM: Robert Griego, Planning Manager

FILE REF.: CDRC CASE # MP/PD/DP 31 Bonanza Creek

REVIEW SUMMARY:. CDRC CASE # MP/PD/DP 31 Bonanza Creek Application dated
January 14, 2014 for Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan approval to allow a
Bed and Breakfast Inn and prepared by Jenkins Gavin Design & Development Inc. has been

reviewed for compliance with the Santa Fe County Sustainable Growth Management Plan
(SGMP).

Master Plan

The application is requesting Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan approval to
designate the subject property as “Other Development” per Article 111, Section 8 of the Santa Fe
Land Development Code (1996-10 as amended) for the following uses and intensities on the

property:

Uses
¢ Bed & Breakfast Inn
¢ Single Family Residential

Density:
1 single family residential & 5 unit Bed & Breakfast Inn on 9.94 acres

Intensities
The applicant is proposing that the development will use two residential structures which are
existing on site.
e 5,580 sq. ft. Bed & Breakfast Inn with associated parking, outdoor landscaping and
drainage ponds
» 4,561 sq. ft. single family residence
o total=10,141 sq. ft.

STAFF COMMENT:

Santa Fe Countv Sustainable Growth Management Plan 2010

Approval of Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan is consistent with the SGMP
including principles related to Economic Development:

N — DO



Pursue a diverse and sustainable local economy.

Support mixed-use development that balances employment-generating land uses with
residential land uses to attain a balance of jobs and housing

Small business development, enterprises, and compatible home based businesses should
be supported.

Approval of the Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan will be consistent with
SGMP principles related to Future Land Use Categories and Map:

Ensures compatibility among various land uses providing predictability by protecting
property values and public and private investments in property improvements.
o Appropriate site design and F.A.R. for the Residential Fringe Land Use Category.

The use as a bed and breakfast inn is authorized as a conditional use in the San Marcos
Community Plan which is an amendment to the SGMP.

Approval of the Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan is consistent with SGMP
principles related to Future Land Use Categories and Map as well as the recently adopted SLDC
and draft zoning map:

The site for the proposed development is located in SDA-2 within the Residential Fringe
category of the SGMP Future Land Use Map. The SGMP Residential Fringe Future Land
Use Category anticipates residential zoning for rural homes on large lots, sometimes as
part of rural subdivisions. The SGMP Future Land Use Map and Land Use Category
descriptions do not provide direction for conditional uses in predominately residential
areas. The SLDC has established a Rural Residential Base Zoning District which permits
bed & breakfast inns as a conditional use. The latest draft of the SLDC Zoning Map has
assigned a Rural Residential Base Zoning District to this area. If the Rural Residential
Base Zoning District is established; the conditional use would be deemed compatible
with adjoining area land uses.

Approval of the Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan may/may not be
consistent with SGMP Chapter 11; policies related to providing adequate water supply. The
water budget was not included in the application for this review.

Approval of the Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan is consistent with SGMP
Official Map Series which does not show current or future public need or location of potential
public improvements or acquisitions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Planning staff recommend approval of the Master Plan and Preliminary and Final Development
Plan. Additionally, there is no recommendation at this time for “zoning” the property
commercial since this use is located in a residential land use category and a Bed and Breakfast is
allowed as a Conditional Use in a Rural Residential Base Zoning District.

8]
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Danisl “Daany™ Mayfield
Commissioner, District }

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, Distrizt 4

Miguel Chavez
Commisioner, Districi 2

Kathy Holian
Commissioner, District §

Robert A. Anaya
Conunissioner, District 3

Katherine Miller
County Manager

PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION
MEMORANDUM
Date: January 22, 2014
Ta: Jose Larranaga, Land Use Department

From: Paul Kavanaugh, Engineering Associate Public Works /@’
Johnny P. Baca, Traffic Manager Public Works_

Re: CDRC CASE # MP/PDP/DP 31 Bonanza Creek Master Plan, Preliminary
Development Plan & Final Development Plan.

The referenced project has been reviewed for compliance of the Land Development Code, and
shall conform to roads and driveway requirements of Article V (Subdivision Design Standards}
and Section 8.1 (General Policy on Roads). The referenced project is located within the Santa
Fe County Zoning Jurisdiction and is situated .25 miles of Bonanza Creek Road (C.R. 45) and
State Road 14 Intersection, The applicant is requesting Master Plan, Preliminary
Development Plan & Final Development Plan to allow for Bed and Breakfast Inn on 9.94
acres.

Access:

The applicant is proposing to utilize an existing twenty (207) foot wide base course dnveway to
access the development. The Institute of Transportation Engineers Trip Generation 8" Edition;

does not have a specific designation for Bed and Breakfast Inn, however, ITE 320 Motel (5
Occupied Rooms) is used and will generate approximately 46 Total Driveway Trips for 2 24 hour
Two Way Volume. Therefore, no Traffic Impact Study was Required.

Conclusion:
Public Works has reviewed the plans and feels that they can support the above mentioned project
for Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan Approval.

NG —35
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Daniel “Dancy” Mayfisld
Comnraissioner, District 1

Kathy Holian
C tssioner, District 4

Miguel Chavez Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 2 Conarissioner, District 5
Robert A. Anaya Ksatherine Miller
Commissioner, District 3 Courty Manager
Santa Fe County Fire Department
Fire Prevention Division
Official Development Review
Date oz2M212014
Project Name Bed & Breakfast Inn
Project Location 31 Bonanza Creek Road, Santa Fa, New Mexico 87508
Description Bed & Breakfast inn Case Manager Jose Lamranaga
Applicant Name  itchell Ackerman & Leslie Moody County Case# 14-3010
Applicant Address 34 gonanza Creek Road Fire Dlstrict  1rquoise Trail
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87508
Applicant Phone  Jenkins Gavin 505-699-0563
Commarcial Residential (X  Sprinklers ] Hydrant Acceptance []
Review Type: Master Plan Preliminary Flnal inspection Lot Split [}

Wildiand Variance ]
Project Status: Approved [ | Approved with Conditions Deniat []

The Fire Prevention Division/Code Enforcement Bureau of the Santa Fe County Fire
Department has reviewed the above submittal and requires compliance with applicable Santa Fe
County fire and life safety codes, ordinances and resolutions as indicated (Note underlined items):

Fire Department Access

Shall comply with Article 9 - Fire Department Access and Water Supply of the 1997 Uniform Fire
Code inclusive to all sub-sections and current standards, practice and rulings of the Santa Fe County
Fire Marshal

e Fire Access Lanes

Section 901.4.2 Fire Apparatus Access Roads. (1997 UFC) When required by the Chief, approved
signs or other approved notices shall be provided and maintained for fire apparatus access roads to
identify such roads and prohibit the obstruction thereof or both.

No off-site parking shall be allowed and shall be marked accordingly as approved by the Fire Marshal.

35 Camino Justicia Santa Fe, New Mexico 87508 www.santafecountyfire.org
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Roadways/Driveways

Shall comply with Article 9, Section 902 - Fire Department Access of the 1997 Uniform Fire Code
inclusive to all sub-sections and current standards, practice and rulings of the Santa Fe County Fire
Marshal.

The driveway that circles the property shall meet the 14’ wide minimum County standards for fire
apparatus access road within this type of proposed development. The 14’wide driveway shall be a one-

way only direction. The entry and hammerhead tumaround shall be 20° wide. Driveway and
turparound shall be County approved all-weather driving surface of minimum 6” compacted
basecourse or equivalent. Minimum gate width shall be 20° and an unobstructed vertical clearance of
13 !6!!-

Street Signs/Rural Address

Section 901.4.4 Premises Identification (1997 UFC) Approved nunbers or addresses shall be provided
for all new and existing buildings in such a position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street
or road fronting the property.

Section 901.4.5 Street or Road Signs. (1997 UFC) When required by the Chief. streets and roads shall
be identified with approved signs.

All access roadway identification signs leading to the approved development area(s) shall be in place
prior to the required fire hydrant acceptance testing., Said signs shall remain in place in visible and
viable working order for the duration of the project to facilitate emergency response for the
construction phase and beyond.

Properly assigned legible rural addresses shall be posted and maintained at the entrance(s) to each
individual lot or building site within 72 hours of the commencement of the development process for
each building.

Restricted Access/Gates/Security Systems

Section 902.4 Key Boxes. (1997 UFC) When access to or within a structure or an area is unduly
difficult because of secured openings or where immediate access is necessary for life-saving or
firefighting purposes, the chief is authorized to require a key box to be installed in an accessible
location. The key box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys to gain necessary access as
required by the chief.

Commercial buildings may be required to install a Knox Cabinet or applicable Knox device as
determined by this office for Fire Department access.

To prevent the possibility of emergency responders being locked out, all access gates should be
operable by means of a key or key switch. which is keyed to the Santa Fe County Emergency Access

Svstem (Knox Rapid Entry System). Details and information are available through the Fire Prevention
office.

35 Camino Justicia Santa Fe, New Mexico B7508 www.santafecountyfire.org
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Fire Protection Systems

Automatic fire protection system is not required as long as each sleeping room of the Bed and
Breakfast has direct access door to the outside and an egress away from the building.

s Automatic Fire Protection/Suppression
This office highly recommends the installation of an automatic fire suppression system as per 1997
Uniform Fire Code, Atticle 10 Section 1003.2.1 and the Building Code as adopted by the State of New
Mexico and/or County of Santa Fe. Required automatic fire suppression systems shall be in accordance
with NFPA 13 and 13D Standard for automatic fire suppression systems. It is recommended that the
homeowner contact their insurance carrier to find their minimum requirements.

o Fire Alarm/Notification Systems
Automatic Fire Protection Alarm systems are highly recommended per 1997 Uniform Fire and
Building Codes as adopted by the State of New Mexico and/or the County of Santa Fe. Required Fire
Alarm systems shall be in accordance with NFPA 72, National Fire Alarm Code for given type of
structure and/or occupancy use. Said requirements will be applied as necessary as more project
information becomes available to this office during the following approval process.

Fire Extinguishers

Article 10, Section 1002.1 General (1997 UFC) Portable fire extinguishers shall be installed in
occupancies and locations as set forth in this code and as required by the chief. Portable fire
extinguishers shall be in accordance with UFC Standard 10-1.

Portable fire extinguishers shall be installed in occupancies and locations as set forth in the 1997
Uniform Fire Code. Portable fire extinguishers shall be in accordance with UFC Standard 10-1.

Life Safety

Fire Protection requirements listed for this development have taken into consideration the hazard
factors of potential occupancies as presented in the developer’s proposed use list. Each and every
individual structure of a commercial designation will be reviewed and must meet compliance with the
Santa Fe County Fire Code (1997 Uniforin Fire Code and applicable NFPA standards) and the 1997
NFPA 101, Life Safety Code, which have been adopted by the State of New Mexico and/or the County
of Santa Fe.

Access/Egress

Every room designated as a sleeping room shall have an exit door directly to the outside. If this is
not possible than automatic fire protection system shall be required.

Urban-Wildland Interface
SFC Ordinance 2001-11, Urban Wildland Interface Code

This development’s location is rated within a "Moderate Wildland-Urban Hazard Area" and shall
comply with all applicable regulations within the SFC Ordinance 2001-11/EZA 2001-04 as applicable
for the Urban Wildland Interface Code governing such areas.

35 Caino Justicia Santa Fe, New Mexico 87508 www.santafecountyfire.org
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Building Materials

Buildings and structures located within urban wildland interface areas, not including accessory
structures, shall be constructed in accordance with the Fire Code, the Building Code and the Urban
Wildland Interface Code.

Location/Addressing/Access

Per SFC 2001-11/EZA 2001-04, addressing shall comply with Santa Fe County Rural addressing
requirements.

Per SFC 2001-11 /EZA 2001-04 Chapter 4, Section 3.2 Roads and Driveways; 4ccess roads,
driveways, driveway turnarounds and driveway turnouts shall be in accordance with provisions of the

Fire Code and the Land Development Code. Roads shall meet the minimum County standards for fire
apparatus access roads within this type of proposed development.

General Requirements/Comments

Inspections/Acceptance Tests

Shall comply with Article 1, Section 103.3.2 - New Construction and Alterations of the 1997 Uniform
Fire Code, inclusive to all sub-sections and current standards, practice and rulings of the Santa Fe
County Fire Marshal.

The developer shall call for and submit to a final inspection by this office prior to the approval of the
Certificate of Occupancy to ensure compliance to the requirements of the Santa Fe County Fire Code
(1997 UFC and applicable NFPA standards) and the 1997 NFPA 101, Life Safety Code.

Permits

As required

Final Status

Recommendation for Master/ Preliminary/Final Development Plan approval with the above conditions
applied.

Reneg Nix, Inspj?m
Ynit ALy L-2¢HY
ate

Code Enforcement Ofﬁcfgl P

Through: Chief Dave Sperling
File: DEV/B&B 31BonanzaCresk/21214/TT

Cy: Busler Pacty, Fire Marshal EP
Jose Larrenage, Land Use
Applicant
District Chief Turquoise Trail
File

35 Camino Justicia Santa Fe, New Mexico 87508 www santafecountyfire.org
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 23, 2014

TO: Jose Larranaga, Commercial Development Case Manager
FROM: John Lovato, Terrain Management

VIA: Penny Ellis-Green, Land Use Administrator

Vicki Lucero, Building and Development Services Manager
Wayne Dalton, Building and Development Services Supervisor

FILE REF: CDRC CASE# MP/PDP/FDP 14-5010 31 Bonanza Creck Bed and
Breakfast/Master Plan /Preliminary/Final Development Plan.

REVIEW SUMMARY

The referenced project has been reviewed for compliance with the Santa Fe County Land
Development Code. The request is for Master Plan Zoning, Preliminary Development Plan, and
Final Development Plan approval to allow for an existing home to be utilized as a Bed and
Breakfast on 9.94 Acres. Currently there is a 5,580 square foot five bedroom house which will
serve as the Bed and Breakfast and an existing home which is approximately 4,561 square feet.
The approval would allow for a maximum of five (5) Bedrooms. No additional square footage
will be constructed.

Storm Drainage and Erosion Control:

The Applicant’s proposal has 2 retention ponds located on the southwestern portion of the
property and there is no new expansion to existing or proposed use, Pond (1) one is a 2,400 cubic
foot pond and Pond (2) two is 2,200 cubic feet. The required retention for this project is 3,226
cubic feet. Therefore, the submittal is in conformance of Article VII, Section 3.4.6 and Ordinance
2008-10 Flood Damage Prevention and Stormwater Management Ordinance.

Terrain Management:

The Project contains slopes of 0-15% and slopes from the west to the east into the Arroyo
Gallina. The site is located within a 100 Year Flood Zone and is located in designated Fiood
Hazard A. The project must be setback 75’ from the Hazard Area, and the structures are setback
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at 88 feet. Therefore, the submittal is in conformance with Ordinance 2008-10 Flood Damage
Prevention and Stormwater Management Ordinance
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Daniel “Danny” Mayfield
Commissioner, District 1

Miguel M, Chavez
Commissioner, Dislrict 2

Kathy Holian
Commissioner, District 4

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 5

MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 27, 2014

TO: Jose Larranaga, Development Review Team Leader

FROM: Mathew Martinez, Development Review Specialist

VIA: Vicki Lucero, Building and Development Services Manager

Wayne Dalton, Building and Development Services Supervisor

FILE REF.: CDRC CASE # MP/ PDP/DP 14-5010 31 Bonanza Creek

REVIEY SUMMARY .
ARCHITECTURAL. PARKING. LIGHTING, AND SIGNAGE:

The Referenced Project has been reviewed for compliance with the Santa Fe County Land
Development Code. The request for Master Plan, Preliminary and Final Development Plan approval
for a Bed and Breakfast Inn. The subject property is a 9.94 acre parcel located at 31 Bonanza Creek
Road.

PARKING:

The Applicant has provided 7 parking spaces for the Development. The Applicant has designated 1
space for handicap use. All parking spaces shall be defined with striping, wheel stops, parking
bumpers, or railroad ties. Staff has determined that the parking element of the Application complies
with Article 11, section 9 Parking Requirements.

ARCHITECTURAL:

The Applicant has submitted Building Elevations. No new structures are proposed within this
Application. The Application meets height requirements for both existing structures. The
Architectural element of the Application complies with Article III, Section 2.3.6b. of the Land
Development Code.

SIGNAGE:

No Signage is proposed within this Application.

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 - FAX: 505-
095-2740 www.santafecounty.org
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LIGHTING:

The Applicants propose to utilize existing outdoor lighting on the property. The Applicants have
provided a lighting plan. Staff has determined that the lighting element of this Application complies
with Article III, Section 4.4.4 h.

Due to the nature of the comments contained herein, additional comments may he
forthcoming upon receipt of the required information.

102 Grant Avenue - P.O. Box 276 - Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0276 - 505-986-6200 - FAX: 505-
095-2740 www santafecounty.org
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7.2 Submittals and Reviev

7.1.1 The proposed faciliticSaeg gff order that community services may be provided for
in the County, and .

7.1.2 The use is compatible with eyl
development permitted upét

The submittals apg
111. Section 4.;

reviews for community service facilitics shall bothgse provided for in Article

Compilgg® Note. Section 4.5 was amended by County Ordinance 1988-9, and consists of revicw
procafflires and submittals for any non-residential use requesting a zoning approval.,

ﬁ SECTION 8 - OTHER DEVELOPMENT

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

Uses Permitted

All uses not otherwise regulated by the Code are permitted anywhere in the County. Such uses
specifically include. but are not limited to utilities, parking facilities. and cemeteries.

Submittals. Reviews and Standards

Uses regulated by this Section 8 shall be considered large scale if they involve the grading and
clearing of 10 or more acres. contiguously or cumulatively; and small scale if less disturbance of
the land is involved. Development standards and criteria and submittal requirements arc set
forth in Sub-sections 4.4 and 4.5.

A development permit shall not be reauired for. and provisions of the Code shall not applv
to. utilitv easements, utilitv rights-of-wav, and construction of utility line extensions.

In addition to the above requirements. any development involving a water or sewer utilitv must be
in conformance 1o an adopted Community Land Use and Ulility Plan, unless system capacity is
limited to that needed to serve existing development.

N 9 - PARKING REQUIREMENTS

The followi atking requirements are established for the types of develggh
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-2 also the setback requirements

set forth in S ion 4, Design Standards,

c. Parking Lot Location.
Parking lots shall be placed tygg#tited on a site:
I) to the rear or side of byijdmes (or both); and
2) toencourage pedegife ¥gd convenience,
d. Terrain Managggh
All developg®nt of a lot, tract or parcel shall¥gz done in accordance with Article Vil.
Section g#0T this Code.
Historv. 198" Comp, 1980-6. Section 4.4.3 was amended by Coulity Ordinance 1990-11 adding
all new nf*lerial for site planning standards. .

ma 4.4.4 Development and Design Standards

a.

Screening
Outdoor storage. parking and loading areas which are visible from public roads or

from abutting public lands or residential areas shall be screened. Such screening may
be landscaping. walls, fencing, building placement, berms, or any combination
thereof. For landscaping plans and standards relating to screening see Sub-section f.

Buffer Zones and Setbacks

1) Proposed non-residential districts or uses that adjoin parcels on which dwellings
are located within 100 feet of the property line adjacent to the parcel on which the
use is to be located shall be set back 100 feet from the property line in major or
community center districts and 25 feet in local or small scale districts. The 100
setback arca may be used to meet the off-strest parking requirement of Section 9
of Article 111 except that no parking may be provided within twenty five (25) feet
of the property line in Major and Community Center Districts and five (5) feet
from property lines in Local and Small Scale Districts. In the setback area.
existing vegetation shall be preserved and natural topographic features. planting,
building placement. walls, fencing. earth berms or landscaping or any
combination thereof. shall be used to keep buildings, parking or cutdoor storage
unobtrusive,

1) Allernatives to the 100 foot setback are specified in Article V, Section 8.1.4 ¢. 1-
5.

3} Side and rear vard setbacks shall apply only to lots at the edge of a non-
residential districl. Zero lot lines (no setback) for building placement may be
allowed, if fire resislive construction between buildings is provided directly
adjacent or adjoining on interior propeny lines,

Maximum Height .

Structures shall b2 limited to 2 maximum height of thirty six (36) feei from the
highest point of the surface of the ground at the perimater of the structure in Major or
Community Cenler Districts and to twenty four (24) feet in height in Neighborhood or
Local Center Districts.

Parkin
Compliance with the parkmg standards set forth in Article IH, Section 9, is required.

EXHIBIT
HI-28
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e. Maximum Lot Coverage
Maximum lot coverage for all structures for any development shall not exceed thirty

percent (30%) in major or community cenier districts or twenty parcent (20%) in
neighborhood or small scale center districts,

f. Landscaping -

444 f 1) Purpose and Intent

Landscape trestments are applicabls to all development for the following

purposes: :

() To assure that new development creates an amenity and improves and
enhances the visual quality of an area;

(b) To buffer or screen visually unattractive land uses from roadways and
residential areas;

(c) To shade, cool and define large parking areas;

(d) To define the separate function of thoroughfares and other land usss;

& (e) To minimize erosion, dust and slope instability,

(f) To assure that landscape treatment and improvements are designed, installed
and maintained so that they conform to submitied plans or master plans for
landscaping,

(g} To preserve both native vegetation and landscapes and to protect the visual
and structural integrity of hillsides or steep or mountainous areas from the
effects of development by revegetation of disturbed areas; and

(h) To promote conservation of water through the use of drought (olerant plant
malerials and xeriscape techiniques.

444 f 2) Thelandscaping requirements of this Code are cumulative; applicants shall meet:

e the standards for minimum arca on a development site (Sections 4.4.4 4, 9,
and 10); plus

e any required road frontage area (Anicle III. Sections 4.4.4 f 10 and 13 and
Article V, Sections 8.1.4); plus

» landscaping for parking lots (Scctions 4.4.4 £ 11), plus

s landscaping for drainage ponding areas (Article VII, Section 3.4.6 f); and

* revegetation (Article VII, Section 3.4.5),

except where specific substitutions or adjustments are provided for in these

regulations,

444 f 3) Native Vesoetatign; Preservation

(a) lntent
It is the intent of the Code to protect and retain native vegetation and
landscapes for all development. Native trees, shrubs and other natural
vegetation stabilize steep slopes, retain moisture, prevent erosion, provide
habitat for wildlife, play a role in the prevention of air and noise pollution
and enhance natural scenic qualities.
(b} Limitations on grading and clearing.
(1) Grading shall bz limited to the development site within the Buildable
Area on a lot or tract
(2) Clearing of existing native vegetation shall be limited to approved
development sites. No significant tree may be removed from slopes
greater than thirty percent (30%).

HI - 29
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(3) Cleared or graded areas which are not built on and cut and fill areas
shall be revegetated to the approximale original density and type of
vegetalion existing prior to disturbance. Areas to be used for recreation
or park landscaping or rural agricultural uses shall be excluded from this
requirement.

(4) Any transplantable tree that will be displaced by construction shall be
the primary source of new vegetation required for screening, buffering or ~
other landscaping purposes. (See Appendix 3.C, incorporated by
reference herein for tree preservation and transplanting guidelines.)

(5) Native trees, shrubs and landscape shall be retained within any ]
designated landscape areas set aside for buffers; retention of the natural
vegetation will reduce the requirement for new planting. Native trees
which are to be preserved on a development site shall be protected
during construction from such hazards as damage by vehicles and
equipment compaction of soils, and spills of contaminants by temporary
fences or barricades crected at the perimeter of the critical root zone.
Permanent installation of such techniques as retaining walls, terracing
and tree wells with drainage shall be used 1o protect trees in arcas where
significant grade changes are approved.

44.4f 4) Landscaping Plan

A landscaping plan is required for all new development and shall be presented for

review with either the master plan or the preliminary development plan and shall

contain the following information:

(a) alandscaping map drafied to scale describing the lot(s) or parcel(s). the
development site, proposed structures and other development, the designated
landscape areas, including revegetation areas; private gardens are not
included;

(b} within the designated landscape areas, including revegetation areas, the plan
shall locate and label:

(1) existing vegetation which will be retained by type and size;
(2) existing vegetation which will be transplanted, or removed by type and
size; and
{3} location, type, and size of plants to be installed;
(c) all plant material to be retained or installed shall be located and labeled,
footprinted according to the spread of the plants at maturity;
a list of the type and number of plants to be retained and installed. with
common and botanical names, showing the existing size of specific trees and
plants by approximate width of canopy, spread and caliper or gallon size at
time of planting and the size of the plant material at maturity in height and
width;
(¢) methods and details for protecting existing vegetation during construction;
(f) the location and quantity of all other materials to be vused as part of the
landscape treatment; planting and installation details as necessary to show
conformance with all standards;
(g) adescription of the proposed system of irrigation including the use of on-site
storm water collection, drip irrigation, recycled water or other systems:
(h) methods for protecting required landscaping from damage by automobiles
and run off containing salts from paved areas;
(i) the purpose of each plant material to be used, e.g., for screening, omament,
shade or other purposs;

d
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(i) adescription of proposed structures or other buffering devices, such as walls.
fences or earth berms, including location, height, building materials and/or
exterior finish treatment which are part of the landscape treatment;

(k) awater use budget which includes the type of vegetation, the type of
irrigation system (drip, flood, or sprinkler), the area in square fest that will
be planted in each type of vegetation and the irrigation application
requirement in gallons per square foot per year, for each type of vegetation.
See Landscape= Irrigation Requirements in New Mexico, New Mexico State
Engineer's Office.

(I) an estimate of the cost of installation of the Iandscape materials; and

(m) the landscaping plan submitied with the preliminary development plan for
an individual use shall be in conformance with the approved master plan for
landscaping. '

(n} Landscape areas shall be designated only on the development site within the
Buildable Area of the lot and shown on the development plan and where
applicable, the plat.

4,44 f 5) Landscaping Desien Standards

All landscaping shall meet the following requirements:;

(a) Proposed landscaping plans shall promote water conservation, provide
planting malerials that are appropriate to the growing conditions of the site.
and provide buffers and landscaped areas which are proportionate to the area
and height of the proposed development.

(b) Native vegetation shall b2 protected pursuant to the standards of Section
44413,

(c) Landscaped arcas shall be a minimuem of ten percent (10%) of the approved
development site. Limitations may be placed on the maximum landscaped
area in order to meet water conservation requirements,

(d) Pedestrian. bike or equestrian pathways or trails are allowed within
landscape areas on street frontages provided that no plant material is
eliminated and the total width of the buffer is maintained:

(e) Parking. loading and outdoor storage are prohibited within a landscaped
area:

4441 6) Xeriscape Principles: Water requirements shall be reduced by:

(a) Native vegetation or introduced vegetation that is freeze oF and drought
resistant shall be used for new landscaping in an effort to conserve water use
once the plants are established. Botanical materials shall be chosen so they
fit within the water budget or water use plans for the development. Plant
materials, their size at maturity, how they can be used, their water usc and
other information is listed in Appendix 3.C, and incorporated by reference
herein.

(b) Limiting the amount of lawn grass areas:

(1) Lawn or turf areas shall be limited to no more than twenty-five percent
(25%) of landscaped areas. Areas dedicaled (o recreational playfields or
to the production of food crops such as vegetable gardens or orchards are
not included;

(2) Lawn areas shall not be planted in strips eight feet (8" wide or less.

(c) Xeriscape principles shall be followed in the design, installation and
maintenance of landscaping, pursuant to Appendix 3.C, and incorporated by
reference herein.

IIf - 31

ARTICLE I - ZONING REGULATIONS, SUBMITTALS AND REVIEWS



13053873

444f 7)) Planting Standards: .

(a) A minimum of seventy five percent (75%) of an area designated for
landscaping shall be developed with living plant materials including areas
segded with grasses and flowers. See references in Appendix 3.C for
information and recommendations on use of water efficient planting.

(b) Designated landscape areas or buffer zones shall be planted according to a
ratio of one tres at a minimum height at maturity of twenty-four feet (24') for
each five hundred (500) square feet, and one shrub of a minimum height and
spread at maturity of four feet (4') for each sixtesn (16) square feet.

(1) Where the required buffer is five hundred (500) square feet or less (for
small parcels only) a minimum of two (2) trees shall be planted.

(2) Larger trees are required for large parking lots and buildings: see
Subsections 4,4.4 { 11 and 12.

(c} Non-vegetative landscape materials may include gravel, rock and bark
mulch. Walls, fences and berms are types of non-vegetative landscape
structures which may be incorporated into landscape arcas pursuant to these
standards.

4441 8) Adiustments
Minor adjustments to the landscape standards may be permitted in accordance

with this subsection, subject to the approval of the Code Administrator pursuant

to a site visit and provided that the modifications shall not be inconsistent with

the purposes of this Section.

(a) Adjustments will be considered for existing heavily vegetated areas or for
plant materials with varying characteristics provided that:

(1} The ratio of living plant material to inorganic material is maintained at
seventy-five percent (75%) living materials to twenty-five percent (25%)
inorganic materials; and

(2) The living plant material is installed so as to provide a continuous visual
screen or may be planted in drifis or clumps with pockets of open areas
providing the sense of continuity with the street edge is maintained; and

(3) screening of cuts or retaining walls in steep slopes from public rights of
way is maintained.

(b) Additional trees meeting minimum planting standards may be substituted for
shrubs in rural locations or where water restrictions are severe, provided that
the buffering or screening function is maintained; each additional tree may
substitute for fifieen (15) shrubs,

(c) Adjustments of up to fifty percent (50%) to the width of the Road Fronage
landscape area (See Section 4.4.4  10) will be considered where « four foot -
(4') high masonry wall or a six foot (6') high opaque fence or earth berm is
constructed,

(d) Plant materals required for screening of cuts, fills or retaining walls in areas
of steep terrain may not be adjusted.

(e} In other areas. the ratio of living plant materials may be reduced by fifty
percent (50%) where the landscape treatment includes walls. fences or berms
Walls or fences should be located in the landscape area to accornmodate the
installation of the living plant materials.

() Minor design adjustments may be made to the designated landscape arcas on
the development site to accommodate solar access for solar design as long as
the substance of landscape standards for screening and buffering are met

I11 - 32
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4441 9) Bufferine and Revegetation for Ridgetops and Development Sites with a Natural

Slope of fifieen percent (15%) or preater
Any cut slope greater than four feet (4') in height or with a grade of two and one

half to one (2.5:1) or stegper, retaining walls and erosion control structures and

the facades of any building visible from a public way shall be screened or

otherwise landscaped as follows:

() A minimum of fifty percent (50%) of the visible portion of a facade or
retaining wall shall be screened; trees shall be planted or retained within
fifteen feet (15" of all retaining walls to be screened and in an 2rea no less
than twenry-five feet (25') and no more than fifty feet (50°) from any facade 10
be screened;

{b) Trees shall be planted on the downhill side of road cuts and of fill areas.
Cuts and fills may be required to be terraced and planted in order to provide
screcning and slops stabilization;

(c) Top soil shall be removed and stockpiled for later use in re-vegetation of the
disturbed areas;

(d) New vegetation (trees and seeded areas) shall approximate existing
vegetation in type, density, and natural pattern of occurrence on the lot;
density shall be determined by an inventory of existing vegetation within the
development site prior to grading,

(e) Density in landscape and revegetation areas shall approximate the density of
vegetation prior to disturbance; in no case shall density in landscape and
revegelation areas be less than one (1) tree per one thousand (1000) square
feet of designated area:

() New trees shall be spaced at a distance equal to the the average diameter of
the spread of the crown of the typical mature specimen of the species planted
under similar growing conditions;

(g) New trees shall be a minimum of six feet (6") in height, which, at maturity,
will approximate the height of existing native trees and be as tall as the cut
and fill or structure to be screened:

() Seceded areas shall be protected by accepted horticulwral practices to assure
germination; See Appendix 3.C. incorporated by reference herein,

(i) Seeding or planting may be delayed for the optimum germination or planting
season, provided such delay is conditioned on the development permit and
bonding or other financial warranty is secured.

(j) Designated landscape areas for screening on ridgetops and steep terrain may
be included in the minimum 10% development site landscape area required
pursuant to Section 4.4.4 f5.

44.4f 10) Landscaping for Road Frontage Areas
(a) The width of landscape areas between the street or road right of way and any

developed areas of a parcel shall be as follows:

Highways or Arterials - 25 feet

Collector or Local - 10 feet

(b) Upon approval of the governmental agency responsible for the maintenance

of the adjoining roadway. any public right-of-way between the front property
line and the street may be landscaped and maintained by the property owner
retaining native materials or using grass, groundcovers, or low growing
shrubs having a maximum mature height exceeding two (2) feet. or be
treated with a non-vegetative cover such as bark muich or gravel. Where
appropriate, such areas may be considered as part of the width of landscape
areas as set forth in Section 4.4.4 £.10-(a).
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{c) Living plant materials installed in areas designated for landscaping on road /
frontages shall be planted so as to create the appearance of a continuous edge '
occasionally punctuated with dissimilar materials,

(d) In order 1o avoid a tunneling effect where a development borders on a
highway or arterial street or road for more than one thousand (1000) feet,
developers or builders shall vary the masonry structures, fences or walls with
living plants.

4441 11 Landscaping for Parking Lots

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this Section f. perimeter landscape
screening providing a visual buffer is required in the following
circumstances:

(1) along the front for parking lots with more than ten (10) parking spaccs
or four thousand (4.000) square feet, which ever is less; and

(2) along the front, side and rear property lines, as applicable, where
parking is located within twenty five (25) feet of a property line
adjoining residential uses. Standards for landscaping the front of the lot
are set forth in Section 4.4.4 {. 10, Standards for side lot landscaping are
set forth in Section 4.4.4 £, 13,

(b) Interior landscaping is required for parking lots with more than forty (40)
parking spaces and/or more than twelve thousand (12,000) square feet.
Interior landscaping shall cover a minimum area equivalent to one (1)
parking space or ong hundred sixty (160) square feet for every twenty (20)
parking spaces.

(1) Interior landscaping shall be designed to shade the parking spaces and
provide a visual break to the parking lot surface, Plant material shall
consist of a minimum of one (1) deciduous shade tree and three shrubs
for every ten (10) parking spaces. The shade trees shall be a minimum
of one and one-half inch (1.5") caliper and six (6) feet tall and meet
current American Association of Nurserymen standards at the time of
planting. and have a thirty foot (30" minimum mature height, with a
clear trunk at least five feet (5') above the finished grade. Shrubs shall
be five (5) gallon size at the time of planting and shall have a minimum
mature height of three (3} feet;

(2) Non-vegetative cover including but not limited to gravel or bark is
required under trees where other planting is not provided.

(3) Interior landscaping planting islands shall have a minimum area of one
hundred sixty (160) square feet and a minimum dimension of four (4)
feet;

(4) Interior landscaping shall be uniformly distributed throughout the
parking lot,

(5) Pedestrian pathways or sidewalk areas shall be incorporated into the
parking area landscape treatment.

(c) Large parking lots (100 spaces or more and/or 30,000 square feet in area or
larger) shall provide interior planting area equal to at least ten percent (10%)
of the parking lot area: and
(1) Interior landscaping shall be designed to shade the parking spaces and

provide a visual break to the parking lot surface. Plant material shall

consist of a minimum of one (1) deciduous shade tree and two (2) shrubs

for every five (5) parking spaces. Shrubs shall be five (5) gallon size at

the time of planting and shall have a minimum mature height of three

(3) feet. Shade trees must have a clear trunk at least five feet (5') above (
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the finished grade to allow vehicular circulation beneath the tree canopy
and shall have a minimum height at maturity of forty fest (40'); shade
trees shall be a minimurm of three inch (3"} caliper and six (6) feet tall at
the time of planting; all plant and tree sizes must mee! current American
Association of Nurserymen standards at the time of planting.

(2) Non-vegetative cover including but not limited to gravel or bark is
required under tress where other planting is not provided.

(3) Larger planting islands connecled by pedestrian access ways shall be
provided for greater visual relief from paved expanses, to reduce high
summer temperatures and 1o create an environment more conducive for
healthy tree growth; tree planting areas must be at least eight feet (8" in
any dimension; planting islands parallel to parking spaces must be at
least nine feet (9') wide to allow car doors to swing open.

(4) Tree species chosen should require litle maintenance, and be able to
tolerate harsh growing conditions such as sun, wind, glare, reflected
heat. drought. salt and other chemicals.

(5) Interior landscaped areas not dedicated 1o trees or (o preservation of
existing vegetation shall bz landscaped with native grasses, ground
cover, shrubs, or other appropriaie landscape treatment,

(6) To calculate parking lot area, all areas within the lot perimeter are
counied. including planting islands, curbed areas, sidewalks, parking
spaces and all interior driveways and aisles. Landscaped areas outside
the parking lot may not be used to meet the interior planting
requirement.

4.4.4f 12) Landscape Treatments Shall be Scaled
Landscape treatments shall be scaled to screen multi-story commercial, industrial,

and large scale residential structures and/or buildings of 30,000 square feet or

larger by:

{a) Use of trees in road frontage areas and residential buffer areas which have a
minimum height at marurity of forty feet (40'; shade trees shall be a
minimum of three inch (3") caliper and six (6) feet tall at the time of
planting: all plant and tree sizes must meet current American Association of
Nurserymen standards at the time of planting:

(b) Use of evergreens and canopy or shade trees shoutd predominate in road
frontage arcas: ornamental trees and shrubs and smaller native trees may be
interspersed in groups which simulate natural tree stands;

(c) Placement of landscaping materials to screen the bulk of buildings and
provide visual relief and protection from high summer iemperature for large
areas of impervious surface (buildings, paving, courtyards, etc);

(d) Existing vegetation and native species may be retained on site and counied
toward required trees and shrubs in landscape areas, but the plant reduction
of Scction 4.4.4 f 2. shall not apply to large scale buildings.

4.4.4f 13) Buffering Residential Uses from Nonresidential Uses and Roadwavs
(a) Commercial, office or industrial developments located at the perimeter of
nonresidential districts where there are existing residential uses may be
required to provide a landscaped area and structural buffer between any
nonresidential use and residential use on the side or rear lot lines. Such
buffer shall consist of a six fool (6') masonry wall or fence constructed of
opaque materials and a threz foot (3') wide planting area. Trees and shrubs
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selected for the three foot planting area may be used to create shade or visual !

amenity. Trailing vines for the wall may also be considered.

(b) Screening and Buffering for Residential Uses. The requirements for
scresning residential areas from roadways and nonresidential uses, and for
landscaping residential common open space, may include one or more of the
following:

(1) stuccoad poured concrete walls;

(2) stuccoed masonry walls of cement block, brick or adobe;

(3) earthtone masonry walls;

{4) rock or field stone walls;

(5} wood fences of materials at least 3/4 inch thick with crossbracing
secured with posts on maximum eight (8) foot centers set in concrete or
posts treated with preservatives set twenty four (24) inches deep,

(6) ecarth berms with shrubs and vegetative groundcovers;

(7 any combination of shrubs and tress which effectively creates a screen.
or

(8} a combination of the above. The developer may choose any of the above
screening methods at his discretion,

(c) Density of vegetation shall meet standards of Section 4.4.4 7, Planting
Standards and 4.4.4 { 8, Adjusiments,

4,44 14) Installation Maintenance, Inspection, Enforcement

(a) Landscaping shall be installed for inspection prior to the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy or Business License unless appropriate financial
warranty has been approved by the Code Administrator. Also see
revegetation requirements of Article VIi, Section 3, Terrain Management,

(b) A bond or letter of credit in an amount reasonably required by the Code
Administrater shall be submitted if seeding or planting of required
landscaping and revegelation must be delayed for optimum results. The
applicant may be required to submit a cost estimate by 2 licensed landscape
architect. Such delay shall be specified on the development permit.

(¢) All vegetation installed pursuant to an approved landscaping or terrain
management plan which later dies shall be replaced.

(d) Trees and large shrubs shall be supporied afier planting in such a way that
the plants will not be injured by strong winds.

(e) Responsibility for the success of landscaping installations belongs entirely to
the property owner and may be subject (o periodic inspections by the Code
Administrator. The property owner shall be responsible for control of plant
growth by pruning or trimming so that it will not interfere with the .
installation, maintenance or repair of any public utility, pedestrian or
vehicular access or constitute a traffic hazard.

4.4.4 h. Quidoor Lighling
1) Purpose

Outdoor lighting standards are applicable to all development in the County.
Outdoor lighting shall be designed and arranged to enhance the safety of areas
designated for pedestrian use during evening hours, to provide security, to
conserve energy, o protect the night sky and in particular, to prevent the
spillover, nuisance or hazard effects of light and glare on adjacent locations and
vses of land,
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2) Definitions

(a) cut-off - the poiat at which all light rays from the light source or luminaire is
completely eliminated at a specific angle above the ground.

{b) cut-off luminaire ~ a luminaire with shield, reflectors, reflector panels or
other housing which directs and cuts off light rays from direct view.

(c) footcandle - a unit of illumination produced on a surface, all points which are
ane (1) foot from a uniform point source of one (1) candle. A comparative
measure is the brightness of a full moon which is equal to .01 footcandle.

(d) glare- the brightness of 2 light source which causes eye discomfort.

(e) luminaire - a complete lighting unit consisting of a light source and all
necessary mechanical electrical and decorative parts.

3) Submittals

(a) Forall development involving outdoor lighting fixtures a lighting plan shall
be submitted for master plan or preliminary development plan or
Development Permil review, as applicable, showing the location, mounting
heigh, types of luminaires, accessory equipment such as shades, deflectors or
other housing controlling the direction of light on a surface and the beam
direction of any luminaire. Descriptions of all illuminating devices shall
include, as applicable, manufacturers' drawings showing sections and
photometric data showing the angle of cut off of light emissions,

(b) The plan shall be drawn to scale and shall also include elevations of building
facades showing the location of, and shiclding devices for, wall mounted
luminaires and detailed drawings of the luminaires and accessory equipment
to be used.

(c) Additional submittals that may be required include, but are not limited to.
preparation of a visual impact analysis for alternative types of lighting
salutions for the project as those would affect and be seen from adjacent
properties and public ways, a comparative analysis of performance standards
relating mounting height, footcandles, footcandle levels and location for
various types of lighting which could be developed for the proposed usc and
types of shields, deflectors and adjusunents on orientation or other buffers
which could be implemented to initigate glare, nuisance or hazardous effects
of any night lighs,

4) Off-Street Lighting Design Standards

(a) The use of cut-off type luminaires is required. All light bulbs and light
sources shall be shielded so that they are not directly visible frowm any
adjacent lot or public roadway. All outdoor lighting fixtures shall meet
requircments for lamp type and shielding set forth in Table 3.1, Cutdoor
Lighting Requirements, below.

(b) Spillover of lighting faor adjacent properties shall not exceed one half of one
(.50) footcandle measured at any point ten feet (10" beyond a propeny line.

(c) For residential uses, no luminaire shall be installed higher than the
building(s) on the lot. For all other uses and for parking lots for multi-family
residential uses, no luminaire shall be installed higher than one and one half
(1.5) the height of any structure proposed for development or twenty four feet
(24", whichever is less.

(d) Alllight bulbs and light sources shall be recessed into any canopy structure
that is designated for pedestrian use, loading or service, unless a suitable
alternative is submitted for approval. Decorative lamps housing an
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incandescent light source of 160W or less for hanging under portals are
exemplaed.

(e) In nonresidential districts building facades may be illuminated with ground
floodlamps installed close to the structure; wall mounted floodlamps shall be
shielded so that the light source is not visible. Spotlights without a shielding
device are prohibited. Ground mounted luminaires for building facade
illumination are not permitted in residential districts.

(f) Control of the distribution of illurnination for outdoor recreation areas.
outdoor storage areas or outdoor display of merchandise is subject 1o
additional submiltals.

(g) Automatic timing devices may be required to turn off lighting installed for
display or outdoor sporting events at specified hours. The use of security
lights using motion sensors is encouraged, especially for residential
applications.

(h} A range of lighting design solutions for the various aspects of a development
shall be considered over a single lighting solution.

5) Street Lightine Desipn Standards
(a) It is the intent of these Regulations to require installation of street lights only

-where necessary to continug the urban streetscape or to provide for pedestrian
and motorist safety. It is not the intent to require or encourage installation of
street lights in subdivisions with a niral character.

{b) Street lights are required in the following circumstances:

(1) on paved streets and roads where curb, gutter and sidewalk are required;

(2) for safety purposes on arterial roads or at intersections of any road with
a highway or arterial.

(c) Standards for street light installations:

(1) Lighting shall be provided in accordance with a plan designed using
guidelines and standards set forth by the Illuminating Engineers Society
(IES) Lighting Handbook, latest revision, and the standards set forth in
this section. Recommended lighting levels and uniformity ratios are
found in Appendix 3.B of the Code.

(2) Plans designed by utility companies shall meet the standards in this
section,

(3) Low or high pressure sodium lamps or other energy efficient sources
shall be used in all installations.

(4) Cut-off luminaires shall be used to direct light downward in order to
prevent the spillover, nuisance or hazard effects of light and glare on any
adjacent locations. Cobra head fixtures shall be equipped with skirting -
or other design features to shield the light source. See Table 3.1,
Outdoor Lighting Requirements.

(5) Street lights shall be located and designed 1o enhance the safety of
motorists and pedestrians during evening hours. Location shall be
planned 1o provide a transition from unlit areas to lit areas and
continuity and uniformity of lighting. Street lights shall be installed so
as 10 create a transition from dark to illuminated areas and avoid blind
spots or dark shadows which are hazardous to drivers.

(6) The maximum height of standards (upright supports) shall not exceed
twenty-four feet (24'), except on public roads wider than two (2) lanes
and arterials where taller standards up to thirty-six fest (36" may be
used. This height Iimit may be varied by the Code Administrator if a
site specific study clearly demonstrates that use of a taller standard will
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better achieve the purposes of this subsection 4.4.4 b, Outdoor Lighting,
and these Street Light Design Standards.

{(7) Strest lights in subdivisions shall be equippad with electric meters to
allow billing to the developer or owners' association unless other
arrangements are agresd {0 by the Board.

(8) All street light conductors shall be installed underground.

(d) Safetv. Notwithstanding other requirements of this Section. the County
Development Review Committes or Board may require installation of street
lights whenever needed to protect the safety of motorists and pedestrians due
1o the particular characteristics or location of the site,

(e) Mainiepance. Payments for operations, maintenance and energy charges
shall be the responsibility of the developer or owners' association. The
disclosure statement and owners' association by-taws shall set forth an
acceptable method for charging each lot owner for maintenance and
operation.

6) Non-Confonning Cutdoor Lights

(a) Mercury vapor lamps in use for outdoor lighting on the effective date of this
amendment to the Code (April 30, 1996, Ordinance Na. 1996-3) shall be
removed or replaced with lamp fixtures meeting the standards of this Anicle
IT1. Section 4 within five (5) years.

(b) All other outdoor light fixtures lawfully installed prior to and operable on the
effective date of this Code amendment (April 30, 1996, Ordinance No, 1996-
3) are exempt from the requirements of this Section. However, whenever
there is a change in use or lamp type or any replacement or structural
alteration made to such non-conforming outdoor light fixtures, they shall be
made to conform to all applicable requirements of this Code,

(c) Non-conforming outdoor lights which are found by the Code Administrator
or the County Development Review Commitie2 1o create a nuisance or
hazard and are in violation of this ordinance shall be required to be replaced
with lamp types or fixtures which conform to the requirements of this Code.
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@lfill the proposals contained in the subdivider's disclosure statem and in determining
wiMGer or not the subdivider's provisions for a subdivision conform wjéfi County regulations

4.8 Common Momotional Plans
The Code AdMgnistrator will review proposed applicatiopd’ to determine whether there is a
common promotiohgl plan to subdivide a property. If it j##determined that the land division does
constitute a common Pgpmotional plan, the project shplf comply with the procedures provided for

in this Article V.

SECTION 5 - PROCEDURES AN

5.1 Pre-application Procedures

Prior to the filing of an applicationyf goval of a preliminary plat, the subdivider shall confer

hginted with these subdivision regulations. At this

Conditions dcr which Master Plans and Development Pags are required as described in
Sections 32 and 7.
6. A detegflination will be made as 1o the appropriate scale and format for plans and plats and

as iggfie appropriatencss of applicable submittal requirements.

Lh

5.2 Master Plan Procedurc

5.2.1 Intreduction and Description
a. Master plans are required in the following cases:

i.  All Type 1. Type 11, and Type IV subdivisions with more than one development
phase or tract:

it. As required in Article HI for developments other than subdivisions: and

iti. Such other projecis which may elect to apply for master plan approval,
U--’ b. A master plan is comprehensive in establishing the scope of a project. yet is less

detailed than a deveclopment plan. It provides a means for the County Development

Review Commitiee and the Board to review projecls and the subdivider to obtain

concept approval for proposed development without the necessity of expending large

sums of money for the submittals required for a preliminary and final plat approval.

c. The master plan submiual will consist of both plans and written reports which include
the information required in 5.2.2 below. A typical submittal would include a vicinity
map. a plan showing existing site data. a conceptual environmental plan with wntten
documentation, a master plan map, a master plan report, a schematic utilities plan and
the phasing schedule. Maps and rcports may be combined or expanded upon at the
discretion of the applicant to fit the particular development proposal as long as the
relevant information is included.

EXHIBIT
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Daniel "Danny™ Mayfield
Commissioner, District |

Kathy Holian
Commissioner, Distriet 4

Miguel M. Chavez
Commntissioner, District 2

Liz Stefanics
Commissioner, District 5

Robert A. Anaya
Commissioner, District 3

Katherine Miller
Cowunty Manager

March 6, 2014

To: Jose E. Larrafiaga, Commercial Development Case Manager

From: Karen Torres, County Hydrologist

Re: CDRC Case # MP/PDP/DP 31 Bonanza Creek- Master, Preliminary and Final
Development Plan T15N R8E Sections 26 and 27.

Nature of Project:

The applicant is requesting a Master, Preliminary and Final Development Plan approval to
operate an existing 5 room bed and breakfast facility and maintain a private residence on a 9.945
acre parcel. A water budget of 0.25 acre-feet per year for both commercial and residential uses is
proposed. The development is located in the basin fringe hydrologic zone and is considered a
non-conforming legal lot of record by the Land Use Department.

The development is served by an on-site 72-12-1 well (RG-31117) currently permitted for single
household use. A second well on the property (RG-8039) is permitted for both household and
livestock use but is currently inactive. Sanitary sewer will be provided by three on-site septic
tanks.

History of Review:

According to the Land Use Department a bed and breakfast has operated at this location in the
past without zoning approval. No review of this development was found but the current request
will allow the bed and breakfast to remain in business.

On February 26, 2014 this development request was reviewed for technical accuracy and
compliance with the SFC Land Development Code and concerns regarding the low residential
water budget for the entire project were raised with the applicant’s agent.

On February 26", 2014 a revised water budget was received via e-mail from the applicant’s
agent.

EXHIBIT
102 Grant Avenue P.O. Box 276 g q -1985 www. santafecounty.org
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SFC Land Development Code Master Plan Requirements for Water and Wastewater:

To address requirements of the SFC Land Development Code the pertinent sections of the Code
are written out and are addressed individually as to compliance. At master plan level all
applicants requesting approval of a non-residential development proposing to use more than 1.0
acre-foot must submit a water supply plan as required by Article Vil Section 6.2.2 of the Code
and liquid waste disposal plan. To determine if a water supply plan is necessary a review of the
revised water budget was performed.

The water budget proposed by the applicant’s agent estimates a total water budget for the project
of 0.25 which includes a residential water budget of 0.14 acre-foot, 0.1 acre-foot for the 5 room
bed and breakfast and 0.02 acre-foot for landscaping. This is an unusually low water budget for
a project of this size but an effort was made to find water use data that would support this budget.

A similar project was reviewed in 2012 which used average annual water usage figure, taken
from a 2009 City of Santa Fe water usage report, of 0.08 acre-foot per room for a motel of
limited service. This figure was adjusted down by 25% to reflect a lower occupancy rate due to
remote location, lack of signage and reservation only guests. To verify this methodology meter
readings from an existing 7 room bed and breakfast with residential quarters were reviewed and
are as follows:

Year Gallons / Acre-feet
Year / Year
2009 249310 gals 0.77
2010 269,270 gals 0.83
2011 295,850 gals 0.91
2012 285,020 gals 0.87
2013 208,340 gals 0.64
Average 261,558 gals 0.80

Since the residence is not metered separately the average residential water use per person for the
County Utility for the years 2009 — 2011 were obtained and are as follows:

Year Residential Gallons | Ave. 2000 and 2010 | AFY
per Capita per Day Census Household
(GPCPD) Size
2009 55.81 GPCPD 2.64 0.165
2010 56.38 GPCPD 2.64 0.167
2011 58.45 GPCPD 2.52 0.165
Average 0.166

31 Bonanza Creek Road
CDRC Case MP/PDP/DP
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To obtain an estimate of annual use the average household size based on census data was
multiplied by the per person water use and the number of days in a year. It should be noted the
average household size is used as a general practice to project future water demand as there is no
guarantee the occupancy of the property will remain the same. The average annual residential
water use is estimated at 0,166 acre-feet per year. Subtracting out the estimated residential water
demand the average water use associated with the 7 room bed and breakfast is 0.634 acre-foot or
0.091 acre-foot per room. This is slightly higher than the average City of Santa Fe water use for
motels of limited service; which is 0.08 acre-feet per room per year. It should be noted that
water use for 2013 is substantially lower than previous years and may reflect water conservation
efforts when the well was replaced in 2012. Using an estimated water demand of 0.08 acre-foot
per year per room appears reasonable.

Based on a review of county water use a water budget of approximately 0.57 acre-foot for a
residence and a 5 room bed and breakfast is supported by the available data.

Based on a review of the water budget a water supply plan is not required for master plan
approval since the proposed water usc in less than 1.0 acre-foot per year.

SFC Land Developnient Code Preliminary and Final Development Plan_Requirements for
Water and Wastewater:

Code Reguirements:

Article VI, Section 6 - Water Supply Plan

Article VII, Section 6.2 entitled General Requirements and Submittals for a Water Supply Plan
sets forth requirements based on the type and scale of the development. Table 7.4, entitled
Required Code Sections for Water Supply, states all non-residential development in which the
project uses more than 0.25 acre-feet of water annually or in which the applicant obtains water
other than through a well which is permitted under Section 71-12-1 NMSA 1978 as it may be
amended, is required to submit a water supply plan which consists of submittals compliant with
the following code requirements:

Article VII, Section 6.4 entitled “Water Availability Assessments”
Article VII, Section 6.5 entitled “Water Quality”

Article VII, Section 6.6 entitled “Water Conservation”

Article VII, Section 6.7 entitled “Fire Protection”

B N e

Article VII, Section 6.4 entitled “Water Availability Assessments™

Based on the analysis of water use for residential and bed and breakfasts performed in the
previous section is appears the water use may exceed 0.25 acre-feet per year for the project. In

31 Bonanza Creek Road 3of4
CDRC Case MP/PDP/DP March 6, 2014
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this instance a water supply plan which addresses water availability, water quality, water
conservation and fire protection is required by the code. No such plans were submitted in support
of preliminary and final development plan

After review of the documents submitted by the applicant code requirements for water
availability for preliminary and final development plan have not been met.

Recommendation

Prior to resubmission of preliminary and final development plan the applicant has an opportunity
to install totalizing meters on the two wells located on the property to demonstrate a low water
use for the project. Since this is an existing business that is secking proper zoning, tracking water
usage and occupancy of the bed and breakfast for a few months will allow the county to verify if
the proposed low water usage is attainable.

Ceonclusions

1. Code requirements for master plan for the project have been met.

2. Installation of a totalizing meter on well RG- 31117 is recommended to allow the
applicant to demonstrate the proposed water budget is attainable.

3. Submission of monthly meter readings to the Office of the State Engineer and Sania Fe
County Land use department in recommended.

4. Make necessary changes as required by Office of the State Engineer Water Rights
Division to have the use of water from well permit RG- 31117 reflect to current
commercial use of water for the well.

5. Verification that well RG-8039 is disconnected and not is use.

If you have any questions, please feel free to call me at 992-9871 or email at kiorres@co.santa-
fe.nm.us

31 Bonanza Creek Road 4 0f4
CDRC Case MP/PDP/DP March 6, 2014
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Section 6.4 - Water Availability Assessments

Section 6.5 - Water Ouality

Section 6.6 - Water Conservation
Section 6.7 - Fire Protection.

Table 7.4 indicates which Sections of this Article shall be required for different types of
development: i

TABLE 7.4 - REQUIRED CODE SECTIONS FOR WATER SUPPLY

Development Tvpe Reauired Sections
Any development which includes construction or expansion of a 6.3.6.4,6.5, 6.6, 6.7
community water system
All subdivisions containing 6 or more lots 6.2.2 as applicable. 6.4, 6.5,
6.6, 6.7
All subdivisions containing 5 or fewer lots 6.2.2 and 6.3 if applicable
6.4.7,6.5 6.6

All subdivisions required to have community water sysiems as listed on 6.2.2.6.3,64.6.6.6.7
Anticle V, Section 9, Table 5.1

All large scale residential development 6.4,65,66,67,63if
applicable

All non-residential development in which the project uscs morc than 0.25 | 6.4, 6.6, 6.7, 6.5 (depending
acre feet of water annually or in which the applicant ablains water on use)

other than through a well which is permitied under Section |
72-12-1 NMSA1978 as it may be amended

All development in which the applicant requests a density adjustment 6.4.6.6.6.7
based on water availability

All development in which the applicant requests a density adjustment 6.4,66,6.7
based on water conservation.

Al lots created in accosdance with Article I1. Sections 2.3.1a.ii (b), {d), 6.6.2
(1). (g) and (h)

L.

6.2.2. Required Waler Right Permits

6.2.2a For all subdivisions containing twenty (20) or morz parcels. any one of which is
two (2) acres or less in size, the subdivider shall provide proof that the person
providing the water has a valid water right permit issued by the State Engineer
pursuant o Sections 72-3-1, 7 -3 or 72-12-7 NMSA 1978,

ARTICLE VII - ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMNTS



E. CDRC CASE # MP/PDP/FDP 14-5010 31 Bonanza Creek Road;
Leslie Moody and Mitchell Ackerman, Applicants, JenkinsGavin,
Agents, request Master Plan Zoning, Preliminary and Final
Development Plan approval to allow a Bed and Breakfast within an
existing residence on 9.94 acres. The property is located on the west
side of Highway 14 off Bornanza Creek Road (County Road 45}, within
Section 26, Township 15 North, Range 8 East, Commission District 5
[Exhibit 10: Support letter from San Marcos Association)

Mr. Larrafiaga presented the staff report as follows:

“The Applicanis request Master Plan Zoning, Preliminary and Final Development
Plan approval to allow an existing 5,580 square foot five bedroom residence (o
operale as a Bed and Breakfast. There are two dwellings on the 9.94-acre site. A
4,561 square foot residence will be utilized by the Applicants as their primary
residence and the second residence will be utilized as a five bedroom Bed and
Breakfast. The Applicant is not proposing any expansion of the existing siructures
as part of this application.

“The Bed & Breakfast is currently in operation without the proper zoning
approval or Business License from Santa Fe County. This statement is based on
an observation made by staff on a site visit and advertisement on the internet as
Rancho Gallina in Santa Fe. ‘

“The two existing dwellings on the 9.94 acre parcel are non-conforming as per the
density requirements of the Land Development Code. The Applicants propose
two kitchens in the five bedroom residence which will operate as the Bed and
Breakfast and a kitchen in the Applicants residence. Ordinance No. 1998-9 states:
“any such structure, mobile home or unit that contains both a kitchen or cooking
facility and a bathtub or shower shall be presumed to be a dwelling”. At the most
basic level, a bed and breakfast is a place, often found in a renovated home,
mansion or small hotel, to spend the night and enjoy a full breakfast in the
morning. In observance of the non-conforming status of the site only two kitchens
shall be utilized on site.

“Building and Development Services staff have reviewed this project for
compliance with pertinent Code requirements and have found that the facts
presented support the request for Master Plan only: the Application is
comprehensive in establishing the scope of the project; the Application satisfies
the submittal requirements set forth in the Land Development Code. The review
comments from State Agencies and County staff have established findings that
this Application is in compliance with state requirements and Article V, Section 5,
Master Plan Procedures of the Land Development Code.

“Building and Development Services staff have reviewed this project for
compliance with pertinent Code requirements and have found that the facts
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presented do not support the request for Preliminary and Final Development Plan:
the County Hydrologist has determined that the requested use, as a 5 bedroom
Bed & Breakfast, will exceed the water use allowed by the Land Development
Code for Preliminary and Final Development Plan; the County Hydrologist states
that the application is sufficient for Master Plan; the Applicants have agreed to
this recommendation and are requesting Master Plan Zoning approval only New
Mexico Environmental Department has determined that the on sight liquid waste
systems are not sufficient to meet the needs of the proposed B&B; the Application
does not comply with Article V, Section 7.1.2.y and Section 7.1.2.aa.

Staff is recommending conditional approval of Master Plan Zoning, only, to allow
a Bed and Breakfast within an existing residence on 9.94 acres. If the decision of the
CDRC is to recommend approval of the Applicant’s request, staff recommends
imposition of the following conditions:
1. The Applicant shall comply with all review agency comments and conditions, as
per Article V, § 7.1.3.c.
2. Master Plan with appropriate signatures shall be recorded with the County Clerk,
as per Article V, § 5.2.5.
Only two kitchens shall be allowed on the site in keeping with the non-
conforming status of the site, as per Article 11, § 4.5.

(W8]

Mr, Larrafiaga said the property is neither zoned nor licensed to operate as a
B&B. The applicant will be required to return with a water budget proving .25 acre-feet
per year. The combined two dwellings total 9,000 square feet. In response to Member
Gonzales’ question, Mr. Larrafiaga said there is a listing for the B&B on the internet and
at staff’s visit it appeared the business was operational.

Mr. Larrafiaga explained the different options the applicant has in proving water
usage and stated that the applicant will be required to use no more than .25 acre-feet for
the development.

Duly sworn, Jennifer Jenkins, agent for the applicants Mitchell Ackerman and
Leslie Moody in their request for a master plan approval for a bed and breakfast,
presented a slide show to clarify the history and location of the subject property. The
applicants purchased the property in July 2012 and have made significant improvement.
There are two residences: 4,500 square feet and 5,400 square feet. The property is just
less than 10 acres. The applicants have installed geo-thermal, solar panels, and water
catchment. They are not advertising as a B&B. Family and friends have visited and they
hosted a wedding.

The applicants came to the County to start the process and follow the proper
procedures. Ms. Jenkins said the previous owner operated a B&B for over 20 years
without permits or licenses. The applicants are here of their own volition and have
invested significant financial resources into the process.

Ms. Jenkins said the applicants have written support from the Turquoise Trail
Association. She said they have worked closely with County staff, will comply with all
conditions and are here seeking the Committee’s support.
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Duly swom, Leslie Moody, confirmed Ms. Jenkins® statement that they are not
running a B&B. She said she and her husband have invested their life savings in
improving the property for energy efficiency. They will meter the well and prove they
can operate the business within the .25 acre-foot limit. She noted that she has received
support from the local residents and looks forward to opening their business.

Ms. Moody confirmed that they have the needed permits for the solar and
geothermal additions. She said there are two septic systems which were upgraded,
however, one of the leach fields needs to be expanded.

Ms. Gavin, agent for the applicant, said the two septic tanks are appropriately
sized, however, one of the leach fields will need to be expanded. Bids have already been
received to expand it 360 square feet. That expansion will occur whether this application
is approved or not.

Previously sworn, Walter Wait said he has lived for over 30 years on Bonanza
Creek Road and is well acquainted with the subject property which had been a school, a
facility for race horses, and an art place and it has always had residents. The San Marcos
Association met with the applicants and at the Association’s March 2014 meeting the
Board supported the B&B as a good contribution to the community.

Mr. Wait said limiting the B&B to .25 acre-feet per year might impose an undue
hardship on the proposal and the Board recommends changing the budget to .50 acre-feet.

Duly sworn, Helen Boyce, said she was one of the first six residences between the
Village of Cerrillos and [-25 and she was happy to have these “enthusiastic” people
wanting to operate the B&B. She agreed with Mr. Wait’s comment and fully supported
the application.

Member Katz moved to recommend to the BCC approval of the master plan
zoning for the B&B in case Z/DP 14-5010 with staff-imposed conditions. Member
Anaya seconded.

Member Gonzales suggested that in the event the water budget proves to be
higher than .25 acre-feet, the applicants should provide the appropriate water rights. Ms.
Jenkins said they have confidence in the applicant’s water budget; however, if need be a
geo-hydro study can occur to prove the necessary water. She did not think water rights
would be relevant to this application.

Member Gonzales asked that the applicant provide water rights if they exceed
three acre-feet as an amendment. Member Katz agreed as did Member Anaya.

The motion passed by unanimous [7-0] voice vote.

L@EITNone were presented
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6.2 Additional Fees for

Where adchtlonal rexis ~ ":.' is required above and beyond normal review

SECTION 7 - DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS

&1 #1 be arrived at betwccn the County and the subdivider. i

1306063

by the County. ATy . whi LA nod:mlly amended is available from the Code
Administrator. e

7.1 Preliminary Development Plans

7.1.1 Pre-application conference

a.

Prior to the application for approval of a preliminary development plan for any phase
or for an entire project, the subdivider may confer with the Code Administrator
regarding the plan submittal and requirements of the Code according to Section 5.1 of
this Article.

At this time a determination will be made as to the appropriate scale and format for
plans and plats and as to the appropriateness of applicable submittal requirements.

7.1.2 Information to be submitted

a.
b.

"o o0

be e

g ="

Evidence of legal lof of record;

Contour intervals of two feet or such other appropriate scale as determined by the
Code Administrator:

Arrangements. location and size of buildings. where applicable;

Off-street parking and loading or dumping facilities. where applicable;

Internal vehicular and pedestrian circulation. and ingress and egress;

A drainage, grading, and erosion control plan including existing and proposed
contours for roads and utilities; a preliminary/conceptual grading plan around
buildings, when applicable;

A landscaping plan providing a-schedule specifying conceptual methods, to include
type, size, and location of vegetative and non-vegetative landscape material, and a
preliminary description of the irrigation system to be used,

Walls, fences and earth berms; their approximate locations and identifying types of
fences and walls, if applicable;

Size, location, orientation, lighting and type of signage, where applicable;

Conceptual plan for outdoor lighting, including type, size, location of fixtures, if
applicable;

Easements, rights-of-way and street design:

Access to telephone, gas, and electric utility service;

. Utility plan for water and sanitary sewer;

Residential densities/gross acres;
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o. Intensity of non-residential development, including lot coverages, gross floor area
ratios or gross square feet of building area;

p. A vicinity map showing the boundaries of the project, owners of record within one
hundred feet of the tract including public rights-of-way and existing conditions and
development, including adjacent strects and utilities, for at least two hundred feet
from the project boundaries;

q. [f appropriate, the phases and approximate dates of development of the phases;

r. The plan shall be drawn at a scale of one hundred feet (100) to the inch or such other
appropriate scale as determined by the Code Administrator;

s. Proposed community facilities and/or sites and recreational areas, if any, and proposed
ownership of such: .

. A schedule of on-site and ofi-site public improvements with the time of construction
related (o the phasing schedule;

u. Information as required by state agencies,

v. The preliminary subdivision plat may be submitted concurrently with the preliminary
development plan, but is not required. Submittal of a schematic or skeich subdivision

¢ plat showing proposed lot layout, approximate dimensions and lot areas together with
topography and natural features; and

w. A written traffic report prepared by a licensed traffic engineer or other qualified expert
as determined by the Code Administrator.

x. Schools Impact Report. A written report which prajects the effects the proposed
project will have on public schools, and which includes: the proposed number, size,
and price of residential units within the project; a description of the project’s target
market: and
where applicable, any special educational needs of the project’s school-aged residents.
The report will also identify the schools that service the area of the proposed project
and their boundaries, the transportation available to those schools, and a list of any
pending or approved residential devclopments within those schools’ boundaries.
Copies of the schools impacts notice shall be submitted to the school district in which
the project is located and to the Code Administrator.

v. Water Supplv Plan - Water Svstem. As required by Article V1I, Section 6 of the Code
and Table 5.1, of Section 9.3 of this Article V.

z.  Solid Waste Disposal Plan. As required by Article V11, Section 7 of the Code.

aa. Liguid Waste (Disposal) Plan. As required by Article VII, Section 2 of the Code.
bb. Timing and Phasing of Development, Projections for 5 to 10 years.
cc. Copies of deed restrictions and protective covenants must be submitted.

7.1.3 Review

a. A prcliminary development plan may be only a phase or portion of the area covered by
an approved master plan, so long as the preliminary development plan substantially
conforms to the approved master plan,

b. A preliminary development plan shall be submitted prior to or concurrent with
submission of a preliminary plat.

c. The application for preliminary development plan approval shall be presented to the
County Development Review Committee for review with a staff report. The staff
report shall include a description of the proposed project. an evaluation of pertinent
planning issucs, and a statement on the compliance of the project with the County
General Plan and Code. The report may include recommended conditions of
approval. The report shall include all comments from appropriate State or Federal
agencies, the County Fire Marshal, the County Hydrologist, and other appropriate
County personnel. Particular attention shall be given in the staff report to public

V-19

NB - (7

ARTICLE V - SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS



1306060

agency comments which relate to potential limitations of lot size, intensity, or
character of development.

7.1.4 Criteria for development plan phase approval
a. Conformance to the approved master plan;

b. The plan must meet the criteria of Section 5.2.4 of this Article V.

7.2 Final Development Plan

7.2.1 Submittals

A final development plan conforming to the approved preliminary plan and approved
preliminary plat, if required, and containing the same required information shall be
submitted. 1n addition, the final development plan shall show, when applicable, and with
appropriate dimensions, the locations and size of buildings, heated floor area of buildings,
and minimum building setbacks from lot lines or adjoining streets. Documents to be
submitied at this time are: proof of ownership including necessary title documents. articles
of incorporation and by-laws of owners' association: required disclosure statements: final
engineering plans and time schedule for grading, drainage, and all improvements
including roads, water system, sewers, solid waste, utilities; engineering estimates for
bonding requircments; development agreements; and final subdivision plats, if required.

7.2.2 Review

The final development plan shall be submitted to the County Development Review
Committee accompanied by a staff report. The County Development Review Comunittee
shall review the plan and make a delerminatlion as o its compliance with the County
General Plan and Code. The County Development Review Committee may recommend
changes or additions to the plan as conditions of its approval. The final development plan
as approved by the County Development Review Committee shall be filed with the County
Clerk. The approved final development plan becomes the basis of development permits
and for acceptance of public dedications. Any changes in the plan must be approved by
the County Devclopment Review Commitlece,

History. 1980 Comp. 1980-6. Section 7 of Article V was amended by County Ordinance
1987-1 adding language relating to master plans.
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NO PACKET MATERIAL FOR THIS ITEM

IX. Concluding Business
A. Announcements
B. Adjournment













